WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
Wayzata City Hall Community Room, 600 Rice Street
Tuesday, May 15, 2018
4:00 p.m. Members of the City Council may attend a Ground Breaking Celebration at
the Retreat, 1221 Wayzata Blvd., Wayzata, MN
WORKSHOP TOPIC FOR DISCUSSION:
1. Minnehaha Steamboat/Lake Effect Proposal (6:30 p.m.)
7:00 PM - CITY COUNCIL MEETING
ITEM

DESCRIPTION

1

Call to Order

2

Pledge of Allegiance

3

Roll Call

4

Approve Agenda

5

Public Forum - 15 Minutes (3 min/person)

a. Moment of Silence in Memory of Wayzata Police Officer Bill Mathews and Sergeant J.W. Anderson
b. Hennepin County Commissioner Jan Callison to Provide Annual Hennepin County Update
c. Introduction of New Firefighters: Rob Houts and Dan Rehberger

PRESENTER DK ST KW JM AP

VOTE

PAGE #

Willcox
Callison
Kevin
Klapprich

New Agenda Items (3 min/councilmember) - 1. Councilmember suggest item to add; 2. Must be
seconded by another Councilmember; 3. Determine staff resources, scheduling & timeframe;
4. Discuss & vote to add to future agenda

6
a.
7

Consent Agenda

3

a. Approval of City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2018 and City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2018
b. Approval of Check Register
c. Approval of Municipal Licenses
d. Police Activity Report
e. Building Activity Report
f. Approval of Resolution No. 25-2018 Requesting Additional Time to Complete 2040 Comprehensive Plan
g. Accept Gerald Osband's Resignation from the Heritage Preservation Board (HPB)
h. Authorize Ad for Bid for 2018 Mill & Overlay Project
i. Approval of Amended Contract with Stantec for 2040 Comprehensive Plan Services
j. Approval of Resolution No. 26-2018 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for a Fence at 433 Bushaway Road
k. Approval of Remodeling / Expansion Study for the Motor Vehicle Department
8

Public Hearing

a. PUBLIC HEARING for Vacation of Right of Way for North Beach Rd
9

Thomson

101

New Business

a. Presentation of the 2017 Financial Report by Bill Lauer, MMKR

Lauer

102

b. Consider Approval of the Special Event Permit Application for the Bash for the Boardwalk

Kelly

109

c. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 24-2018 Approving Excess Revenue Transfers

Dahl

125

10

City Manager's Report and Discussion Items

11

Public Forum (as necessary)

12

Adjournment
Meeting Rules of Conduct:
Turn in white card for public forum and blue card for agenda item
Give name and address
Indicate if representing a group
Limit remarks to 3 minutes

Upcoming Meetings:
City Council - June 5 & 19, 2018
Planning Commission - May 21 & June 4, 2018

Members of the City Council and some staff members may gather at the Wayzata Bar and Grill
05-15-2018CC PACKET
immediately after the meeting for a purely social event. All members of the public are welcome.
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7a
TITLE: Approval of City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2018, and City Council Regular
Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2018
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2018, and
City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2018
PREPARED BY: Becky Malone, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the attached draft minutes.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Draft City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2018
2. Draft City Council Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2018
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WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL
DRAFT-WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES
May 1, 2018
6:00 p.m. Parks and Trails Master Plan Update and Discussion
Mayor Willcox called the workshop meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Community Room at Wayzata
City Hall. Council Members present: Koch, McCarthy, Plechash, and Tyacke. Also present: City
Manager Dahl, Interim Public Works Director/City Engineer Kelly, Project Engineer Schumann, Merrily
Babcock and Jim McWethy from the Parks and Trails Board, Minnetonka resident, Peter Hitch, and City
Consultant, Brad Aldrich from Confluence.
Mr. Kelly introduced City Consultant Brad Aldrich with Confluence.
Mr. Aldrich reviewed the Parks and Trail System Plan, approach, process and what tasks the Parks and
Trails Board has completed to date.
Mr. Aldrich also discussed several upcoming community engagement activities that they plan to hold to
solicit feedback from the general public. The events include:
i. Park Tours – May 7
ii. Spring Splash – May 19
iii. Park-a-palooza – June 1st
iv. Art Experience – June 23
v. James J Hill Days – September 8
Mr. Aldrich then led the Council member through a series of visioning exercises.
The Council indicated their support for the process to date and upcoming activities.
The workshop meeting was adjourned at 6:55 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Becky Malone
City Clerk
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WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL
DRAFT - MEETING MINUTES
May 1, 2018
AGENDA ITEM 1. Call to Order.
Mayor Willcox called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
AGENDA ITEM 2. Pledge of Allegiance.
AGENDA ITEM 3. Roll Call.
Council Members present: Tyacke, Koch, McCarthy, and Plechash. Also present: City
Manager Dahl, Director of Planning and Building Thomson, Interim Public Works
Director/City Engineer Kelly, and City Attorney Schelzel.
AGENDA ITEM 4. Approve Agenda.
Mr. Plechash made a motion, seconded by Mr. Tyacke to approve the agenda. There was
no further discussion. The motion carried 5/0.
Mayor Willcox noted the Board of Appeal and Equalization convened at 5:30 p.m., and all
appeals were addressed. He added workshop to review the Parks and Trails Master Plan
was also held at City Hall.
AGENDA ITEM 5. Public Forum.
a. Presentation of Arbor Month Proclamation
Mayor Willcox read a Proclamation declaring May, 2018, as Arbor Month in the City of
Wayzata. He stated Wayzata volunteers will plant trees in commemoration of Arbor
Month on Saturday, May 19, 2018.
b. Lake Effect Conservancy Update
Mayor Willcox welcomed Lake Effect Conservancy Board Chair Andrew Mullin and
invited him to address the City Council.
Mr. Mullin reviewed the ongoing work and efforts of the Conservancy Board: the
story that is being presented to the community related to fundraising; efforts to foster
understanding of the benefits of the project; and upcoming events.
Mr. Mullin reviewed the Conservancy Board’s Mission Statement: “Restore,
enhance and protect Wayzata’s lakefront to create a connected accessible community
space”. He added the proposed project is the result of the Conservancy Board’s
public/private partnership with the City of Wayzata.
Mr. Mullin stated the proposed project will provide improved amenities for biking
and walking; upgraded facilities across the 15-acre lake edge and parkland asset; and create
safe railroad crossings for access to the lakefront. He added additional goals are
enhancement of water quality through erosion control features and practices; vegetative
buffer; stormwater management improvements; and reduced run-off.
Mr. Mullin stated the project, which encompasses three parks and a connecting
boardwalk, includes improvements to the Section Foreman’s House and historic Depot as
well as redesign of the adjacent Lake Street promenade, with a plaza replacing the
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municipal parking lot. He added a lake eco-park is planned that will include an underwater
reef. He noted the 2,000 linear square-foot meandering boardwalk will connect the three
park areas.
Mr. Mullin stressed the importance of philanthropic support for this proposed
project as well as other community assets. He added the Conservancy Board intends to
utilize Wayzata’s history of philanthropic giving to encourage people to continue that
legacy.
Mr. Mullin stated, during summer 2018, the Lake Minnetonka Science
Collaborative will be offering three week-long camps in partnership with YMCA, with
curriculum built around STEM principals. He added the camps will be held at the lake
eco-park area.
Mr. Mullin stated the project’s $15.2 million investment includes $4.6 million for
creation of the boardwalk; $3 million for beautification of the parkland and shoreland
restoration; $1.2 million to improve water quality; $1.5 toward preservation of the historic
Depot and Section Foreman’s House; and $4.3 million already approved by the City
Council for the plaza and Lake Street improvements. He noted, in addition, $650,000 is
included for renovation of the pedestrian railroad crossings.
Mr. Mullin stated Councilmember Plechash had requested a clear statement
regarding public and private partnership. He added the project is expected to rely on 67%
private and 33% public funding, which includes public funding sources other than the City
of Wayzata. He noted the City’s funding portion was planned investment before the Lake
Effect Conservancy was initiated.
Mr. Mullin reviewed upcoming events: a Design Open House, Thursday, May 17,
2018 from 6:00-7:30 p.m. at City Hall; “Spring Splash”, Saturday May 19, 10:00 a.m. 1:00 p.m.; and the Depot Concert Series this summer. He added a series of private events
focused on fundraising are also planned.
Mr. Mullin stated “Spring Splash” on May 19 will be held at the Plaza parking lot
(688 Lake Street East). He added this special event will include YMCA camp games;
animal demonstrations by Three Rivers Park District naturalists; fishing activities from the
Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (MnDNR); a presentation by the Science
Museum of Minnesota on Minnesota’s aquatic invertebrates; Wayzata Public Schools’
Storyteller Corner; and sailboat rides from the Wayzata Community Sailing Center.
Mr. Mullin stated the Conservancy Board is hoping to bring on additional Board
Members. He added individuals or families who are interested in lead gift funding
opportunities are also sought.
Mayor Willcox asked how interested residents can find information on the
Conservancy Board. Mr. Mullin stated contact information is available on the
Conservancy’s website, lakeeffectconservancy.org. He added the Conservancy office in
the Depot is staffed several days a week.
Mayor Willcox stated the Wayzata Parks and Trails Master Plan and additional
parks concepts will be available for review at the “Spring Splash” event on May 19, 2018.
Mayor Willcox stated City is committed to moving forward with planning for the
City-funded portions of the project, including Lake Street and the proposed plaza.
Mr. Mullin thanked the City Council for their support and leadership.
c. Introduction of New Project Engineer Jen Schumann
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Interim Public Works Director/City Engineer Mike Kelly introduced the City’s new Project
Engineer, Jen Schumann. He stated Ms. Schumann has extensive experience in consulting
and construction and is new to municipal engineering. He added she has helped with seal
coat project plans and will work on the upcoming 2018 Mill and Overlay Project as well
as street reconstruction projects, including Circle E Drive and its alley.
Jen Schumann stated she grew up on a farm in southwestern Minnesota and has
lived in the northwest metropolitan area for 25 years. She added her experience includes
field inspection and surveying for new residential developments as well as larger State and
Federal projects. She thanked City staff and Councilmembers for the warm welcome she
has received.
Mr. Kelly stated Ms. Schumann will be a vital part of the Engineering Department
as she enjoys being out in the field and working with contractors and residents. He added
she will work on public infrastructure projects, as well as design and administration.
AGENDA ITEM 6. New Agenda Items.
Highway Sound Barriers
Councilmember Plechash stated he has received feedback from residents who are interested
in pursuing sound barriers for neighborhoods with highway frontage. He requested that
City staff provide further information and comment.
City Manager Jeff Dahl stated a workshop regarding sound barriers was held prior
to Councilmember Plechash’s entrance into office. He added representatives of the
Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) provided details on the process, which
is time-consuming and cost-prohibitive. He agreed to contact MnDOT and provide further
information and feedback to Councilmembers Plechash and Koch.
Councilmember McCarthy stated sound barriers erected by MnDOT using their
funding are time and labor intensive, and only a few projects are approved each year. She
added City funding can also be considered, and the process is more expeditious.
Mayor Willcox stated a sound barrier proposed in the Hollybrook Road/Waycliffe
Drive area was ultimately put to a neighborhood vote that did not pass. He added the main
objection from residents was that they did not want to feel walled in.
Intersection Emergency Lights
Councilmember Tyacke stated he was recently stopped at the Wayzata Boulevard/Superior
Boulevard intersection. He added an ambulance was travelling west on Wayzata
Boulevard with its lights on, and the intersection’s emergency flashing lights were not
working. Mr. Kelly stated City staff are aware of this situation and are working getting the
lights repaired.
AGENDA ITEM 7. Consent Agenda.
Mrs. McCarthy made a motion, seconded by Mr. Tyacke to approve the Consent Agenda.
a. Approval of City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes of April 23, 2018 and City
Council Regular Meeting Minutes of April 17, 2018
b. Approval of Check Register
c. Approval of Municipal Licenses
d. Approval of a Professional Services Contract with Abdo, Eick and Meyers (AEM)
for Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Consultant Services
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e. Authorize Ad for Bid for 2018 Bituminous Seal Coat Project
The motion carried 5/0.
AGENDA ITEM 8. New Business.
a. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 23-2018 Adopting Findings of Fact and
Determining No Need for an Environmental Impact Statement for the
Wayzata Lake Effect Project
Director of Planning and Building Jeff Thomson presented the Wayzata Lake Effect
Project Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW), a draft of which was reviewed by
the City Council in February 2018. He added the City Council authorized the EAW for
public review and comment between March and April 2018 as part of the State-mandated
public review process. He noted the purpose of the EAW is to inform the public about the
project and its impact on the environment as well as permitting requirements and additional
environmental study.
Mr. Thomson stated public comments were received from various agencies,
expressing support for the Lake Effect project and its goals. He added no comments were
received from the general public. He noted City staff will respond to all comments received
as required, decide whether further environmental review is necessary, and approve record
of decision and distribute to all commenters.
Mr. Thomson stated City staff recommends City Council approval of Resolution
23-2018, adopting Findings of Fact and determining no need for further environmental
review.
Councilmember Tyacke stated the information contained in the EAW is detailed
and complete. He commended City staff for their work on this project.
Councilmember Plechash noted the successful result of receiving positive
comments on the project from so many public agencies. He added he appreciates City
staff’s response to the comments received.
Mr. Thomson stated all water agencies compiled their comments together, which
was very helpful. Mr. Thomson apologized for an error in the “Notice of Availability”.
Mr. Tyacke made a motion, seconded by Mr. Koch to approve Resolution 23-2018
Adopting Findings of Fact and Determining No Need for an Environmental Impact
Statement for the Wayzata Lake Effect Project. There was no further discussion. The
motion carried 5/0.
a. Consider Approval of the Special Event Permit Application for the Wayzata
Farmer’s Market
Mr. Kelly reviewed an application for the 2018 Farmer’s Market presentation to be held in
the Lake Street parking lot for the second consecutive year. He added the Farmer’s Market
will be open Thursday afternoons from June through October. He noted City Council
approval is not required, but City staff wanted to bring the location to their attention.
Councilmember McCarthy requested an update on solicitation of vendors and
growth of the Farmer’s Market. Mr. Kelly stated the City only provides the location for
the Farmer’s Market. Mr. Dahl stated community vendors and local groups are encouraged
and represented.
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Councilmember Tyacke asked where parking is located. Mr. Kelly stated the Mill
Street parking garage is nearby, and there will be street spaces available during afternoon
hours.
Mayor Willcox requested clarification regarding the permit fee of $150. Mr. Kelly
stated the fee is for the entire season.
Deb Hoen, Delano, stated she has been working with the Farmer’s Market in
Wayzata for the past 4 years, which has an emphasis on local vendors and products. She
added there are currently 25 full-time vendors, including a meat vendor, and 30 part-time
vendors. She noted there were a total of 25 vendors in 2017.
Mrs. McCarthy asked whether the current location will work for the Farmer’s
Market. Ms. Hoen stated the location is perfect and the parking ramp is a great option. She
added she did receive feedback regarding the lack of handicapped parking.
Mr. Kelly stated handicapped stalls can be posted along the east side of Broadway
Avenue. He added the parking ramp has eight handicapped stalls and there are four
handicapped stalls on Mill Street.
Mayor Willcox the Farmer’s Market has grown since last year and has a wide
variety of vendors which will be successful in the Lake Street location.
Plechash asked how vendors can be a part of the Farmer’s Market. Ms. Hoen stated
a selection committee oversees the application process, and a variety of food-based vendors
are chosen.
Mrs. McCarthy made a motion, seconded by Mr. Plechash to approve the Special
Event Permit Application for the Wayzata Farmer’s Market. There was no further
discussion. The motion carried 5/0.
a. Consider Denial of Solicitors License Application for John Norusis
Mr. Dahl stated City Council approval, as well as a background check and Police
Department recommendation, is required for solicitor license applications. He added, in
this case, denial was recommended by the Police Department, and the applicant was
advised to withdraw their application. He noted the applicant informed the City that they
would appeal.
Mr. Dahl stated this issue was added to the Meeting Agenda per City Code, but the
applicant has since indicated that they would not be present to appeal. He added City staff
recommends City Council denial of the license application.
Mrs. McCarthy made a motion, seconded by Mr. Koch to approve denial of
Solicitors License Application for John Norusis. Mr. Schelzel requested that the motion
should specify that the denial is “based on recommendations of City staff”.
Mrs. McCarthy accepted the following friendly amendment to the motion:
-insert “pursuant to City staff’s recommendations”. Mr. Koch agreed.
There was no further discussion. The motion carried 5/0.
AGENDA ITEM 9. City Manager’s Report and Discussion Items.
Mr. Dahl stated May 1, 2018 is the first day of “Step to It”. He added interested residents
can register online at steptoit.org. He noted the program encourages people to be active
and participate in activities, and incentives and awards are available for both communities
and individuals.
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Mr. Dahl stated Chief Risvold is attending tonight’s Long Lake City Council
Meeting, to present a Lifesaving Award to Wayzata Police Officers Andy Sharratt and
Brandon Haapoja for saving the life of a Long Lake resident through the use of CPR.
Mr. Dahl stated the Parks and Trails Barbecue Kick-Off is scheduled for May 8,
2018, at Bell Courts from 5:00 - 7:00 p.m.
Mr. Dahl stated the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting will be held on
May 15, 2018. He added Shawn and Wyatt Mathews and others will be in Washington DC
for Peace Officers Memorial Week. In Minnesota, there will be a service at the Memorial
on the Capitol grounds in St. Paul, and wreaths will be laid for Wayzata Sergeant J.W.
Anderson and Officer Bill Mathews. Representatives of the City and Police Department
will be present.
Mr. Dahl stated a groundbreaking ceremony is also scheduled for the new wing at
The Retreat on May 15, 2018. He added two events will be held on May 19, 2018: “Dig it
Day” will begin at 8:15 a.m., and “Spring Splash” from 10:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.
Mr. Dahl stated a Lake Effect Open House will be held on Tuesday, May 17 from
6:00 – 7:30 p.m. in the City Hall Community Room. He added an Open House for the
Wayzata Boulevard/Superior Boulevard intersection will be held May 22, 2018, from 6:00
- 8:00 p.m.
Mayor Willcox stated the State Legislature voted to dedicate Highway 12 to Officer
Mathews. Funding will come from Law Enforcement Memorial Association (LEMA).
Mayor Willcox stated on May 12, 2018 the Wayzata High School Football team
will be joining Cargill employees in the Big Woods to take out buckthorn invasive plant
species.
AGENDA ITEM 10. Public Forum Continued (if necessary).
None.
AGENDA ITEM 11. Adjournment.
Mr. Plechash made a motion, seconded by Mr. Tyacke to adjourn. There being no further
business, Mayor Willcox adjourned the meeting at 8:11 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Becky Malone
City Clerk
Drafted by Mary Mullen
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7b
TITLE: Approval of Check Register
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Payment of Checks for April & May 2018
PREPARED BY: Kathy Ovshak, Senior Accountant
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the attached check register for April & May 2018.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Check Detail Register –April & May 2018
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7c
TITLE: Approval of Municipal Licenses
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Municipal Licenses as Attached
PREPARED BY: Lori Krismer, Administrative Assistant
REVIEWED BY: Becky Malone, City Clerk
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the Municipal Licenses.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1. List of Municipal Licenses Which Received Administrative Approval (informational only).
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05/15/2018
THE FOLLOWING MUNICIPAL LICENSES
WERE APPROVED ADMINISTRATIVELY
2018 Gas Fitter's License
Classic Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Chaska, MN
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7d
TITLE: Police Activity Report
PROPOSED MOTION: N/A
PREPARED BY: Nichole Fernandez, Administrative Records Specialist
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
The attached April 2018 Police Activity Report is for informational purposes only.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1. April 2018 Police Activity Report
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WAYZATA POLICE DEPARTMENT
ACTIVITY REPORT – APRIL, 2018

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-30-2018 0711
Report of damage to property. Loss $400. No suspect information.
Addresses Involved
300 block of Ferndale Rd, Wayzata, MN 55391
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Missing Person
Reported: 04-30-2018 0203
Report of a missing person. Party was located by an officer and was transported home.
Addresses Involved
400 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Assault
Reported: 04-29-2018 0042
Report of an assault. Victim did not wish to pursue charges.
Addresses Involved
1300 block of Wayzata Blvd W, Long Lake, MN 55356
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Crime Prevention
Reported: 04-28-2018 1000
Prescription Drug Take Back Day event.
Addresses Involved
600 Rice St E, Wayzata, MN 55391
450 Virginia Ave, Long Lake, MN 55356
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Financial Transaction Card Fraud
Reported: 04-28-2018 0939
Report of fraudulent debit card transactions. Loss $1950. This case is under investigation.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Glenbrook Rd N, Wayzata, MN 55391
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft from Vehicle
Reported: 04-27-2018 1616
Report of a theft from vehicle. Loss $2900.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Warrant
Reported: 04-27-2018 1338
24 year old female from Minneapolis arrested on an outstanding warrant. Transported to jail.
Addresses Involved
Wayzata Blvd W & Greenhill Lane, Long Lake, MN 55356
Names Involved
(Arrested) Nolan, Kylee Jae (Age: 23)
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Warrant
Reported: 04-26-2018 1454
Attempted warrant pickup. No contact was made.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Ridgeview Dr, Wayzata, MN 55391
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Counterfeit
Reported: 04-24-2018 2131
Report of found counterfeit bills. Bills were placed into evidence for safekeeping.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Central Ave S, Wayzata, MN 55391
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Fraud
Reported: 04-24-2018 1010
Report of a phone scam. No loss occurred.
Addresses Involved
400 block of Willow Dr, Long Lake, MN 55356
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Fire
Reported: 04-23-2018 1956
Burning complaint. Officer made contact and advised homeowner of complaint.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Benton Ave, Wayzata, MN 55391
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Fire
Reported: 04-23-2018 1334
Burning complaint. Officer made contact and advised homeowner of complaint.
Addresses Involved
2200 block of Grand Ave, Long Lake, MN 55356
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Domestic Assault
Reported: 04-22-2018 2137
Report of a domestic assault. Charges pending.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Glenmoor Lane, Long Lake, MN 55356
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Domestic Assault
Reported: 04-21-2018 1817
52 year old female from Wayzata was arrested for domestic assault and was transported to jail.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Walker Ave N, Wayzata, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested) Keesling, Janine Paula (Age: 52)
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------DWI
Reported: 04-20-2018 2307
41 year old male from Chanhassen arrested for driving under the influence of alcohol. Tested .15
Addresses Involved
1400 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested) Quade, Ryan Mark (Age: 41)
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property
Reported: 04-17-2018 1240
Report of damage to a vehicle. Unknown loss at this time.
Addresses Involved
700 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-09-2018 1215
Report of a theft of two license plates. License plates were entered into NCIC.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Gleason Lake Rd, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-09-2018 0851
Report of a theft by swindle. This case is under investigation.
Addresses Involved
2400 block of Industrial Blvd W, Long Lake, MN 55356
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

05-15-2018CC PACKET
Page 32 of 146

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property
Reported: 04-08-2018 1340
Report of a house being egged. No loss reported.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Gardner St E, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------DWI
Reported: 04-07-2018 0103
30 year old male from Maple Grove arrested for driving under the influence of alcohol. Test .12
Addresses Involved
I394 E & Carlson Pkwy, Minnetonka, MN 55305
Names Involved
(Arrested) Kippley, Benjamin John (Age: 30)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Domestic
Reported: 04-06-2018 1825
Report of a verbal domestic. Male agreed to leave for the night.
Addresses Involved
300 block of Ferndale Rd N, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Stolen Property Possession
Reported: 04-06-2018 1240
36 year old male from Woodbury arrested for receiving stolen property. Transported to jail.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Rice St E, Wayzata, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested) Rime, Steven Lee (Age: 36)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------DWI
Reported: 04-05-2018 2313
36 year old male from Woodbury arrested for driving under the influence of alcohol. Tested .14
Addresses Involved
I 394 E & I 494, Minnetonka, MN 55305
Names Involved
(Arrested) Rime, Steven Lee (Age: 36)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property
Reported: 04-05-2018 1658
Report of a house being egged. No loss reported.
Addresses Involved
300 block of Broadway Ave N, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-03-2018 1625
Report of a theft. Loss $35. This case is under investigation.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Central Ave N, Wayzata, MN 55391
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-02-2018 1040
Report of a theft. Loss $6600. This case is under investigation.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Glenmoor Lane, Long Lake, MN 55356
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Controlled Substance
Reported: 04-02-2018 0523
Report of a possible domestic. Female transported to hospital. Charges pending.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Glenbrook Rd, Wayzata, MN 55391
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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TRAFFIC – APRIL, 2018
CITATIONS
WRITTEN WARNINGS
VERBAL WARNINGS

178
7
124

Description

Apr 2018

MISSING PERSON

1

FOUND ANIMAL

4

FOUND PROPERTY

3

ABANDONED VEHICLE

2

SAFEKEEPING & DISPOSAL

2

PIMV

2

PDMV

12

H & R PDMV

1

Grass/Brush Fire

1

FIRE ALARM

8

GAS LEAK/SMELL

3

HAZ ROAD CONDITION

8

OTHER MEDICAL

32

DETOX PATIENT

1

72 Hour Hold/Emergency Admission

3

WELFARE CHECK - ADULT

14

WELFARE CHECK - JUV

1

MENTAL HEALTH ISSUE

4

INFO REC'D

16

VERBAL DOMESTIC

1

CIVIL MATTER

5

DISTURBANCE/FIGHT/LOUD PARTY/HARASSMENT

10

SUSPICION

11

OPEN DOOR/WINDOW

2

SCAM/FRAUD ATTEMPT

1

BURNING COMPL

2

DRIVING/TRAFFIC COMPLAINT

18

PARKING COMPL

3

HOUSE/BUSINESS CHECKS

1

RECORD CHECKS

22

OTHER PERMITS

2

FIREARM PERMIT

4

HC SHERIFFS PERMIT TO CARRY

11
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Solicitor Permit

3

PARKING PERMIT

1

ANIMAL VIOLATION - Written Warning

1

ANIMAL COMPLAINT/CHECK

11

DISPATCH ANIMAL

1

DOG LICENSE ISSUED

1

PATROL REQUEST

1

POLICE ESCORT/STAND-BY

2

FUNERAL ESCORT

1

ADULT PROTECTION ASSIST

5

FINGERPRINTS

3

ASSIST CHILD PROTECTION

3

MOTORIST ASSIST/STALL

22

UTILITY PROBLEM

2

PUBLIC ASSIST

14

LOCKOUT

7

BUSINESS ALARM

16

HOME ALARM

5

911 HANG-UP

3

ASSIST OTHER DEPT

20

WARRANT/ATTEMPT/ARREST

4

SPECIAL EVENT

1

TRAFFIC CONTROL / DIRECT ENFORCEMENT

3

DEPARTMENT DELIVERIES

1

CASE FOLLOW UP

3

ASLT 5-MS-INFL OR ATTMPT HRM-HANDS-ADL STR

1

ASLT-DOMESTIC-MS-INFLT BODLY HRM-HNDS-ADLT-AC

2

CNTRFT-FE-UTT POSS-PLC-US CURRNCY SCURTY-UNK

1

DRUGS-SM AMT IN MOT VEH-POSS-MARIJ-UNK

2

CON SUB 5-POSSESS-HEROIN-NOT APPLICABLE

1

CON SUB 5-POSSESS-COCAINE-UNK

1

TRAF-ACC-UN-INF ALC-DRGS-UNK INJ-MV

1

TRAF-AC-GM-3RD DEG DWI-UI ALCOHOL-MV

2

TRAF-AC-GM-3RD DEG DWI-10 OR MORE WIN 2 HRS-MV

1

TRAF-ACC-M-4TH DEG DWI-UI ALCOHOL-MV

2

DISTURB PEACE-MS-DISORDERLY CONDUCT

1

OBSENITY-FE-PROMOTE-OTHER-DEPICT MINR-MINOR

1

PROP DAMAGE-UNK LVL-PRIVATE-UNK INTENT

1

PROP DAMAGE-MS-PRIVATE-OTHER INTENT

1
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STLN PROP-FE-RECEIVING-GUN-UNK VAL

1

THEFT-OVER 5000DLRS FE-BLDG-MONEY NEGOTIABLE

1

THEFT-500 OR LESS MS-BLDG-OTH PROP

2

THEFT-500 OR LESS MS-MTR VEHICLE-MONEY

1

THEFT-500 OR LESS MS-MTR VEHICLE-OTH PROP

1

THEFT-FE-THFT BY SWINDLE TRICK-2501-19999

1

FRAUD-FE-FIN-TRAN-CARD-NO CONSENT 501-2500

1

FRAUD-MS-FIN-TRAN-CARD-NO-CONSENT-251-2500

1

WEAPONS-MS-CARRYING PISTOL INF ALC-CONTRL SU

1
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7e
TITLE: Building Activity Report
PROPOSED MOTION: N/A
PREPARED BY: Jason Wagner, Interim Building Official
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
The attached April 2018 Building Activity Report is for informational purposes only.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1. April 2018 Building Activity Report
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Jan-18

Feb-18

Mar-18

Apr-18

2018-YTD

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
NUMBER OF BLDG. PERMITS

13

PROJECT VALUE

12

9

11

45

$2,276,265.00

$1,547,265.00

$534,500.00

$931,468.00

$5,289,498.00

BUILDING PERMIT FEE

$16,570.00

$12,942.75

$5,280.00

$8,581.00

$43,373.75

PLAN CHECK FEE

$10,496.35

$7,807.69

$2,618.16

$4,403.11

$25,325.31

EXTERIOR REPAIR
NUMBER OF PERMITS

44

PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

2

$1,998,122.38
$

28,045.00

6

$10,218.00
$

250.75

2

$88,422.00
$

1,519.75

54

$9,204.00
$

236.00

$2,105,966.38
$

30,051.50

MECHANICAL
NUMBER OF PERMITS
PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

15

24

17

164,684.84

263,524.00

258,075.00

114,930.00 $

14

801,213.84

70

3,226.72

5,244.34

5,173.60

2,310.60 $

15,955.26

PLUMBING
NUMBER OF PERMITS
PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE
TOTAL # OF PERMITS

13

19

14

13

59

$222,680.00

$204,904.88

$183,453.00

$181,270.71

$792,308.59

$4,503.60

$4,229.90

$3,708.86

$3,424.82

$15,867.18

85

57

46

40

188

$62,841.67

$30,475.43

$18,300.37

$18,955.53

$130,573.00

BUILDING

52

44

34

64

194

EXTERIOR

2

2

1

5

10

HVAC

42

25

48

33

148

PLUMBING

27

25

25

19

96

123

96

108

121

448

7

6

79

34

126

TOTAL INCOME

NUMBER OF INSPECTIONS

OTHER
TOTAL # OF INSPECTIONS

RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTIONS
INSPECTIONS
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7f
TITLE: Approval of Resolution No. 25-2018 Requesting Additional Time to Complete Comprehensive
Plan
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve Resolution No. 25-2018 Requesting Additional Time to Complete
Comprehensive Plan
PREPARED BY: Jeff Thomson, Director of Planning and Building
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the resolution requesting an extension from the Metropolitan
Council.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The extension request does not have any impact on the City’s budget.
BACKGROUND:
Minnesota Statutes require local governmental units to review and, if necessary, amend their entire
comprehensive plans and their fiscal devices and official controls at least once every ten years. This
is to ensure comprehensive plans conform with metropolitan system plans prepared by the
Metropolitan Council, and to ensure fiscal devices and official controls do not conflict with
comprehensive plans or permit activities that conflict with metropolitan system plans. The City is
required to complete its “decennial” reviews by December 31, 2018, within which the City must
allow adjacent and affected communities and jurisdictions six months to review the draft plan prior
the City Council’s final approval of the Comprehensive Plan.
Minnesota Statutes also authorizes the Metropolitan Council to grant extensions to local
governmental units to allow cities additional time within which to complete the Comprehensive
Plan. An application for an extension must be submitted to the Metropolitan Council by May 31,
2018, and must include a timetable and plan for completing the review and amendment.
Extension Request
Although the City will complete the Comprehensive Plan update by December 31st, the six month
review period by adjacent and affected communities and jurisdictions will not be completed within
this time period. Therefore, staff recommends that the City apply for an extension from the
Metropolitan Council until June 30, 2019. The extension will allow for the additional time for the
adjacent and affected community review.
Timetable and Plan
There have been no changes to the timeline previously discussed by the Council:
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Visioning
Introduction
Demographics, Social and Economic Trends
Community Vision
Comp Plan Chapters
Land Use
Housing
Transportation
Parks & Trails
Natural Resources & Resilience
Historic and Cultural Resource Preservation
Water Resources
Implementation
Draft Comprehensive Plan
Planning Commission Review
City Council Approval
Adjacent and Affected Jurisdictions Review
Final Adoption
Planning Commission Public Hearing
City Council Approval
Submission to Met Council

Completed

March – September 2018

October – November 2018
December 2018 – May 2019
June 2019
June 30, 2019

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Draft City Council Resolution No. 25-2018
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RESOLUTION NO. 25-2018
RESOLUTION REQUESTING ADDITIONAL TIME
TO COMPLETE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
“DECENNIAL” REVIEW AND UPDATE OBLIGATIONS
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes section 473.864 requires local governmental units
to review and, if necessary, amend their entire comprehensive plans and their fiscal
devices and official controls at least once every ten years to ensure comprehensive plans
conform with metropolitan system plans and ensure fiscal devices and official controls do
not conflict with comprehensive plans; and
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes sections 473.858 and 473.864 require local
governmental units to complete their “decennial” reviews by December 31, 2018; and
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes section 473.864 authorizes the Metropolitan Council
to grant extensions to local governmental units to allow local governmental units additional
time within which to complete the “decennial” review and amendments; and
WHEREAS, any extensions granted by the Metropolitan Council must include a
timetable and plan for completing the review and amendment; and
WHEREAS, at its January 10, 2018 meeting the Metropolitan Council authorized
its staff to administratively review and grant extensions if extension requests are
submitted by May 31, 2018; and
WHEREAS, extensions for completing decennial updates do not change any due
dates for surface water management plans or water supply plans; and
WHEREAS, the City will not be able to complete its “decennial” review by December
31, 2018 for the following reasons:
1.

Based on the importance of creating a shared community vision, the City
completed a comprehensive community visioning process, Wayzata 2040,
which was approved by the City Council in March 2018. The Wayzata 2040
visioning report, which included eight months of significant community
engagement and resulted in strong community support, is the foundation
for preparing the Comprehensive Plan to meet the minimum requirements
of the Metropolitan Council’s; and

2.

To continue the regular engagement, input, and direction of the advisory
committee, comprised of representatives from the City Council and all
boards and commissions, in which additional time is needed to schedule
ongoing meetings of the volunteer committee; and

05-15-2018CC PACKET
Page 41 of 146

3.

The desire of the City to prepare a Comprehensive Plan that goes above
and beyond the minimum requirements of Minnesota Statutes 473.864 to
ensure that the plan reflects all of the guiding principles outlined in the
Wayzata 2040 visioning report; and

4.

The desire of the City to ensure there is adequate time to continue the
community engagement for the draft Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is appropriate to request from the Metropolitan
Council an extension so the City can have additional time to complete and submit to the
Metropolitan Council for review an updated comprehensive plan and amend its fiscal
devices and official controls.
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Wayzata,
Minnesota that the City Manager is authorized and directed to submit to the Metropolitan
Council no later than May 31, 2018 a letter requesting an extension to June 2019.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager must include with the request
a reasonably detailed timetable and plan, as outlined in Attachment A, for completing the
review and amendment by June 2019.

Adopted by the Wayzata City Council this 15th day of May 2018.

Mayor Ken Willcox
ATTEST:

City Manager Jeffrey Dahl
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ACTION ON THIS RESOLUTION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution Adopted.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by
the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly authorized meeting held on
May 1, 2018.

__________________________________
Becky Malone, Deputy City Clerk
SEAL
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Attachment A
Planning Process Timeline
Process Step
Completion of draft plan text and mapping
Planning Commission review of draft plan
City Council approval of draft plan
Initiation of 6-month review/comment period by adjacent
jurisdictions, affected special districts, and school districts
Public hearing date
City Council action
Date of Submission to Metropolitan Council
Completion of fiscal devises and official controls
review/amendment

Target Date
September 2018
October 2018
November 2018
December 1, 2018
June 2019
June 2019
June 30, 2019
November 2018
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7g
TITLE: Accept Gerald Osband’s Resignation from the Heritage Preservation Board (HPB)
PROPOSED MOTION: To Accept the Resignation of Gerald Osband from the HPB
PREPARED BY: Jeff Thomson, Director of Planning and Building
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends acceptance of the attached resignation notice.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
Gerald Osband has submitted a resignation notice from the Heritage Preservation Board.
With Mr. Osband’s resignation, two of the five positions on the HPB will be vacant. The annual
application process for the City’s boards and commissions was completed at the end of 2017. City
staff has discussed the vacancies on the HPB and recruitment of additional members with the
president of the Wayzata Historical Society and the current chair of the HPB. If additional candidates
are identified that are interested in serving on the HPB, the City can open up the application process
for City Council interview and appointments to fill the vacancies.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resignation letter from Gerald Osband
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Jeff Thomson
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Jeff Thomson
Wednesday, May 9, 2018 9:28 PM
Jeff Thomson
FW: April 19, 2018 HPB Board Agenda

From: gerald osband [mailto:geosband@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, April 17, 2018 3:03 PM
To: Nate Leding <nateleding@gmail.com>
Cc: Jeffrey Buchanan <jeffbuchanan1@me.com>; Dan Gustafson (dan@wayzata.com) <dan@wayzata.com>; Jeff
Thomson <jthomson@wayzata.org>; Becky Malone <becky@wayzata.org>
Subject: Re: April 19, 2018 HPB Board Agenda

I am also unavailable this week. As my work load is increasingly busy, I will have to resign from this
Board. Sorry, Jerry

1

05-15-2018CC PACKET
Page 46 of 146

City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7h
TITLE: Authorize Ad for Bid for 2018 Mill & Overlay Project
PROPOSED MOTION: To Authorize Ad for Bid for 2018 Mill & Overlay Project
PREPARED BY: Mike Kelly, Interim Public Works Director/City Engineer
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
To authorize the Advertisement for Bid for the City’s 2018 Mill & Overlay project.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
This project is proposed to be funded through the use of the Street Capital Improvement Program
(CIP). The 2018 Mill & Overlay project is estimated at $300,000 and is proposed to be fully funded
from the CIP.
BACKGROUND:
The Public Works Department is proposing that the following streets be milled and overlaid as part of
City project STR-2018-02: Hollybrook Road, Lake Street W, Waycliffe Drive, and the Summit Park
cemetery roadway.
A location map and draft advertisements for each project are attached for reference.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Location Map for 2018 Mill & Overlay Project
2. Draft Advertisement for Bid - 2018 Mill & Overlay
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Path: T:\Engineering\Projects\Street Improvements\2018\2018-2 Wayzata Mill & Overlay\GIS\01 - Title Sheet.mxd
Date Saved: 4/27/2018 8:43:40 AM
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0

Location Map Sheet Number

I

12

4

WAYZATA
BAY

LAKE MINNETONKA

7
8
9

11

10

3. ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNING SHALL CONFORM TO THE MINNESOTA MANUAL ON
UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MMUTCD), CURRENT EDITION.

2. CITY ENGINEERS ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, 2013 EDITION.

1. THE 2018 EDITION OF THE MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS
FOR CONSTRUCTION:, THE 2018 EDITION OF THE "MATERIALS LAB SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR
CONSTRUCTION".

GOVERNING SPECIFICATIONS

5

6

CITY PROJECT STR - 2018 - 02

DRAWING SHEET INDEX
1
TITLE DRAWING
2
TYPICAL SECTIONS
3
DETAILS & NOTES
4-5
LAKE ST W
6 - 10 HOLLYBROOK RD
11
WAYCLIFFE DR
12
CEMETERY DRIVE

4/27/2018

NTS

DATE:
SCALE

City of Wayzata, MN

CITY PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME:

1 of 12

DRAWING NUMBER:

2018 BITUMINOUS MILL & OVERLAY
CITY PROJECT NO. 2018 - 02

Appr.
Date
Description
Symbol

2018 BITUMINOUS MILL & OVERLAY

Printed Name:

DESIGNED:

STR - 2018 - 02
CHECKED:

MICHAEL H. KELLY, JR

JLS
I hereby certify that this plan was prepared by me or under my
direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Professional
Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

DRAWN:
Licensed Professional Engineer

JLS
05/04/2018
Date:

40952
Lic. No.

MHK
Certified by:

DRAF
T

TITLE DRAWING

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS
2018 BITUMINOUS MILL & OVERLAY
CITY PROJECT NO. STR-2018-02
BIDS CLOSE JUNE 13, 2018
WAYZATA, MN.
NOTICE TO BIDDERS
Sealed bids will be received until 10:00 A.M. CDST on June 13th, 2018 by the City Engineer at
Wayzata City Hall, 600 Rice Street, Wayzata, MN 55391 for the Bituminous Mill & Overlay of
certain City streets in the City of Wayzata.
Approximate quantities are as follows:
Type SP 12.5 Wearing Course Mix (2,C)
Type SP 12.5 Non Wear Course Mix (2,C)
Bituminous Material for Tack Coat
Mill Bituminous Surface (1” to 4”)
Miscellaneous Curb Repairs
Miscellaneous Striping

1,640
450
1,350
17,150

Tons
Tons
Gallons
Sq Yd

All bids shall be submitted to the City Engineer, City of Wayzata, 600 Rice Street, Wayzata,
Minnesota 55391, and shall be in accordance with specifications on file in the office of the Director
of Public Service. All bids received after 10:00 A.M. CDST on June 13th, 2018 will be returned to
the bidder.
Bids will be opened and read publicly by the Wayzata City Engineer or his designated
representative, immediately after the hour set for receiving bids at City Hall, 600 Rice Street,
Wayzata, Minnesota 55391.
Complete digital contract bidding documents are available at www.QuestCDN.com. You may
download the digital plan documents for $20.00 by inputting QuestCDN project #5750601 on the
website’s Project Search page. Please contact QuestCDN.com at 952-233-1632 or
info@questcdn.com for assistance in free membership registration, downloading, and working
with this digital project information.
Proposals, Plans and Specifications may also be examined at the office of the City Engineer,
Wayzata Public Works, 299 Wayzata Blvd W., Wayzata, Minnesota 55391.
All bids shall be accompanied by a cashier’s check, certified check or bid bond payable to the
City of Wayzata for an amount no less than five percent (5%) of the bid. The City reserves the
right to reject any or all proposals, to waive informalities in the proposal procedure and to accept
any proposal deemed to be in the City’s best interest. No proposal may be withdrawn within thirty
days of the date of the bid opening.
Michael H. Kelly, Jr., P.E.
Director of Public Works

Published: Wayzata Sun-Sailor
Finance & Commerce

May 24, 2018
May 22 and 29, 2018
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7i
TITLE: Approval of Amended Contract with Stantec for 2040 Comp Plan Services
PROPOSED MOTION/S: To Approve the Amended Contract with Stantec for 2040 Comp Plan Services
PREPARED BY: Mike Kelly, Interim Public Works Director/City Engineer
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED: Staff recommends that the City Council approve amended contract with
Stantec for 2040 Comprehensive Plan services.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
At the March 20 City Council meeting, the Council approved several consultant proposals for
services related to the preparation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The approved contracts were
to be paid from the Comp Plan Fund and the Water and Sewer Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).
These funds cover the cost of the previously approved contracts, with a $36,000 balance remaining
in the Comp Plan fund to pay for additional future services. The attached proposal includes services
related to the update of the City’s DNR Water Supply Plan and can be funded from the remaining
Comp Plan Fund balance.
Comp Plan Chapter
DNR Water Supply Plan

Consultant
Stantec

Cost
$8,660

Fund
Comp Plan Fund

BACKGROUND:
At the Council meeting on March 20, the City Council approved two proposals from Stantec for the
update of the Water System Plan and Sewer Comprehensive Plan. Staff mistakenly forgot to include
the proposal for updating the City’s DNR Water Supply Plan. The DNR Water Supply Plan is an
integral component of the City’s overall Comprehensive Plan. A copy of the proposal is attached for
reference, as an exhibit to the revised Professional Services Agreement.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Revised, Draft Contract for Professional Services between the City of Wayzata and Stantec
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CITY OF WAYZATA
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made effective
____________, 2018 (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the
“City”) and Stantec Consulting Services Inc., 2335 Highway 36 West, St. Paul MN 55113
(“Contractor”) for the professional services and related deliverables described herein, and contains
the terms and conditions applicable to all of Contractor’s services and associated deliverables for
the City.
In consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties
agree as follows:
I.
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND DELIVERABLES
Contractor will provide the professional services and deliverables (collectively, the “Services”)
that are described in the March 9, 2018 Stantec Proposal for City of Wayzata Water Supply Master
Plan, and the March 9, 2018 Stantec Proposal for City of Wayzata Comprehensive Sewer Plan,
each attached hereto as Attachment A (the “Statement of Work”), according to the project team,
project scope, services descriptions, deliverables, timeline, and other terms therein, and in
accordance with best practices and industry standards.
II.

PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES
A.
B.

City’s main point of contact shall be the City Manager.
Contractor’s main point of contact for the Services shall be _____________.

III.
COMPENSATION AND BILLING
As consideration for the provision of the Services and all costs associated therewith, the City agrees
to pay the Contractor on an hourly basis for the actual time expended subject to the not to exceed
estimate below. Other direct project expenses, will be billed at costs in accordance with the
Statement of Work. Notwithstanding the foregoing, payment for the Services shall not exceed
Contractor’s estimates of a total of twenty-nine thousand seven hundred ($29,700) for the Services
related to the Water System Master Plan, thirty-two thousand eight hundred dollars ($32,800) for
the Services related to the Comprehensive Sewer Plan, and eight thousand six hundred sixty dollars
($8,660) for Services related to the DNR Water Supply Plan, which includes both time and
expenses, as outlined in the Statement of Work.
Contractor will invoice the City monthly for the Services provided in accordance with Agreement,
and include with such invoices detailed descriptions of the Services provided by the Contractor to
the City. City shall pay Contractor for all undisputed invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt of
such invoices.
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IV.
CHANGE OF SCOPE OF SERVICES
City may request, and Contractor may suggest, changes or additions to the Services. In such event,
City and Contractor will work together on the details of such changes (including any adjustments
to Contractor’s compensation and the specifications, timeline and deliverables described in
Attachment A), and if agreed upon in writing by both City and Contractor, such changes shall be
an amendment to this Agreement.
V.
INSURANCE
Contractor, at its expense, shall procure and maintain in force for the duration of this Agreement
the following minimum insurance coverages:
A.
General Liability. Contractor agrees to maintain commercial general liability
insurance in a minimum amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence; $2,000,000 annual
aggregate. The policy shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, products
completed operations, personal injury, advertising injury, and contractually assumed
liability. City shall be endorsed as additional insured.
B.
Automobile Liability. If Contractor operates a motor vehicle in performing the
Services under this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain commercial automobile liability
insurance, including owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles, with a minimum liability
limit of $1,000,000 combined single limit.
C.
Professional (Errors and Omissions) Liability Insurance. Contractor will
maintain professional liability insurance for all claims Contractor may become legally
obligated to pay resulting from any actual or alleged negligent act, error, or omission
related to Contractor’s professional services required under this Agreement. Contractor is
required to carry the following minimum limits: $1,000,000 per claim; $2,000,000 annual
aggregate. The retroactive or prior acts date of such coverage shall not be after the Effective
Date, and Contractor shall maintain such insurance for a period of at least three (3) years
following completion of the Services. If such insurance is discontinued, extended reporting
period coverage must be obtained by Contractor to fulfill this requirement.
D.
Workers’ Compensation. Contractor agrees to provide workers’ compensation
insurance for all its employees in accordance with the statutory requirements of the State
of Minnesota. Contractor shall also carry employers’ liability coverage with minimum
limits as follows: (i) $500,000 – Bodily Injury by Disease per employee; (ii) $500,000 –
Bodily Injury by Disease aggregate; and (iii) $500,000 – Bodily Injury by Accident.
Contractor shall, prior to commencing the Services, deliver to the City a Certificate of Insurance
as evidence that the above coverages are in full force and effect. The insurance requirements may
be met through any combination of primary and umbrella/excess insurance. Contractor’s policies
shall be the primary insurance to any other valid and collectible insurance available to City with
respect to any claim arising out of Contractor’s performance under this Agreement. Contractor’s
policies and Certificate of Insurance shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under the
policies shall not be cancelled without at least thirty (30) days advanced written notice to the City.
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VI.
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP
City and Contractor agree that Contractor is an “independent contractor” and not an employee of
City. Contractor shall be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors in connection with the Services. Contractor shall be
responsible for the compensation and benefits of Contractor’s employees and for payment of all
federal, state and local taxes payable with respect to any amounts paid to Contractor under this
Agreement. No payroll or employment taxes of any kind shall be withheld or paid by City with
respect to payments to Contractor, including but not limited to, FICA, FUTA, federal and state
personal income tax, state disability insurance tax and state unemployment tax. Contractor shall
not be entitled to any benefits from City, including, without limitation, insurance benefits, sick and
vacation leave, workers’ compensation benefits, unemployment compensation, disability,
severance pay, or retirement benefits.
VII. TERMINATION
This Agreement shall continue in effect until terminated by either party upon such party giving the
other no less than 30 days prior written notice of termination. Termination of this Agreement for
any reason shall not affect any provision of this Agreement that by its nature is intended to survive
termination.
VIII. OTHER TERMS
A.
Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement and the attachments
referenced herein represent the entire agreement between Contractor and City. Any terms
in attachments which conflict with the main body of this Agreement shall be limited,
controlled and superseded by the terms in the main body of this Agreement. This
Agreement supersedes any prior or contemporaneous representations or agreements, either
written or oral. No amendment or modification of the terms of this Agreement, except as
may be expressly authorized herein, may be made and will not be effective unless agreed
upon in writing by City and Contractor.
B.
Assignability. The rights and obligations of Contractor under this Agreement shall
not be assignable or transferable without the prior written approval of the City.
C.
Compliance of all Laws; Ability to Perform; Representations. Contractor shall
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, codes,
ordinances and orders. Contractor has in effect and will maintain in effect all permits,
licenses, and other authorizations necessary for the performance of the Services. Contractor
is not aware of any fact or circumstance which would prevent Contractor from performing
in accordance with this Agreement. Contractor represents and warrants that Contractor has
the requisite training, skills, and experience necessary to provide the Services contemplated
by this Agreement, and that the Services will be performed using personnel, equipment,
and material qualified and suitable to perform the Services requested. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for its negligent acts, errors and omissions while performing Services
under this Agreement. Contractor will perform the Services with reasonable care and skill,
in a diligent and professional manner and in accordance with accepted professional
practices and industry standards.
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D.
Assurances and Indemnification. Contractor assures the City, and represents and
warrants, that the information it has provided in its Statement of Work is accurate and not
misleading in any material respect. Contractor shall indemnify City, its employees,
officials, and agents, against all claims, demands and actions, and all related costs and
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) for injury, death, disability or illness of any
person, or damage to property, arising out of the negligent performance of the Services or
any breach of any representation or term of this Agreement by Contractor.
E.
Payment of Others. Contractor shall pay all of Contractor’s employees, agents,
and subcontractors furnishing services, labor, equipment, or materials incidental to the
performance of Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement.
F.
Rights in Deliverables. All deliverables associated with the Services, and all data,
information, ideas, designs, plans and creative works associated therewith, shall be the
exclusive property of City, including all intellectual property rights therein. City and
Contractor agree that such are works made for hire for City, and to the extent they do not
qualify as such, Contractor hereby assigns all rights therein to City.
G.
Contractor’s Obligations Upon Termination. Upon the expiration or termination
of this Agreement, Contractor shall furnish City with all deliverables and work in progress
associated with the Services as of the effective date of termination. City shall have the
unfettered right and freedom to use all such deliverables and work in progress as it sees fit,
and to hire third parties to complete all outstanding Services as of the effective date of
termination.
H.
Headings. The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of
reference and shall be given no effect in the construction or interpretation of this
Agreement.
I.
Notices. All notices or communications relating to this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed given upon hand delivery or deposit in the United States mail,
return receipt requested, and addressed as follows:
To the City:
Wayzata City Hall
600 East Rice Street
Wayzata, MN 55391
Attention: City Manager

To Contractor:
Stantec Consulting Services Inc.
2335 Highway 36 West, St. Paul
MN 55113
Attention:_________________

J.
Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Data Practices Act. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota. The parties
agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Minnesota, and that any
litigation regarding this Agreement will be brought in the state or federal courts that lie in
Hennepin County, Minnesota. Contractor agrees to abide by the applicable provisions of
the Minnesota Government Data Practice Act, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13. Contractor
understands that all of the data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or
disseminated by Contractor in performing those functions that the City would perform is
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subject to the requirements of Chapter 13, and Contractor must comply with those
requirements as if it were a government entity. This does not create a duty on the part of
Contractor to provide the public with access to public data if the public data is available
from the City, except as required by the terms of this Agreement.
K.
Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach or failure to comply with any
provision of this Agreement by the other party shall not be construed as or constitute a
continuing waiver of such provision or a waiver of any other breach of or failure to comply
with any other provision of this Agreement.
L.
Savings Clause. If any court finds any portion of this Agreement to be contrary to
law, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force
and effect.
M.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the
same document.
N.
Limitation of Liability, Consequential Damages. The Contractor's and its
employees' aggregate liability to the City for any and all claims, losses or damages
arising out of any Project or this Agreement for any cause shall be an amount equal to the
amount of insurance required by Article V of this Agreement. This limitation shall apply
regardless of the cause of action or legal theory pled or asserted.
Neither the City nor the Contractor shall be liable to the other for any consequential
damages incurred due to the fault of the other or their agents. Consequential damages
include, but are not limited to, loss of use and loss of profit.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.
CITY:

CONTRACTOR:

City of Wayzata, a Minnesota Municipal
corporation

Stantec Consulting Services Inc.

By: __________________________
Kenneth Willcox, Mayor

By: __________________________
Name: ________________________
Title: _________________________

By: __________________________
Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
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ATTACHMENT A
STATEMENT OF WORK
March 9, 2018 Stantec Proposal for City of Wayzata Water Supply Master Plan; and
March 9, 2018 Stantec Proposal for City of Wayzata Comprehensive Sewer Plan
March 9, 2018 Stantec Proposal for City of Wayzata DNR Water Supply Plan
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Stantec Consulting Services Inc.
2335 Highway 36 West, St. Paul MN 55113

March 9, 2018
File: 1938---Attention: Michael Kelly
City Engineer/Assistant Director of Public Services
City of Wayzata
299 Wayzata Blvd. West
Wayzata, MN 55391
Reference: City of Wayzata Water Supply Master Plan
Dear Mike,
Thank you for the opportunity to serve the City of Wayzata by completing an updated Water
System Master Plan. This letter presents Stantec’s proposal for engineering services based on the
task list as detailed below.
The master plan effort will include updating and improving the hydraulic model, analyzing the
existing water system, evaluation of previous recommended trunk water main changes, and
reviewing future water system growth. The proposed future water system evaluation will be based
on future growth projections from the new City Comprehensive Plan. We look forward to working
with City to update and improve upon the previous water system evaluations completed for
Wayzata.
WATER SYSTEM MASTER PLAN TASKS
1. PROJECT INITIATION AND MANAGEMENT
a. If needed, Stantec staff is available to fine tune the City’s needs, expectations, and
confirm the work plan that was discussed during in a meeting on February 27, 2018.
b. One progress meeting to review design and future water demands, discuss existing water
system evaluation, and evaluation of future growth areas defined by City and/or
Comprehensive planning.
2. UPDATE EXISTING WATER SYSTEM MODEL
a. Update water system pipes, pumps, storage, etc. as required
b. Verify that all water mains 4 inch and larger are included in the hydraulic model
c. Review recent capital improvements to ensure hydraulic model is operationally current
d. Update water system demands (described below)
e. Field testing and model calibration based on two days of field testing and up to four days
of hydraulic model calibration (optional project task with separate task budget)
3. DETERMINE DESIGN WATER SYSTEM DEMANDS FOR EVALUATIONS
a. Review last 10 years’ water demands and population data from Water Supply Plan
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March 9, 2018
Mike Kelly
Page 2 of 3
Reference: City of Wayzata Water Supply Master Plan

b. Review unaccounted for water include its impact on pumpage, usage and other
operational items
c. Include ISO Needed Fire Flow Demands at documented locations throughout the City
d. Reallocate water demands using actual 2017 average day water usage from billing data.
Water usage will be spatially assigned based on parcel tax id and then assigned to nearest
model point
e. Review the large water users for accuracy in hydraulic model
f.

Project future water demand based on City 2040 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Plan

4. EXISTING WATER SYSTEM ANALYSIS
a. Evaluate water system hydraulic model for water pressure and available fire flow
b. Develop report figures to illustrate water system pressures, recommended fire flow by land
use and where appropriate ISO needed fire flows, are adequate
c. Review existing water system supply and storage needs
d. Evaluate all previously proposed trunk water main improvements within existing system in
conjunction with future water system improvements
e. Summarize completed evaluations and then meet with the City to review design and
future water demand projections, evaluations, and draft figures.
5. PROPOSED FUTURE WATER SYSTEM ANALYSIS
a. Investigate and determine improvements necessary to improve existing system
b. Determine proposed future demands and requite improvements based on future system
growth in areas currently targeted by the City; including previously proposed
improvements within the existing system.
c. Additionally, we will include potential redevelopment of the west Wayzata Boulevard
commercial district
d. Review and propose future water system supply and storage needs
e. Review and propose future trunk water distribution system improvements
f.

Develop report figures to illustrate water system pressures, recommended fire flow,
available fire flow, and adequacy

g. Stantec will detail capital improvements with phasing and budget costs based on
discussion with the City
6. WATER SUPPLY AND DISTRIBUTION PLAN REPORT DELIVERABLE
a. Provide City with a draft water plan including all analysis completed for review and
comment
b. Incorporate figures and graphics as appropriate.
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Mike Kelly
Page 3 of 3
Reference: City of Wayzata Water Supply Master Plan

c. Finalize water system master plan document based on City comments
d. Provide up to 4 final hard copies and an electronic copy to City at completion and
incorporation of the draft review and updating
e. Coordinate and work with the City’s Comprehensive Planner to develop the Water Plan
Element of Wayzata’s Comprehensive Plan as required by the Metropolitan Land Planning
Act.
COMPENSATION AND SCHEDULE
Stantec proposes to provide the City of Wayzata with professional engineering services required to
provide the services described herein regarding the water system master plan. Upon receiving
authorization to proceed with the project, Stantec will set up a kickoff meeting (if desired) and
commence data collection and model updating. Stantec anticipates providing the completed
draft water master plan for City review within four months of the authorization to proceed. We
would be happy to adjust our schedule to meet the needs of the City. The team providing services
will include Jason K. Bordewyk as project manager and engineer and Mark Rolfs for technical
oversight and Kurt Johnson for quality control.
Stantec will provide services on an hourly basis and estimates the level of effort required to be
$29,700 in accordance with the above work plan. Reimbursable expenses are included in this
proposed figure. Stantec will not exceed the hourly amount without further authorization from you.
Additionally, field testing and hydraulic model calibration is not included in the project at this time,
but could be added for $8,500.
Stantec will also provide services to coordinate with the City’s Planer to develop the Water
Element of Wayzata’s Comprehensive Plan. It is anticipated that the Executive Summary of this
report can be used primarily for the Water Element of Wayzata’s Comprehensive Plan.
This letter represents the understanding between the City and Stantec in respect to the Project
and may only be modified in writing signed by both of us and is subject to the current Master
Services Agreement between the City of Wayzata and Stantec. If this letter satisfactorily sets forth
the conditions of our Agreement, please sign in the space below and return one copy to our
office. We very much appreciate the opportunity to provide these services.
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC.

CITY OF WAYZATA

___________________________________
Kenneth P. Anderson, PE
Principal

_______________________________________
By

___________________________________
Mark R. Rolfs, PE
Project Manager

_______________________________________
Print Name and Title
_________________________
Date
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Stantec Consulting Services Inc.

2335 Highway 36 West, St. Paul MN 55113

March 9, 2018
File: 1938Attention: Michael Kelly
City Engineer/Assistant Director of Public Works
City of Wayzata
299 Wayzata Blvd. West
Wayzata, MN 55391
Reference: City of Wayzata Comprehensive Sewer Plan
Dear Mike,
It was nice meeting with you recently to discuss the Comprehensive Sewer Plan for the City of
Wayzata. The CSP is required by the Met Council as part of overall comprehensive plan updates
this year, and it will also update sewer planning for the potential growth in the City that you
discussed. The Executive Summary from the CSP along with a reference to the report can also be
included as the wastewater element of the Water Resources chapter of the overall
Comprehensive Plan. This letter presents Stantec’s proposal for engineering services based on the
task list detailed below.
The plan will focus on creating a sewer model, analyzing the existing trunk sewer system, reviewing
sewer system capacity for potential future growth, and addressing infiltration/inflow (I/I) in the
system. We anticipate creating a rather coarse model of the trunk system for the majority of the
City to meet Met Council requirements, with finer modeling in specific potential future growth
areas that you identify to determine if there are capacity constraints.
COMPREHENSIVE SEWER PLAN TASKS
1. PROJECT INITIATION/MANAGEMENT
a. If desired, hold a kickoff meeting with City staff to discuss the City’s needs, refine study
goals and expectations, and confirm the work plan for the project. We had a good
discussion in our recent meeting but have budgeted for a kickoff meeting if you’d like to
go over the scope, schedule, budget, and deliverables before we begin the analysis.
b. Schedule a progress meeting. We have budgeted for one progress meeting during the
project. This would probably be following the modeling of the system under potential
future growth scenarios or at the draft report stage.
2. DATA COLLECTION
a. Various data will be needed for the study. This could include (electronic data preferred):
1) System mapping, topography, and aerial photography
2) Physical system data (pipe lengths, sizes, and invert elevations; lift station and
forcemain data)
3) Past studies and reports
4) I/I data, ordinances and policies, and implementation activities
5) Water use and connection data
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6) Latest land use, from the Comprehensive Plan update
7) Potential future growth areas
8) Capital improvement plan that includes a proposed time schedule for the construction
of new trunk sewers
9) Known surcharges or other problem areas
3. DEVELOP DESIGN SEWER FLOWS
a. Use past studies, topographic contour data, and sanitary sewer base mapping to develop
sewer subdistrict boundaries.
b. Use land use categories and densities from the City, existing water use and connection
data, and industry standard values to develop unit wastewater flow rates by land use in
the City.
c. Compute average sewer flows by subdistrict using the sewer subdistrict boundaries, land
use mapping, and unit flow rates. Create a sanitary sewer spreadsheet model to perform
the computations. Develop average flows for the full-buildout scenario.
d. Develop peak flow factors based on existing infiltration/inflow data and industry standard
values. Use peak flow factors to compute design peak flows throughout the trunk sewer
system. Perform the computations using the spreadsheet model. Develop design peak
flows for the full-buildout scenario.
4. EXISTING SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM ANALYSIS
a. Analyze the capacity of the existing trunk sewer system, based on the existing system
information—sizes, lengths, invert elevations, slopes, and depths. Compare with the
proposed design flows at full buildout. Use the spreadsheet model for this purpose. Create
a relatively coarse-scale model for the majority of the City. Create finer-scale modeling for
specific growth areas identified by City staff (see Item 5 below).
b. Identify any bottlenecks and propose improvements to address problem areas.
5. SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM ANALYSIS OF POTENTIAL GROWTH AREAS
a. City staffed have indicated that specific areas of the City have potential for growth or
higher-density redevelopment. Create a finer-scale sewer spreadsheet model to evaluate
these areas.
b. Use the spreadsheet model to size the gravity pipes, lift stations, and forcemains for
growth/redevelopment scenarios for up to five growth areas. Design flows will be
computed as described above. The model will compute pipe sizes throughout the trunk
system necessary to handle the potential design flows from these growth areas.
c. Identify sewer system improvements needed to meet specific growth scenarios.
6. INFILTRATION/INFLOW ASSESSMENT
a. Based on Metropolitan Council requirements, review the I/I section of the plan and update
the section to define the City’s goals, policies, and strategies for preventing and reducing
excessive I/I in the local sewer system. As noted in our meeting, this part of Met Council
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requirements has significantly grown since the last CSP. We assume that a summary of I/I
data, monitoring, reports, ordinances and policies, recent implementation activities, and
other information necessary to complete this section of the report will be provided by the
City. The information needed for the report will include:
1) Defining the requirements and standards for minimizing I/I and for the disconnection of
sump pump, foundation drain, and/or rain leader connections to the sanitary sewer
system;
2) Referencing your local ordinance that prohibits the discharge of sump pumps,
foundation drains, and/or rain leaders to the sanitary disposal system as well as
requiring the disconnection of these items to the sanitary sewer system;
3) Including a summary of activities and/or programs related to I/I source mitigation on
private sewer services;
4) Describing the extent, source, and significance of existing I/I problems in your
community;
5) Analyzing the costs to remediate the I/I issues that have been identified; and
6) Creating an implementation plan that contains a program strategy, priorities,
scheduling, and financing mechanisms for eliminating and preventing excessive I/I
from entering the sanitary sewer system.
b. We will look for the City to provide available I/I information for us to craft into a report
narrative that meets Met Council requirements.
7. COMPREHENSIVE SEWER PLAN REPORT
a. Prepare a user-friendly report that can be read by a non-technical audience yet still
provides sufficiently detailed technical data for use by the City in sewer planning.
b. Include graphics, figures, and maps to clarify items discussed in the report.
c. Provide draft and final reports as follows:
1) First draft for City staff review
2) Second draft for submittal to Metropolitan Council
3) Final report for City approval and use
4) Executive Summary for incorporation into overall Comprehensive Plan
d. Present the results of the report at a City Council or other public meeting, at the City’s
direction.
COMPENSATION AND SCHEDULE
Stantec proposes to provide the City of Wayzata with professional engineering services required
to provide the services described herein regarding the comprehensive sewer plan. Upon
receiving authorization to proceed with the project, Stantec will set up a kickoff meeting (if
desired) and commence data collection and model updating. Stantec anticipates providing
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the completed, draft comprehensive sewer plan for City review within four months of the
authorization to proceed. We would be happy to adjust our schedule to meet the needs of the
City.
Stantec will provide services on an hourly basis and estimates the level of effort required to be
$32,800 in accordance with the above work plan. Reimbursable expenses are included in this
proposed figure. Stantec will not exceed the hourly amount without further authorization from
you.
This letter represents the understanding between the City and Stantec in respect to the Project
and may only be modified in writing signed by both of us and is subject to the current Master
Services Agreement between the City of Wayzata and Stantec.
If this letter satisfactorily sets forth the conditions of our Agreement, please sign in the space
below and return one copy to our office. We very much appreciate the opportunity to provide
these services.
Please contact us if you have any specific questions; either Ken Anderson at 651.604.4826 or Dan
Edgerton at 651.604.4820.

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC.

CITY OF WAYZATA

_____________________________________

________________________________________

Kenneth P. Anderson, PE
Principal

By
________________________________________
Print Name and Title

_____________________________________
Dan Edgerton, PE
Project Manager

_________________________
Date
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Stantec Consulting Services Inc.
2335 Highway 36 West, St. Paul MN 55113

March 9, 2018
File: 1938---Attention: Michael Kelly
City Engineer/Assistant Director of Public Services
City of Wayzata
299 Wayzata Blvd. West
Wayzata, MN 55391
Reference: City of Wayzata Water Supply Plan
Dear Mike,
Thank you for the opportunity to serve the City of Wayzata by assisting with the completion of your
Minnesota DNR Water Supply Plan. This letter presents Stantec’s proposal for engineering services
based on the task list as detailed below. Stantec will provide a completed Water Supply Plan
Template based on data and guidance provided by the City.
Completion of the Water Supply Plan (Plan) will need to be a collaborative effort between the
City of Wayzata and Stantec. Stantec will update the Plan template with as much information as
we have available. A large number of the required tables in the Plan are strictly data entry that
will need to be completed by City staff. Then Stantec can complete evaluations, projections, and
recommendations as detailed in the tasks below. A meeting with City staff to finalize emergency
response, conservation projects, and other Plan elements is recommended.
A key component of the new DNR Water Supply Plan template is to address the sustainability of
the aquifer(s) serving the City’s wells. As water use conflicts have arisen in recent years, the plan
requires that aquifer sustainability (along with impacts to natural resources) be addressed. Even
cities with no known current water use conflicts will be required to develop a monitoring plan to
ensure that sustainability goals are being met over the next decade.
PROJECT TASKS
To complete the Water Supply Plan, Stantec will complete the follow tasks:
1. Update the Plan template for Wayzata for data entry and provide to the City.
2. Answer questions from the City regarding data entry as needed. Then review the Plan as
completed by the City, facilitate additional data entry as needed, and compile
Appendices.
3. Complete water demand trends and projections, per capita water demand graphs,
demand triggers and priorities, general capital improvement planning, etc.
4. Stantec will assess the available data on the sustainability of the resources supplying the
City, including reviewing water levels from monitoring wells and other observation points.
Summary of observed trends in aquifer levels and any monitored natural resources will be
provided.
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5. Meet with City staff to review draft Plan including suggestions for future water sources,
water use priorities and demand reductions, and conservation measures.
6. Finalize Plan based on City input and provide to the City for submission to DNR.
Tasks not included in this proposal:
1. If the City’s water level monitoring plan for Appendix 2 is not sufficient to meet DNR
requirements, developing a new groundwater monitoring plan is additional services.
2. Stantec will also not develop a detailed water system Capital Improvements Plan through
2040 but will assist City with general water system planning to complete Table 12.
Stantec can expand this task list to assist the City with additional tasks if requested.
DATA NEEDS
To complete the Water Supply Plan, a large number of the required tables in the Plan are strictly
data entry that will need to be completed by City staff. City staff will need to complete the data
in the template word document. The attached Water Supply Plan template is highlighted to
identify the City responsibilities below. The attached template was the original version, Stantec will
complete all work in the newer template released in 2017.
1. Tables highlighted yellow identify data entry to be completed by the City. (For example,
Table 2 – Historic Water Demand)
2. Tables highlighted green are tables which Stantec will start and provide to the City to
review, update, and complete. (e.g. Table 6 – Water Sources)
3. Tables highlighted magenta are tables were Stantec can provide suggestions or examples
for City to consider, but the City will need to review and determine the City’s decision.
(e.g. Table 18 – Water Use Priorities)
COMPENSATION AND SCHEDULE
Stantec proposes to provide the City of Wayzata with professional engineering services required to
provide the tasks described herein. Stantec will provide services on an hourly basis and estimates
the level of effort required to not exceed $8,660. Reimbursable expenses are included in this
proposed figure. Stantec will bill our time in accordance with the rate schedule utilized in the
master agreement with the City of Wayzata. Stantec will not exceed the hourly amount without
further authorization from you.
The DNR requires the City of Wayzata Water Supply Plan be submitted through the MN DNR
Permitting and Reporting System (MPARS) by October 15, 2018. Stantec will begin work once the
proposal is accepted and provide an updated template to the City for the additional data entry
within approximately one month. Typically, a three month period is sufficient to complete the Plan.
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We are truly grateful for this opportunity to be of service to you and the City. Please contact us if
you have any specific questions; either Jason Bordewyk at 651.967.4568 or Mark Janovec at
651.604.4831. If this agreement is acceptable, please sign below and return a copy to us. Thank
you.
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC.

CITY OF WAYZATA

___________________________________
Kenneth P. Anderson, PE
Principal

_______________________________________
By

___________________________________
Mark R. Rolfs, PE
Project Manager

_______________________________________
Print Name and Title
_________________________
Date
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7j
TITLE: Approval of Resolution No. 26-2018 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for a Fence at 433
Bushaway Road
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve Resolution No. 26-2018 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for a
Fence at 433 Bushaway Road
PREPARED BY: Jeff Thomson, Director of Planning and Building
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
The City Council should adopt the resolution approving the development application, as
recommended by the Planning Commission.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The development application does not have any impact on the City’s 2018 general fund budget.
BACKGROUND:
Application Overview
Home builder, Steiner Koppelman, and property owners, Allan and Stacey Bly, have submitted a
development application to construct an 8-foot tall entry gate in the front yard of the property at
433 Bushaway Road. The development application requests approval of a conditional use permit for
a fence taller than 42 inches in the front yard.
Planning Commission Review
The Planning Commission reviewed the development application and held a public hearing at its
meeting on April 2, 2018. Based on the Planning Commission’s concerns, the applicant submitted
revised plans for the fence/entry gate, which the Planning Commission reviewed at its meeting on
April 16, 2018. After discussing the application, the Planning Commission voted five (5) in favor and
zero (0) opposed to adopt a report and recommendation of approval of the development
application.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. April 16, 2018 Staff Report
2. Proposed plans
3. Public Comments
4. April 2, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
5. April 16, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
6. Draft Resolution No. 26-2018
7. Planning Commission Report and Recommendation
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Staff Report
April 16, 2018
Project Name:

Bly Fence

Addresses of Request:

433 Bushaway Rd

Prepared by:

Jeff Thomson, Director of Planning and Building

“60 Day” Deadline:

April 28, 2018

Development Application
Introduction
Steiner Koppelman and the property owners, Allan and Stacey Bly, have submitted a
development application to construct an 8-foot tall entry gate in the front yard of the
property at 433 Bushaway Road.
Previous Planning Commission Review
The Planning Commission reviewed the development application and held a public
hearing at its meeting on April 2, 2018. At the meeting, there was a discrepancy on the
plans as to whether the stone wall along the front property line was a fence/wall or a
retaining wall. Since the Planning Commission meeting, the applicant submitted revised
plans that reduce the height of the wall along the south side of the driveway. With the
revisions, the walls on both side of the driveway are retaining earth, and are consistent
with the approved grading plan. Therefore the stone retaining walls are not subject to the
City’s fence requirements. The only item on the revised plans that requires the conditional
use permit is the iron gate across the driveway, which would be up to 8 feet in height, but
meets the 50% openness requirement of the fence ordinance.
Property Information
The property identification number and owner of the property are as follows:
Address
433 Bushaway Rd

PID
08-117-22-22-0007

Owner
Allan and Stacey Bly

The current zoning and comprehensive plan land use designation for the property are as
follows:
Current zoning:
Comp plan designation:

R-1A/Low Density Single Family Residential District
Estate Single Family
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Overlay districts:

S/Shoreland and FP/Floodplain

Project Location
The property is located on the west side of Bushaway Rd between McGinty Rd and Locust
Hills Trail:

Map 1: Project Location

Application Requests
As part of the submitted development application, the applicant is requesting approval of
the following item:
A. Conditional use permit: The applicant is proposing to construct an eight-foot tall
gate on the front of the property along Bushaway Rd. Fences located in the
front yard that exceed 42 inches in height require a conditional use permit.
Adjacent Land Uses.
The following table outlines the uses, zoning, and Comprehensive Plan land use
designations for adjacent properties:
Direction

Adjacent Use

North

Single-family home

East

Bushaway Rd
Locust Hills

Comp Plan Land Use
Designation
R-1A/Low Density Single Estate Single Family
Family Residential
District
N/A
N/A
Zoning

PUD/Planned Unit
Development

Estate Single Family
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South

West

Lake Minnetonka

N/A

Single-family home

R-1A/Low Density Single Estate Single Family
Family Residential
District
N/A
N/A

Lake Minnetonka

N/A

Map 2: Adjacent Land Uses
Zoning

Comp Plan Land Use Designation

Public Hearing Notice
The public hearing notice was published in the Wayzata Sun Sailor on March 22, 2018.
The public hearing notice was also mailed to all property owners located within 350 feet
of the subject property on March 22, 2018. The public hearing was held at the April 2,
2018 Planning Commission meeting.
Analysis of Application
Background Information
In 2013, the previous house that was located on the property was demolished, and in
2016 the City issued a building permit for a new house to be constructed on the property.
The new house meets all of the zoning ordinance requirements for the R-1A and overlay
zoning districts. As part of the home construction, the applicant constructed a retaining
wall along the front of the property that varies in height from five to seven feet, which
meets the City’s zoning requirements. The zoning ordinance does not provide setback
requirements or height restrictions for retaining walls.
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Fence Requirements
The City’s zoning regulations include specific requiremets for fences that are based on
the location of the fence on the property. In the front yard, defined as the area between
the house and the street, a fence with a maximum height of 42-inches and a maximum
opaquness of 50 percent is permiited. In the side yard – the area between the front and
back of the house – a fence with a maximum height of six feet and a maximum
opaqueness of 50 percent is permitted. Finally, in the rear yard – the area between the
house and the rear property line – a fence with a maximum height of six feet is permiited
with no opaqueness requirement. The City’s fence requirements also state that fences in
the front yard that consit of more than 50 pecent solid matter and not exceeding eight feet
in height are allowed by conditional use permt.
Applicable Code Provisions for Review
Conditional Use Permit for a Fence: City Code Section 801.18.1.F.2 outlines the following
standards for evaluating fence conditional use permits:
A. The fence placement, height or design does not create a safety hazard with
regard to, from or on a public street or roadway.
B. The fence placement, height or design does not create a safety problem or
negatively affect adjoining properties or use.
C. The provisions of Section 801.04.2.G of this Ordinance are considered and
satisfactorily met.
Conditional Use Permits: City Code Section 801.04.2.F. states that the Planning
Commission and City Council shall consider possible adverse effects of the proposed
conditional use. Their judgment shall be based upon (but not limited to) the following
factors:
A. The proposed action in relation to the specific policies and provisions of the
official City Comprehensive Plan.
B. The proposed use's compatibility with present and future uses of the area.
C. The proposed use's conformity with all performance standards contained
herein (i.e., parking, loading, noise, etc.).
D. The proposed use's effect on the area in which it is proposed.
E. The proposed use's impact upon property values in the area in which it is
developed.
F. Traffic generated by the proposed use is in relation to capabilities of streets
serving the property.
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G. The proposed use's impact upon existing public services and facilities including
parks, schools, streets and utilities, and the City's service capacity.
Public Comments
The City received several public comments regarding the development application, which
are attached to this report.
Planning Commission Action
After discussing the application on April 2nd, the Planning Commission voted five (5) in
favor and zero (0) opposed to direct staff to prepare a report and recommendation of
denial of the development application for adoption at the next Planning Commission
meeting. City Staff has drafted the attached Planning Commission Report and
Recommendation which recommends denial of the development application.
Attachments
Revised Plans
Public Comments
Draft Planning Commission Report and Recommendation
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Jeff Thomson
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Jim Corwin <jcorwin@csiergonomics.com>
Monday, April 2, 2018 3:40 PM
Jeff Thomson
nan corwin
8' Wall proposal at 433 Bushaway

Importance:

High

Really?
The hedge was enough, but I believe the 8’ wall goes a little beyond privacy. We respectfully call the City of
Wayzata to not grant any further building permits that would restrict the beautiful sight lines of Lake
Minnetonka.
Please reject any further sight restrictions imposed on this neighborhood by this private party. Nan Corwin
will be in attendance tonight. Sincerely,
Jim Corwin
1605 Locust Hills Trail
Wayzata MN 55391

1
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Jeff Thomson
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

nan corwin <nancorwin@me.com>
Monday, April 2, 2018 3:40 PM
Jeff Thomson
433 Bushaway Rd.

Jeff, I am a resident of Locust Hills and am completely against accepting the proposal of building an 8’wall at 433
Bushaway Road. The beautiful view of Wayzata Bay is one of the reasons we love Locust Hills and the work the City has
done to preserve the views of the Lake along scenic Bushaway. Allowing an 8’ wall would block this view as we have
already seen with the planting of the Arborvitaes that block the view of the channel and Wayzata Bay. Please consider
the negative impact this wall will have on neighbors and so many other Wayzata residents who drive Bushaway Road.
Thank‐you for your consideration,
Nan Corwin
1605 Locust Hills Trail

1
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Jeff Thomson
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Pamela Friedland <pamela.friedland@gmail.com>
Monday, April 2, 2018 4:35 PM
Jeff Thomson
Proposed Wall Structure

Hello Jeffrey,
I am including my thoughts on the proposed stone fence recently proposed by the architect representing 433
Bushaway Road.
When Bushaway was recently updated, the final finished product achieved an aesthetic appearance and
function, including the ability for residents, those driving through a calm and lovely road, and pedestrians
enjoying the newly created walking paths, to truly enjoy the beauty surrounding our Lake Minnetonka.
With the addition of the large and already quite tall grouping of trees planted last autumn, the enjoyment of
viewing Wayzata Bay had been diminished. But at least in this case, we can try to minimize our discomfort with
this obstruction by saying we are viewing trees and not a looming and unnatural barrier to a beautiful body of
water.
My husband and I strongly oppose the addition of yet more blockage to a view that should be enjoyed by all.
I ask you to take our thoughts into consideration.
Thank you,
Pamela Friedland
Wayzata Resident

1
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Jeff Thomson
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Elizabeth Olig <elizabetholig@gmail.com>
Monday, April 2, 2018 1:53 PM
Jeff Thomson
Fwd: 433 Bushaway

Jeffrey,
I am writing to oppose the addition of a stone fence proposed by the architect managing the build at 433 Bushaway.
The existing retaining wall and plantings of the arborvitae have already diminished a wonderful view that our City
residents and other passersby have always been able to enjoy.
This beautiful and historic road shouldn’t belong only to individual property owners.
Driving along Bushaway, and walking along the newly enhanced paths, viewing Lake Minnetonka as it peeks between
homes and buildings adds a charm to Wayzata that would begin to disappear if you allow such imposing structures to
creep in.
Thank you for considering how important the lake is to all residents of Wayzata.
Sincerely,
Elizabeth Olig
Wayzata Resident

1
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Jeff Thomson
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

bbschwalbe@gmail.com
Monday, April 2, 2018 6:30 PM
Jeff Thomson
433 Bushaway

We would like to add our voices to those you are concerned about an eight foot stone wall cutting off Bushaway from
beautiful lake views. It is a joy to walk and bike down 101 and glimpse the water. We prefer that the 42 inch maximum
remain so that all can continue to appreciate Lake Minnetonka.
Thank you for considering our point of view.
Tom and Bonnie Schwalbe
Please excuse any errors. This message was sent from my mobile device.

1
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Jeff Thomson
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Jeff Thomson
Monday, April 2, 2018 5:07 PM
Jeff Thomson
FW: conditional use permit notification on Busahaway

From: Vince Vertin [mailto:vince.vertin@mercedcapital.com]
Sent: Monday, April 2, 2018 4:11 PM
To: Jeff Thomson <jthomson@wayzata.org>
Subject: RE: conditional use permit notification on Busahaway
Hello Jeff,
Thanks for sending over.
I will be unable to attend the meeting tonight, as I will be at the Mayo clinic with my father who is quite sick with
cancer. So, I thought I would email you with my thoughts, but if it is required to have someone at the meeting on my
behalf to deliver my views to make it ‘official’ please let me know. For the sake of efficiency, I just shot these over in
bullet‐point form if you want to summarize where I stand.


I strongly object to the granting of a CUP for the stone wall IF and ONLY IF the total project is not in
conformance with Wayzata Zoning Ordinance 801.16.4(D)
o If the project is not in conformance with the “overall grade can’t exceed 2 feet” , then it seems to me
the wall just further exacerbates the issue.



If the Planning Commission and you/Mike are satisfied that the Sathre Bergquist survey calculations show
compliance with 801.16.4(D) then I have no objections, as I am sure it will look great
o

o



I think you mentioned that the primary structure building footprint was excluded from the calculation of
the NEW overall grade height. Although that does not seem equitable, I’ll assume you have
precedence for this calculation.
Regardless, as I understand it‐‐‐even with the exclusion of the primary structure footprint from the
calculation, I believe you and Mike mentioned the calculation was essentially at the limit of
2’ (presumably over the 2’ limit if primary structure included).

As I mentioned in our prior conversations, the storm water erosion and runoff from 433 is going to have quite a
big impact on the landscaping (specifically trees) on my property as the average grade of the 433 Bushaway
property is far higher than prior to the project starting‐‐‐‐‐especially the grade of the property along the
property line between us.

1
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WAYZATA PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING MINUTES
APRIL 2, 2018

AGENDA ITEM 1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Chair Buchanan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
Present at roll call were Commissioners: Plantan, Murray, Young, Buchanan, and Iverson.
Absent: Flannigan and Douglas. Director of Planning and Building Jeff Thomson and City
Attorney David Schelzel were also present.

AGENDA ITEM 2. Approval of Agenda
Commissioner Young made a motion, Seconded by Commissioner Iverson, to approve the April
2, 2018 meeting agenda as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

AGENDA ITEM 3. Consent Agenda
a.) None.

AGENDA ITEM 4. Old Business Items:
a.) None.

AGENDA ITEM 5. Public Hearing Items:
a.) Bly Fence – 433 Bushaway Road
i.
Conditional Use Permit
Director of Planning and Building Jeff Thomson stated Steiner Koppelman and the property
owners, Allan and Stacey Bly, have submitted a development application to construct an 8-foot
stone wall and gate in the front yard of the property at 433 Bushaway Road. The development
agreement requests approval of a conditional use permit for a wall and fence greater than 42inches in height and 50 percent solid within the front yard. In 2013, the previous house that was
located on the property was demolished, and in 2016 the City issued a building permit for a new
house to be constructed on the property. The new house meets all of the zoning ordinance
requirements. As part of the home construction, the applicant constructed a retaining all along
the front of the property that varies in height from 5 to 7-feet. There are no setback or height
requirements for retaining walls. In order to fully enclose the front of the property, the applicant
is proposing to construct a stone wall and gate that would extend from the end of the retaining
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wall on the north side of the driveway, across the driveway, and connect to the retaining wall on
the south side of the driveway. The proposed stone wall and wrought iron gate would be 8-feet
in height. A 42-inch wrought iron fence would also be constructed along Bushaway Road, from
the end of the stone wall to the south property line. Mr. Thomson noted that the City has
received six emails from members of the public regarding the application, which will be made
part of the record.
Chair Buchanan asked if the construction of the retaining walls had been necessary as part of the
2016 building permit.
Mr. Thomson stated the walls had been constructed largely to flatten the front yard of the
property. There had been a 10-foot grade change on the front of the property as part of the
project. Currently the top of the retaining wall is at an elevation of 942-feet and the previous
elevation had been 931-feet.
Applicant’s Representative, Mr. David Steingas, Steiner and Koppelman, 21500 Fairview Street,
Greenwood, stated the elevation of the property had evolved through the landscape design, and
the applicant has an autistic son who is in a wheel chair, so they wanted a flatter driveway going
to the front door of the home.
Commissioner Plantan asked why the applicant was not meeting the 50% opaqueness
requirement of the fence ordinance.
Mr. Steingas stated both sides of the proposed gate become retaining walls to the full height of
the proposed stone wall. In order to make the gate work with the elevation of the driveway and
the swing of the gate they need to have 8-foot columns against the existing retaining wall to hold
the gate in place. He clarified the request was for the columns and the gate only. He stated that
there is retaining wall up to both sides of the driveway at this time.
Commissioner Young clarified the driveway would be graded at a slope down with retaining
walls on both sides.
Mr. Thomson asked the applicant if the change in grade on the south side of the property was a
change to the previously approved grading plan.
Mr. Steingas stated the topography is at 942-feet and the driveway starts at 940-feet and works
its way down to 936-feet, and there would not be a change to the approved grading plan.
Mr. Thomson further clarified that there is a short segment on the south side of the retaining wall
that is not retaining earth, and this would be part of the application as well. He stated the City
would review the grading plan and current conditions with the applicant, but this does not impact
the application before the Planning Commission at this time.
Commissioner Iverson asked if there would be additional plantings.
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Mr. Steingas stated there would be additional plantings, but the arborvitaes would only be on the
top of the retaining wall.
Chair Buchanan stated this would block the view of the lake from Bushaway Road.
Chair Buchanan opened the public hearing at 7:24 p.m.
Resident Nan Corwin, 1605 Locust Hills Trail, stated they have watched the development of the
home and property and are dismayed with the planting of the arborvitae because this takes away
their view of Wayzata Bay, and she feels that allowing a solid wall would further impact
people’s ability to see and experience the lake.
Resident, Elizabeth Olig, 425 Carpenters Pt, stated she is discouraged at what is being done at
this property to impact the public view of the lake. The arborvitaes block the inlet and the
channel and this does not provide any additional privacy for the home but does impact the view
for residents.
There being no other members of the public wishing to speak, Chair Buchanan closed the public
hearing at 7:28 p.m.
Commissioner Iverson stated the Planning Commission is in a tough spot due to the existing
retaining wall that was installed by the applicant. She asked if there were other options the
Commission could consider. All of the emails from the public on the application that the City
received are against continuing to hide the views of the lake.
Commissioner Young stated he would not support the CUP at this time and it is not clear to him
what is being considered and requested as part of the CUP request. The view of the lake is being
impeded by the current landscaping, and would be further impeded by the CUP request.
Commissioner Murray stated the arborvitae would provide the privacy they are looking for, and
the increased height of the fence would not be required. He would not support the current
application.
Commissioner Plantan stated she would not support the application, and there are other options
for the wall especially on the south end. She would like to see additional drawings to make the
application clear.
Commissioner Young asked if the applicant would consider other design options.
Mr. Steingas stated he would look at other design options, but he would like guidance from the
Commission and he would work with the City to comply with the code.
Commissioner Young suggested looking at the totality of the project, and consider less
arborvitae and blocking of the lake view.
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Mr. Steingas stated he could suggest this to the client, but they do not want to look at Highway
101.
City Attorney Schelzel noted that the Planning Commission can only consider and make a
recommendation to Council on the application that is being presented, and not other options for
the property.
Commissioner Young made a motion, Seconded by Commission Murray, to direct staff to prepare
a draft Planning Commission Report and Recommendation with appropriate findings
recommending denial of the Conditional Use Permit for an 8-foot fence at 433 Bushaway Road.
The motion carried unanimously.
Ms. Olig suggested in the future if there are public hearings on development applications that
include property in the estate zoning district, the area of notification of the hearings be expanded
to include additional neighbors.

AGENDA ITEM 6. Other Items:
a.) March 20th City Council Meeting Report – Commissioner Douglas
Commissioner Plantan provided a report on the March 20 City Council meeting, including an
update on the naming of the police memorial, the tabling of the CUP application for Verizon
wireless to allow Verizon additional time to evaluate other options, the tabling of soliciting for
bids for the reconstruction project at Wayzata Blvd/Superior intersection to allow staff to look at
all options including community input and education, the approval of the bid for SRF Consulting
for the 2040 Comp Plan services, and the changes within the Fire Department.
b.) Review of Development Activities
Director of Planning and Building Jeff Thomson stated the joint workshop with the City Council
regarding the tree ordinance would be scheduled for May 21. He noted that there are three new
applications being reviewed by staff at this time: two for outdoor patios for restaurants and one
for subdivision application at the end of Benton Avenue. He further noted that Wayzata Blu and
Meyer Place would be starting construction soon.
c.) Next Meeting is April 16, 2018
Director of Planning and Building Thomson noted that the next regular meeting of the Planning
Commission is scheduled for April 16, 2018.

AGENDA ITEM 7. Adjournment.
There being no further business on the agenda, Chair Buchanan asked for a motion to adjourn.
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WAYZATA PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2018

AGENDA ITEM 1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Chair Buchanan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
Present at roll call were Commissioners: Plantan, Murray, Young, Buchanan, and Douglas.
Absent: Iverson and Flannigan. Director of Planning and Building Jeff Thomson and City
Attorney David Schelzel were also present.

AGENDA ITEM 2. Approval of Agenda
Commissioner Plantan made a motion, Seconded by Commissioner Murray, to approve the April
16, 2018 meeting agenda as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

AGENDA ITEM 3. Consent Agenda
a.) Approval of March 19, 2018 Meeting Minutes
b.) Approval of April 2, 2018 Meeting Minutes
Chair Buchanan read the items on the Consent Agenda and asked if the Commissioners wished to
remove any items for further discussion. Hearing no such requests, Chair Buchanan asked for a
motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
Commissioner Plantan made a motion, Seconded by Commissioner Murray, to approve the
Consent Agenda as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

AGENDA ITEM 4. Old Business Items:
a.) Bly-Fence – 433 Bushaway Rd
i.
Conditional Use Permit
Director of Planning and Building Thomson stated the Planning Commission reviewed the
development application for a Fence CUP at 433 Bushaway Road, and held a public hearing at its
meeting on April 2, 2018. At that meeting, there was a discrepancy in the plans as to whether the
stone wall depicted along the front property line was a freestanding fence/wall, or a retaining wall.
Mr. Thomson stated that since the last Planning Commission meeting, the applicant submitted
revised plans that depict a reduction in the height of the wall along the south side of the driveway.
With the revisions, the walls on both sides of the driveway would be retaining earth as retaining
walls, not fences, and would be consistent with the approved grading plan. Therefore, Mr.
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Thomson confirmed that the stone retaining walls in the plans that are part of the Application are
not subject to the City’s fence requirements, and a Fence CUP is not needed for them. The only
item shown on the revised and current plans that requires the conditional use permit is the iron
gate across the driveway. The proposed gate would require the conditional use permit being up to
8-feet in height, but not for transparency in that it would meet the 50% openness requirement of
the fence ordinance. Mr. Thomson noted that there had been concerns brought up at the public
hearing regarding the arborvitae that have been planted on the property as part of the landscape
plan. He explained that there is a specific provision in the fence ordinance that plantings or hedges
that are constructed to act like a fence are not subject to the fence regulations. He noted that based
on the Commissions direction at the April 2 meeting, staff has prepared a Planning Commission
Report and Recommendation recommending denial of the conditional use permit but that the
Planning Commission could direct staff to prepare a draft Report and Recommendation
recommending approval for review at the next Planning Commission meeting based on the revised
plans and additional information presented.
Commissioner Murray asked if a wall was considered a retaining wall if it is at grade and a fence
if it is above grade.
Mr. Thomson stated in order to be considered a retaining wall, the top of the wall has to be at grade
with the back of the wall or flush with grade. If a wall extends beyond grade level it is considered
a fence and subject to the fence ordinance requirements. If the retaining wall were to be continued
upward and still comply with the fence ordinance it could only be a maximum height of 21-inches.
This would satisfy the 50% openness requirement.
Commissioner Murray clarified the open requirement for fences would not include the arborvitae
hedge that was planted.
Mr. Thomson stated this was correct.
Chair Buchanan asked if the applicant would be filling and grading the property to the height of
the proposed retaining wall, and if this had been approved by the City.
Mr. Thomson stated the approved grading on the south side of the driveway has not occurred, but
the property would be filled and graded to the height of the proposed retaining wall.
Commissioner Young stated he would support a recommendation of approval of the application
with the proposed revisions and clarifications. He noted that this application is difficult because
the residents expressed concerns about the property being “bumped up” and blocking views ofthe
lake. Given that the grading has already been approved by the City ,and there are no restrictions
on the arborvitae, he concluded that there would be no reason to not approve the gate.
There being no further questions or discussion, Chair Buchanan asked for a motion on the
Application.
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Commissioner Young made a motion, Seconded by Commissioner Plantan, to direct staff to
prepare a draft Planning Commission Report and Recommendation recommending approval of the
conditional use permit for the gate at 433 Bushaway Road.
Chair Buchanan accepted the motion and asked if there was any further discussion.
Commissioner Plantan stated there had been confusion at the last meeting regarding the
application, and the revisions have clarified the request. She stated the view to the lake is open for
about 80-feet after the arborvitae, and the proposed gate is in scale with the design.
Applicant, David Steingas, was recognized by Chair Buchanan and stated there had previously
been an 8-foot stockade fence on the property that blocked the view of the lake, and they are
planting the arborvitae to replace this fence. He stated there is a fence requirement for their pool
in the backyard for a 60-inch fence, and noted that they may be back to the Planning Commission
to ask for another conditional use permit to replace the proposed 42-inch fence on the south side
with a 60-inch fence that would meet the City’s pool fencing requirements.
Commissioner Young asked why the Commission would not table this request if the additional
fencing would be eminent.
Mr. Steingas stated they are just considering this option for now.
There being no further discussion, Chair Buchanan called the motion to a vote. The motion carried
unanimously.

AGENDA ITEM 5. Public Hearing Items:
a.) None.

AGENDA ITEM 6. Other Items:
a.) April 3rd City Council Meeting Report – Commissioner Flannigan
Given Commissioner Flanagan’s absence, Director of Planning and Building Thomson provided
a report on the April 3, 2018 City Council meeting. He noted that the Council meeting included
recognition of retiring firefighters, the introduction of four new fire fighters, and an update on the
Lake Effect design process. There will be a public open house in May to review the Lake Effect
design for Lake Street, Lake Street Plaza, and Depot Park. The City Council approved the
development agreement for Wayzata Blu with demolition expected to start by next week. The
City Council also approved two land use requests in accordance with the recommendation of the
Planning Commission, for the setback variances at 532 Ferndale and the height conditional use
permit and lot combination at 649 Ferndale. The City Council also approved the conditional use
permit for Verizon Wireless at 1000 Superior Blvd.
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DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. ##-2018
RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A FENCE AT 433
BUSHAWAY RD

WHEREAS, Steiner Koppelman and the property owners, Allan and Stacey Bly,
(together, the “Applicant”) have submitted a development application (the “Application”)
to install a driveway entrance gate in the front yard of the property at 433 Bushaway
Road and legally described on Attachment A (the “Property”); and
WHEREAS, as part of the Application, the Applicant is requesting approval of a
conditional use permit (the “Fence CUP”) for a driveway entrance gate (considered a
fence under the Zoning Ordinance) greater than 42 inches in height as depicted on the
plans submitted with the Application (the “Entrance Gate”). The Entrance Gate would be
located at a driveway that runs between two retaining walls that have been constructed
in the front yard of the Property, as part of the larger regrading that has been done to
the Property; and
WHEREAS the Wayzata Planning Commission, pursuant to the Zoning
Ordinance, has held a public hearing on the Application, made findings of fact on the
land use request in the Application, and delivered a Report and Recommendation to
the City Council, attached to this Resolution as Attachment B (“PC Report and
Recommendation”).
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Wayzata,
Minnesota as follows:
A.
Based on the Application materials, additional materials submitted by the
Applicant, staff reports, public comment and information presented at the public hearing,
the standards of the Wayzata Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Commission Report
and Recommendation of Approval of the Application, all of which are incorporated by
reference in this Resolution, the City Council of the City of Wayzata hereby finds,
confirms and memorializes that the Application meets the applicable requirements of
Wayzata’s Zoning Ordinance, as set forth in the Planning Commission Report and
Recommendation.
B.
Based on the foregoing, the Fence CUP requested in the Application for
the Project is hereby APPROVED, subject to satisfaction of the following:
1.

Other Permits and Standards. The Applicant must secure all
necessary building, construction and other permits for
improvements on the Property.
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2.

Costs. All expenses of the City of Wayzata, including consultant,
expert, legal, and planning incurred must be fully reimbursed by the
Applicant.

Adopted by the Wayzata City Council this 15th day of May 2018.

Mayor Ken Willcox
ATTEST:

City Manager Jeffrey Dahl

ACTION ON THIS RESOLUTION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution adopted.
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by
the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly authorized meeting held on
May 15, 2018.

__________________________________
Becky Malone, City Clerk
SEAL
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Attachment A
Legal Description of Property
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Attachment B
PC Report and Recommendation, dated May 7, 2018
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WAYZATA PLANNING COMMISSION
May 7, 2018
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
FOR A FENCE AT 433 BUSHAWAY RD

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION
Approval* of Conditional Use Permit for Fence
* subject to certain conditions noted in Section 4 of this Report

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION
Section 1.

BACKGROUND

1.1

Project. Steiner Koppelman and the property owners, Allan and Stacey Bly,
(together, the “Applicant”) have submitted a development application (the
“Application”) to install a driveway entrance gate in the front yard of the property at
433 Bushaway Road (the “Property”).

1.2

Application Request. As part of the Application, the Applicant is requesting approval
of a conditional use permit (the “Fence CUP”) for a driveway entrance gate
(considered a fence under the Zoning Ordinance) greater than 42 inches in height as
depicted on the plans attached as Attachment A (the “Entrance Gate”). The Entrance
Gate would be located at a driveway that runs between two retaining walls that have
been constructed in the front yard of the Property, as part of the larger regrading that
has been done to the Property.

1.3

Property. The street address, property identification number and owner of the
Property are:
433 Bushaway Rd

08-117-22-22-0007

Allan and Stacey Bly

05-15-2018CC PACKET
Page 93 of 146

1.4

Land Use.
The Property is zoned R-1A/Low Density Single Family Residential
District and guided Estate Single Family. It is also located in the S/Shoreland and
FP/Floodplain overlay district.

1.5

Notice and Public Hearing. Notice of a public hearing on the Application was
published in the Wayzata Sun Sailor on March 22, 2018. A copy of the notice was
mailed to all property owners located with 350 feet of the Property on March 22, 2018.
The public hearing on the Application was held at the April 2, 2018 Planning
Commission meeting.

1.6

Planning Commission Review. The Planning Commission reviewed the Application
at both its April 2 and April 16 meetings. After clarifications had been made to the
Application and the scope of the requested Fence CUP, the Commission directed
staff to prepare a draft Report & Recommendation of approval of the Application.

Section 2.
2.1

STANDARDS

Standards for Fences. The definition of “fences” in the Zoning Ordinance includes
"Fence" a gate erected as a dividing marker, visual or physical barrier. Section
801.02.2. Fences located in a front yard that are greater than 50 percent solid matter
and exceed 42 inches in height require a conditional use permit. Section 801.18.1.
City Code Section 801.18.1.F.2 outlines the following standards for evaluating fence
conditional use permits:
A.

The fence placement, height or design does not create a safety hazard with
regard to, from or on a public street or roadway.

B.

The fence placement, height or design does not create a safety problem or
negatively affect adjoining properties or use.

C.

The provisions of Section 801.04.2.F of the Zoning Ordinance are considered
and satisfactorily met. Section 801.04.2.F of the Zoning Ordinance requires
City Council to consider possible adverse effects of the proposed conditional
use. Council’s judgment shall be based upon (but not limited to) the following
factors:
1.

The proposed action in relation to the specific policies and provisions of
the official City Comprehensive Plan.

2.

The proposed use’s compatibility with present and future uses of the
area.

3.

The proposed use’s conformity with all performance standards
contained herein (i.e., parking, loading, noise, etc.).

4.

The propose use’s effect on the area in which it is proposed.
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Section 3.

5.

The proposed use’s impact upon property values in the area in which it
is developed.

6.

Traffic generated by the proposed use is in relation to capabilities of
streets serving the property.

7.

The proposed use’s impact upon existing public services and facilities
including parks, schools, streets and utilities, and the City’s service
capacity.

FINDINGS

Based on the Application materials, staff reports, public comment presented at the public
hearing, and Wayzata’s Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission of the City of Wayzata
makes the following findings of fact:
3.1

Criteria for Fence CUPs.
A.

The placement, height and design of the Entrance Gate will not create a safety
hazard with regard to, from or on a public street or roadway.

B.

The placement, height and design of the Entrance Gate will not create a safety
problem or negatively affect adjoining properties and uses.

C.

The provisions of Section 801.04.2.F of the Zoning Ordinance have been
considered and are all satisfactorily met. The Entrance Gate (the “Proposed
Use”) would have not have adverse effects on the surrounding area based
upon the following:
1.

The Proposed Use is not inconsistent with any policies or provisions of
the official City Comprehensive Plan.

2.

The Proposed Use is not incompatible with present and future uses of
the area.

3.

The Proposed Use conforms with all relevant performance standards
contained in the Zoning Ordinance.

4.

The Proposed Use will not have a material effect on the area in which
it is proposed in that it is a small part of a larger improvement,
landscaping and grading plan for the Property.

5.

The Proposed Use will not have a material impact upon property values
in the area in that it is a small part of larger improvement, landscaping
and grading plan for the Property.
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Section 4.
4.1

6.

The Proposed Use will not generate traffic.

7.

The Proposed Use will not have an impact upon existing public services
and facilities including parks, schools, streets and utilities, and the City’s
service capacity.

RECOMMENDATION

Planning Commission Recommendation. Based on the findings in section 3 of this
Report, the Planning Commission recommends APPROVAL of the Fence CUP,
subject to the following conditions:
A.

Other Permits and Standards. The Applicant must secure all necessary
building, construction and other permits for improvements on the Property.

B.

Costs. All expenses of the City of Wayzata, including consultant, expert,
legal, and planning incurred must be fully reimbursed by the Applicant.

Adopted by the Wayzata Planning Commission this 7th day of May 2018.

Voting For Approval Recommendation: Plantan, Murray, Young, Buchanan, and Douglas
Voting Against Approval Recommendation: None
Abstaining: None
Absent: Flannigan and Iverson
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Attachment A
Entrance Gate

05-15-2018CC PACKET
Page 97 of 146

City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 7k
TITLE: Approval of Remodeling/Expansion Study for the Motor Vehicle Department
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Proposed Remodeling/Expansion Study by HTG Architects for
the Motor Vehicle Department
PREPARED BY: Nick Heider, Motor Vehicle Manager
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the proposed remodeling/expansion study to be done by HTG
Architects for the Wayzata Motor Vehicle Department.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The cost of the remodeling/expansion study is $4,500, plus expenses. Please see the attached
proposal and expense schedule. This expense was budgeted for 2018 in the City’s Capital
Improvements Program.
BACKGROUND:
The Wayzata Motor Vehicle Department is outgrowing its existing space. There is a need for more
counter space to serve customers in a more organized and efficient manner. This study will explore
options for a larger waiting area, additional office space, and a passport processing counter to give
customers privacy because of sensitive information. Also to be explored is the potential
impacts/alterations to adjoining parts of City Hall office area and bathroom.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. HTG Architects Proposal and Fee Schedule, dated April 18, 2018
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18 April 2018
Mr. Nicholas Heider
Wayzata Motor Vehicle Department
600 Rice Street E
Wayzata, MN 55391
Re:

InVision Proposal
Wayzata Motor Vehicle Department Expansion
Wayzata, Minnesota

Dear Nick:
We are pleased to submit this proposal for providing Phase 1 – InVision Program and Feasibility Study for the
proposed remodeling/expansion work at the Wayzata Motor Vehicle Department. We enjoyed meeting with
you last week and seeing your existing space. This is an exciting project and we look forward to working with
you and the city.
We understand that your department’s needs have outgrown the existing space. There is a need for more
counter space to serve customers in a better organized manner. Other needs include a larger waiting area, and
additional office space. We understand there may be additional remodel work in other parts of city hall as well.
This proposal addresses the first phase of the project which includes programming, the preliminary design and
preliminary budget pricing.

PHASE I – InVision – Program and Feasibility Study:
Building Concept Plan
Meeting #1 - HTG will meet with city staff to conduct a programming meeting.
Following Meeting #1, HTG will prepare 2-3 conceptual floor plan options.
Meeting #2 - We will review these plans with you and city staff to make sure they meet the needs of
your department.
HTG will further develop and refine the selected floor plan.
Meeting #3 – At this meeting we will review our final plan with you for final approval.
Following meeting 3 we will prepare a cost estimate and construction schedule for the final design
option.
At the end of Phase 1 you will have a design, a budget and a schedule you can use to obtain the
necessary approvals to move the project forward.
The investment for the InVision Program and Feasibility Study is $4,500, plus expenses. Please see the
enclosed Expenses Schedule.
Alternate Additional Services
HTG can provide 3D Renderings and Animations for the project for an additional fee. These renderings can be
very beneficial for the stake-holders to visualize the “final” product and are a great tool to use in the approval
process. The fees for these services can range from $1,500 - $2,500.
If you have any questions or comments regarding any part of this proposal, please feel free to call. We
appreciate this opportunity and look forward to helping you and the church plan for this facility.
Sincerely,

Tom Moorse, Partner
HTG Architects
HTG
9300 Hennepin Town Road, Minneapolis, MN 55347
Minneapolis | Bismarck | Tampa

htg-architects.com
952.278.8880
Serve | Listen | Learn
|
Energize
| Invest
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18 April 2018
Re:

InVision Proposal
Wayzata Motor Vehicle Department Expansion
Wayzata, Minnesota

Expense Schedule and Consulting Services:
Reimbursable Expenses:
In-House printing (black and white) ................................. $ 0.26/square foot
In-House Printing (color) ....................................................... $ 2.50/square foot
In-House Expenses (copies, fax, phone, boards)................ Direct cost
Mileage ......................................................................................... Direct cost (current IRS rate)
Travel/Airfare/Lodging ........................................................... Direct cost + 10%
Outside Printing ........................................................................ Direct cost + 10%
Postage/Delivery ...................................................................... Direct cost + 10%
Site Survey, Pre/Post construction ALTA survey .......... direct cost + 10%
Others............................................................................................ direct cost + 10%

HTG Architects Hourly Rates:
Partners ........................................................................................ $ 210.00 - 230.00/hr
Project Managers/Project Architects ................................ $ 140.00 - 210.00/hr
Job Captains ............................................................................... $ 110.00 - 140.00/hr
CAD/Technicians ...................................................................... $ 100.00 - 130.00/hr
Administrative ........................................................................... $

70.00 - 75.00/hr

Overtime ...................................................................................... Time + ½

HTG
9300 Hennepin Town Road, Minneapolis, MN 55347
Minneapolis | Bismarck | Tampa

htg-architects.com
952.278.8880
Serve | Listen | Learn | Energize | Invest
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 8a
TITLE: Public Hearing for Vacation of Right of Way for North Beach Rd
PROPOSED MOTION: To Continue the Public Hearing to June 5, 2018
PREPARED BY: Jeff Thomson, Director of Planning and Building
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
City staff recommends that the City Council continue the public hearing until June 5th.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
Application Overview
The property owner at 649 Ferndale Rd W has requested that the City vacate platted right of way
for North Beach Rd, which is located along Ferndale Rd W.
City Charter and City Code
The City’s Charter states that, “the Council shall have the exclusive power, by ordinance passed by a
unanimous vote of all the members thereof, to vacate or discontinue highways, streets and alleys
within the City. Such vacations may be made only after notice and hearing of affected property
owners and upon such further terms and by such procedure as the council may, by ordinance,
prescribe. A record of each such vacation shall be filed in the office of the Register of Deeds of
Hennepin County.”
The City sent a public hearing notice to all property owners abutting the North Beach Road right of
way and to all properties within 350 feet of the abutting properties. The public hearing notice was
also published in the Wayzata Sun Sailor. The public hearing notices stated that the City Council
public hearing would be held at the meeting on May 15th.
Street vacations can only be approved by a unanimous vote of all five Council members. Since the
City Council will likely be meeting without all five members for the May 15th meeting, City staff
recommends that the public hearing be continued to the June 5th Council meeting so that the full
City Council can consider the right of way vacation. City staff will prepare a staff report outlining the
details of the right of way vacation for that meeting.
ATTACHMENTS:
N/A
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 9a
TITLE: 2017 Audit Report Presented by Bill Lauer, MMKR
PROPOSED MOTION: To Accept the 2017 Audit Report from MMKR
PREPARED BY: Kathy Ovshak, Senior Accountant
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends acceptance of the attached audit reports for 2017.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The City spends approximately $25,000 on auditing services per year.
BACKGROUND:
State Statutes require that the City’s financials are audited annually by June 30 of the following year.
In addition to the attached 2017 Audit Reports, Bill Lauer of MMKR will be presenting highlights of
the report’s findings at the meeting.
In addition, the overall 2017 Financial Report, as prepared by AEM, is included as a separate booklet
for the Council. However, due to its length, it is not in the electronic packet. This booklet will be
available to the public at City Hall, at the May 15 Council Meeting, and will be on the City’s website
as well.
Lastly, one of the findings of the 2016 audit was a reported “material weakness” in internal controls
based largely on the City’s small staff.
Steve McDonald, the City’s Contracted Finance Director wrote the attached response in November
2017 as a follow up to MMKR’s findings. The response outlines additional measures that have been
taken and the City’s expectations regarding internal control assessment for the 2017 audit. As a
result, we were able to reduce the internal control finding in the attached Management Report from
“material weakness” to a “significant deficiency” (less severe) due to management reporting and
other monitoring and control procedures implemented.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. City of Wayzata Management Report from MMKR, dated April 26, 2018
2. Special Purpose Audit Reports from MMKR, dated April 26, 2018
3. AEM Memo regarding Internal Control Findings, dated November 8, 2017
4. Annual Financial Report
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The full "Management Report" is attached separately.

Management Report
for
City of Wayzata, Minnesota
December 31, 2017
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The full "Special Purpose Audit Reports" document
is attached separately.

CITY OF WAYZATA
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA
Special Purpose Audit Reports
Year Ended
December 31, 2017
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MEMO

TO:

JEFF DAHL - CITY MANAGER

FROM:

STEVE MCDONALD - AEM FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, LLC

SUBJECT:

REVIEW OF AUDITOR’S FINDINGS IN THE 2016 AUDIT

DATE:

11/8/2017

Introduction
Upon your request, we met with Councilor Tyacke and City staff in May of 2017 to discuss the
audit findings in the 2016 audit. As a result of that meeting we have discussed the finding with
the auditors, reviewed current process and summarized actions taken below.
The City’s auditor’s MMKR, issued two reports addressed to the City Council titled
Management Report and Special Purpose Report as part of the December 31, 2016 audit. These
reports summarize auditor required communications to those charged with governance in the
City. They included a comment related to the City’s financial reporting that indicated limited
segregation of duties over the financial functions. The Special Purpose report identified the
elements of the finding and is considered the more formal communication. The finding reported
is titled “2016-001 Segregation of Duties”. The Management Report lists the finding and
provides some context as to the type of finding they are reporting. The two types of findings are
a material weakness or significant deficiency.
Definitions of Significant Deficiency and Material Weakness
A “significant deficiency” is defined as a control deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, that
adversely affects the city’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process or report external
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that
there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the city’s annual or interim
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected. A
“material weakness” is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected.
The auditors considered the lack of segregation of duties a material weakness. This consideration
was due to the number of duties concentrated in the Senior Accountant position. It should also be
noted that they do recognize that this situation is not unusual for cities this size. They
recommended that the City Council receive and review more frequent monthly year to date
information as a way to mitigate the risk related to having limited segregation of duties. A
further discussion giving context to the term “segregation of duties” follows:
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Segregation of Duties
Segregation of duties is a key internal control intended to minimize the occurrence of errors or
fraud by ensuring that no employee has the ability to both perpetrate and conceal errors or fraud
in the normal course of their duties. Generally, the primary incompatible duties that need to be
segregated are:
•

Authorization or approval

•

Custody of assets

•

Recording transactions

•

Reconciliation/Control Activity

As a result of the comment we met with Council member Tyacke and city staff to discuss how to
address the finding with the goal of eliminating the finding or reducing the severity. Beginning
March of 2017, the Senior Accountant provided the City Manager monthly budget versus actual
reports that he has included in his Friday reports to council. Additionally, we reviewed the
processes and listed the steps in each process related to cash disbursements, investments, and
payroll. Based on this review we would agree that duties are concentrated but the City has a
number of controls in place as listed below:

Cash disbursements
1. Department heads approve invoices for proper expense.
2. City council approves the claims list for those vendors requesting payments. It is
important for City council to recognize that they are part of internal control over this
transaction cycle.
3. Invoices over $2,500 require the City Manager to approve the invoice. The City manager
doesn’t hold any other incompatible duties in this cycle.
4. Monthly the Council receives and reviews budget reports.
5. Quarterly, the bank reconciliations are reviewed and recalculated by AEM Financial
Solutions who don’t hold other incompatible duties in this cycle.
Investments
1. The City Manager can approve transactions and has no other incompatible role in this
area.
2. AEM reconciles the investments to the finance system and has no other incompatible role
in this area.
Payroll
1. Duties are divided between the Senior Accountant and Payroll clerk.
2. Department heads approve time cards and are responsible for budgets in their area.
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3. Bank reconciliations are reviewed by AEM who have no other incompatible role in this
area.
Overall, it is understandable that the limited number of staff in these transaction cycles would
generate a significant deficiency from the auditors. They City did immediately (March, 2017)
implement the recommendations of the auditors regarding more frequent budget reporting to the
City Council. This process in addition to the controls and compensating controls noted above
should provide adequate oversight to ensure there is substantially less risk that a material
misstatement of interim financial statements would occur and not be detected. We believe these
steps should result in less severe finding in the 2017 audit. We would expect the finding to be a
significant deficiency versus a material weakness.
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The full "Annual Financial Report" is attached
separately.

CITY OF WAYZATA
WAYZATA, MINNESOTA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 9b
TITLE: Consider Approval of the Special Event Permit Application for the Bash for the Boardwalk
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Special Event Permit Application for the Bash for the
Boardwalk
PREPARED BY: Mike Kelly, Interim Public Works Director/City Engineer
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the Special Event Permit Application for the Bash for the Boardwalk
contingent upon the applicant working with the City, Chamber, and BNSF to finalize the permit and
mitigate any impacts to surrounding properties.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
Per the terms of the Special Event permit application, the applicant is responsible to cover the costs
of any traffic control devices and city personnel (Police, Fire, Public Works) that may be necessary to
safely conduct the event.
BACKGROUND:
The Bash for the Boardwalk is proposed to be held on Thursday evening through Sunday afternoon,
June 21 – 24. The proposed concerts would be held in the area between the Boatworks building and
the Wayzata Depot. The expected attendance of each concert is approximately 1,000 and the times
of the concerts would range from:
• Thursday 7:00 pm to 9:45 pm;
• Friday 7:00 pm to 11:00 pm;
• Saturday 7:00 pm to 11:00 pm; and
• Sunday 2:00 pm to 6:00 pm.
The Bash for the Boardwalk is proposed to be held in conjunction with the Chamber of Commerce’s
Wayzata Art Experience, the Wine on Wayzata Bay event at the Wayzata Yacht Club, and the Wayzata
Match Cup sailing event. Proceeds from the event would be directed to the Lake Effect Conservancy.
The Wayzata Art Experience is exempt from annual Council authorization. The Wine on Wayzata Bay,
and Match Cup sailing event are small enough that council authorization is not required. Due to the
proposed size of the Bash for the Boardwalk and the proposed location using public property, the
permit application is subject to consideration by the City Council.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Special Event Permit Application
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City of Wayzata
City Council
Agenda Report
MEETING DATE: May 15, 2018
AGENDA ITEM: 9c
TITLE: Consider Resolution No. 24-2018, Approving Excess Revenue Transfers
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve Resolution 24-2018, Approving Excess Revenue Transfers from
2017 Operations
PREPARED BY: Kathy Ovshak, Senior Accountant
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
Approving transfers of excess funds allows the City to take advantage of a very solid financial year
by building up its capital funds and funding future projects internally, rather than having to increase
its debt obligation.
BACKGROUND:
Please see the attached memo from AEM summarizing the City’s cash position at the end of 2017.
Given the robust development projects in town along with the thriving and well-run enterprise
operations, the City has $846,128 in excess funds to transfer into its Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).
In addition, as discussed at the Council Workshop on April 23, staff is recommending that the
$150,000 allocated for the Mill Street Parking Ramp roof is transferred back into the General Fund
CIP. Because there is no immediate plan to build a roof, those funds should be transferred back. If
the Council prioritizes building a roof in the future, it could likely be paid partially or in full by the
use of alternative energy. Between the excess funds and the parking ramp roof transfer, there is
$996,128 available to transfer.
At recently held workshop, the Council discussed priorities for the excess funds, including: General
CIP, Police Officers Memorial Project, and the Lake Effect. The attached resolution will approve
those specific transfers.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Draft Resolution No. 24-2018, Approving Excess Fund Transfers
2. Preliminary Excess Fund Balance Memo, from Steve McDonald, AEM, April 18, 2018
3. Updated CIP Memo, from Steve McDonald, AEM, dated May 9, 2018
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CITY OF WAYZATA
RESOLUTION NO. 24-2018
RESOLUTION APPROVING EXCESS REVENUE TRANSFERS
WHEREAS, The City of Wayzata transfers excess revenues after end of the year to
balance or close out fund accounts, reimburse funds from another fund, and to make
operating transfers;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Wayzata City Council hereby
approves the following transfers:
Transfer Funds from

Amount

101 General Fund
630 Motor Vehicle
640 Liquor
401 Downtown Parking (Ramp Roof)

$632,786
$84,389
$128,953
$150,000
$996,128

Total
Transfer Funds To

Amount

233 Lakefront (Lake Effect)
408 General CIP
408 General CIP (Police Memorial)

$500,000
$471,128
$25,000
$996,128

Total
Adopted by the Wayzata City Council this 15th day of May, 2018.

ATTEST:

________________________
Mayor Ken Willcox

_____________________________
City Manager Jeff Dahl
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CERTIFICATION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution:
I hereby certify that the attached and foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution
No. 24-2018 adopted by the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly
authorized meeting held on May 15, 2018.

City Clerk Becky Malone

SEAL
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MEMORANDUM
To:
From:

Jeff Dahl, City Manager
Steve McDonald, City Contracted Finance Director

Re:

Preliminary excess fund balance

Background
The City fund balance policy authorizes transferring amounts deemed excess reserves in the General and Licensing Funds to certain
capital funds. This fund balance policy identified the intended funds and process to transfer the excess reserves. Additionally, cash has
been evaluated within the Municipal Liquor fund and had been determined to have cash available. The proposed transfers based on
2017 results (prior three years results are shown for comparison) are as follows:
2017 T ransfer
Calculation
Ge ne ral fund
Subsequent Year General fund budget

$

40% fund balance target
Unassigned fund balance prior to transfer
Transfe r available
Lice nsing
Operating expense
T ransfers out

Liquor
Operating disbursements (suppliers & employees)
1 month operations in reserve

$

2,484,252

$
$

1 month operations in reserve
working capital needed
Current working capital (current assets less current liabilities)
Transfe r available

6,210,629

2016 T ransfer
Calculation

$
$

T ransfers out to general fund
Current debt (including interfund loan)
Next year's bonds (p&i)
Next year's interfund (p&i)
Current identified capital improvements

3,117,038
632,786

5,877,904

2015 T ransfer
Calculation
$

2,351,162

$

3,188,399
837,237

5,729,004

2014 T ransfer
Calculation
$

2,291,602

$

2,799,263
507,661

5,500,610
2,227,747

$

3,222,823
995,076

390,442 $
55,000
445,442
8%
37,120

335,242 $
55,000
390,242
8%
32,520

315,002 $
50,000
365,002
8%
29,200

272,212
272,212
8%
22,684

121,509
84,389

212,323
179,803

134,349
105,149

218,748
196,064

$

5,485,539 $
8%
457,128
30,000

$

5,193,804 $
8%
432,817
32,850

$

4,873,245 $
8%
406,104
30,000

4,916,643
8%
409,720

227,680
17,300
301,000

230,980
17,415
100,000

229,130
46,605
116,400

227,130

Cash needed

1,033,108

814,062

828,239

690,665

Cash available in Liquor

1,162,061

1,162,061

1,107,072

965,665

53,815

Transfe r available

$

128,953

$

347,999

$

278,833

$

275,000

Total pre liminary e xce ss transfe r available

$

846,128

$

1,365,039

$

891,643

$

1,466,140
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A summary of the prior three years transfers are listed below.
2016 total excess
transfer

2015 total excess
transfer approved

Lakefront
Parks and T rails
Cell T ower
General CIP
Equipment
Streets
Ramp

$

305,500.00
205,000.00
355,500.00
499,000.00

$

20,000
200,000
511,500

$

327,000
240,000
129,140
385,000
312,000

T otal

$

1,365,000

$

731,500

$

1,393,140

Fund
233
404
407
408
409
430
401

2014 total excess
transfer approved

Council has considered current priorities in order to make the transfer decisions. Some background on prior transfers follows:
• 2014 - The transfers iwere based mainly on future costs projected in the CIP.
• 2015 - The transfers were based on the existing priorities around the Monopole and the Ramp projects.
• 2016 - The transfers were made to fund the ramp project, Bushway Road landscaping, park master plan, JW Anderson Police
Memorial, Lake Effect and to address funding needs in the General CIP.
The table below groups funds as on-going City CIP funds and other identified funds that have a potential cash need. Many of these
funds show projected expenditures greater than projected receipt.
Identified in
Next 6 Year
Fund
Projected
Next 6 Year
City Fund
Projected
Balance
Cash
Projected
Balance
Cash
Fund
12/31/17
Policy
Receipts Disbursements 12/31/2023
On-going City funds
$ 33,986 $
60,216 $
81,351 $
12,852
Cemetery
448,331
1,280,550
1,258,500
470,381
Lakefront
X
1,069,041
228,172
1,483,315
(186,103)
Parks and Trails
X
(2,330)
396,511
212,842
181,340
Telecom
1,363,944
1,780,520
4,099,152
(954,687)
General CIP
X
1,541,128
4,201,556
3,321,842
2,420,841
Equipment
X
1,487,209
3,428,042
4,128,200
787,051
Streets
X
386,321
445,302
512,200
319,423
Library
299,062
389,648
482,600
206,110
Downtown parking district
Total
New projects identified without identifed
funding or have other sources
Mill Street Parking Ramp Roof
Lake Effect CIP

$ 6,626,692 $ 12,210,518 $ 15,580,002 $ 3,257,207

$

-

$

$ 1,180,000 $ (1,180,000)
16,252,889
15,584,063
668,826

$
$ 16,252,889 $ 16,764,063 $ (511,174)
The following highlights some background for selected funds:
T otal

•
•
•
•

The Parks and Trails fund has limited revenue sources outside of the occasional excess funds transfer.
The General CIP is projected to have a large deficit because of maintenance costs that had previously been tracked with no
revenue source have now been assigned to General CIP. .
Enterprise funds are not shown since they should be funded with user charges.
The Mill Street Roof fund only identifies the anticipated cost of the roof. Since it hasn’t been approved by
council, no funds have been allocated to it.
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Council could consider the CIP needs as a first step to determine priority for transferring the excess but could consider other options;
for example, there may be other projects anticipated that do not meet the criteria to be reflected in the CIP. We recommend that
Council discuss and then approve the amount of excess fund balance transfer and the specific funds.
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MEMO
TO:
FROM:
SUBJECT:
DATE:

JEFFREY DAHL
STEVE MCDONALD
CIP GRAPHS FOR ALL FUNDS
MAY 9, 2018

BACKGROUND
At your request, we have prepared charts for all the funds included in the Capital Improvement Model. The charts were
generated from the cash flow schedules provided in the Capital Improvement Model as of May 7, 2018. The amounts
represent an update from the memo presented in council work session on April 19, 2018. The total is the same but the
allocation between funds changed after reconciling the maintenance charges and ensuring they were allocated to the
correct fund. The most significant change was an improvement of the deficit in the General CIP from ($954,687) to the
current ($307,635). A summary of the year ending cash balances for all funds and projections through 2023 is highlighted
in the graph below:
Cash Balance - All Funds Except Lake Effect
$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

$-

$(2,000,000)

$(4,000,000)

Equipment
Downtown Parking Dist
Telecom
Cemetery
Library
Liquor
Sewer
Water
Stormwater
Lakefront
Parks and Trails
Streets
General

2018
$1,695,878
$299,062
$277,170
$(2,914)
$329,185
$1,073,248
$459,415
$1,627,921
$304,526
$460,727
$815,170
$1,265,959
$1,095,390

2019
$1,176,308
$210,598
$278,137
$597
$416,976
$1,249,076
$411,798
$1,166,393
$341,785
$145,411
$726,354
$1,026,764
$688,849

2020
$1,104,578
$209,535
$255,457
$3,920
$422,772
$1,465,614
$50,616
$1,089,082
$319,918
$93,135
$399,934
$1,206,656
$(13,472)

2021
$1,335,860
$208,579
$231,786
$7,075
$447,195
$1,403,244
$(64,809)
$1,004,063
$613,552
$196,491
$263,511
$1,510,983
$11,372

2022
$1,764,284
$207,310
$207,091
$10,055
$457,471
$1,607,241
$(522,442)
$(186,717)
$926,068
$300,867
$(128,910)
$1,156,953
$109,374

2023
$2,390,841
$206,110
$181,340
$12,852
$203,523
$1,841,371
$(994,280)
$(300,261)
$1,156,531
$406,381
$(244,455)
$787,051
$(307,635)
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As indicated in the table above, four funds are projected to have deficits in 2023. The deficits in the Water and Sewer
funds are being addressed through a more thorough rate study that currently is in process.
The future deficit in the General fund CIP is new in 2018 because a maintenance schedule is being included that results in
approximately $56,000 in annual costs. In prior years this schedule was kept separately but had no funding sources. City
staff determined that including these planned costs in the General CIP would give the most accurate picture of costs.
The deficit in the Parks and Trails fund is due to normal projects but this fund has a relatively small amount of revenue
sources. The main source of funding is an estimated annual transfer from the General fund of about $8,000 and estimated
park dedication fees of about $25,000 annually while the capital expenses average $257,000 per year.
Included in this packet is a list of all planned projects for 2018-2023. The only new projects added from what was reported
last year to council are $20,000 for the consulting necessary to implement a payroll outsource solution and $225,000 for a
patio expansion at the Bar and Grill. We have summarized each fund in more detail below

General

Beginning Balance

$

Receipts
Disbursements
Ending Cash Balance $

2018

2019

2020

1,363,944 $

1,095,390 $

2021

2022

688,849 $

(13,472) $

2023

11,372 $

109,374

544,546

277,359

278,879

246,445

214,202

813,100

683,900

981,200

221,600

116,200

636,100

688,849 $

(13,472) $

109,374 $

(307,635)

1,095,390 $

11,372 $

219,091

General Fund
$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000
$$(200,000)
$(400,000)
2018
Receipts

2019

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2018 - CSAH 101 (Bushaway Rd) reconstruction Project (City Contribution) - $395,800

•

All other projects are under $150,000

Proposed changes:
•

None
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Streets
2018
Beginning Balance

$

2019

1,487,209 $

2020

1,265,959 $

2021

1,026,764 $

2022

1,206,656 $

2023

1,510,983 $

1,156,953

Receipts

555,050

537,805

544,392

591,127

598,069

601,598

Disbursements

776,300

777,000

364,500

286,800

952,100

971,500

Ending Cash Balance $

1,265,959 $

1,026,764 $

1,206,656 $

1,510,983 $

1,156,953 $

787,051

Streets Fund
$1,600,000
$1,400,000
$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000
$2018
Receipts

2019

2020

2021

Disbursements

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2019: Miscellaneous Streets & Sealcoats - $202,300

•

2019: Grove Ln (Street Improvements; two way & parking - $152,100

•

2019: Lake Street – 600 Block (Lake Effect) - $336,900

Proposed changes:
•

2018: Miscellaneous Streets & Sealcoats (Lake Effect) - $599,500 – move to 2019
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Parks and Trails
2018
Beginning Balance

$

Receipts

2019

1,069,041 $

2020

815,170 $

726,354 $

2021

2022

399,934 $

2023

263,511 $

(128,910)

42,781

40,784

38,995

36,977

34,679

33,955

Disbursements

296,652

129,600

365,415

173,400

427,100

149,500

Ending Cash Balance $

815,170 $

726,354 $

399,934 $

263,511 $

(128,910) $

(244,455)

Parks and Trails Improvement Fund
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000
$$(200,000)
$(400,000)
2018
Receipts

2019

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2018 - Platform Tennis Paddle Ball Courts at Klapprich Park - $125,000

Proposed changes:
•

None

As mentioned above, this fund has limited revenue but is budgeted to have an average of $257k in project costs each year.
Additionally, staff is considering combing parks related portions of the lakefront improvement fund into the parks fund. These
changes would be intended to increase transparency of project plans.
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Lakefront
2018
Beginning Balance

$

2019

2020

2021

448,331 $

460,727 $

145,411 $

Receipts

215,296

213,184

211,624

Disbursements

202,900

528,500

263,900

Ending Cash Balance $

460,727 $

145,411 $

93,135 $

2022

93,135 $

2023

196,491 $

300,867

212,156

213,476

214,815

108,800

109,100

109,300

196,491 $

300,867 $

406,381

Lakefront Improvement Fund
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$2018

2019

Receipts

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2019 - Docks (Additional)-Permanent @ Broadway- $265,300 (Lake Effect)

Proposed changes:
•

None
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Stormwater
2018
Beginning Balance

$

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

782,801 $

304,526 $

341,785 $

319,918 $

613,552 $

926,068

Receipts

347,725

351,249

360,270

370,876

383,422

395,897

Disbursements

826,000

313,990

382,137

77,242

70,907

165,434

Ending Cash Balance $

304,526 $

341,785 $

319,918 $

613,552 $

926,068 $

1,156,531

Stormwater Improvement Fund
$1,400,000
$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000
$2018
Receipts

2019

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2018 - Central Ave South Drainage Project - $169,900

•

2018 - Circle Drive E Stormwater Improvements - $158,600

•

2018 - Glenbrook Pond Maintenance Excavation - $199,700

Proposed changes:
•

None
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Water
2018
Beginning Balance

$

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2,411,845 $

1,627,921 $

1,166,393 $

1,089,082 $

1,004,063 $

Receipts

1,007,991

1,013,486

1,032,600

1,030,475

1,007,722

1,024,778

Disbursements

1,791,915

1,475,014

1,109,911

1,115,494

2,198,502

1,138,322

Ending Cash Balance $

1,627,921 $

1,166,393 $

1,089,082 $

1,004,063 $

(186,717) $

(186,717)

(300,261)

Water Improvement Fund
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$$(500,000)
2018

2019

Receipts

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2018 – Repaint existing water tower - $646,700

•

2019 – Lake St. watermain replacement: Broadway to Manitoba - $345,600 (Lake St.)

Proposed changes:
•

None
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Sewer
2018
Beginning Balance

$

2019

620,192 $

2020

459,415 $

2021

411,798 $

2022

50,616 $

(64,809) $

2023
(522,442)

Receipts

1,008,591

1,035,921

1,061,664

1,087,893

1,117,150

1,147,523

Disbursements

1,169,368

1,083,538

1,422,846

1,203,319

1,574,782

1,619,362

Ending Cash Balance $

459,415 $

411,798 $

50,616 $

(64,809) $

(522,442) $

(994,280)

Sewer Improvement Fund
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$$(500,000)
$(1,000,000)
$(1,500,000)
2018
Receipts

2019

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

No projects exceed $100,000

Proposed changes:
•

None
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Liquor
2018
Beginning Balance

$

Receipts

2019

1,212,101 $

1,073,248 $

654,427

Disbursements

660,008

793,280

Ending Cash Balance $

2020

484,180

1,073,248 $

1,249,076 $

2021

1,249,076 $
668,718

2022

1,465,614 $
676,509

452,180

738,880

1,465,614 $

1,403,244 $

2023

1,403,244 $
684,277
480,280
1,607,241 $

1,607,241
693,310
459,180
1,841,371

Liquor Operations Enterprise Fund
$2,000,000
$1,800,000
$1,600,000
$1,400,000
$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000
$2018
Receipts

2019

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2018 - Patio Expansion - $225,000

Proposed changes:
•

The patio expansion has been discussed a council meetings in 2018 but was not part of the last CIP presentation
to council in 2017. Overall, it is believed this expansion will add seating and capacity during busy times. A basic
cash flow projection assuming 84 new seats at 80% capacity, an average check of $17.50, turning 2.5 times a day
for 30 days results in neutral effect on profits if the cost is amortized over five years and then would result in about
$50-60k in incremental profits in years 6 and after. There is also belief that this upgrade freshens up the facilities
which is necessary to compete in a competitive market.
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Library
2018
Beginning Balance

$

Receipts

2019

386,321 $

2020

329,185 $

2021

416,976 $

2022

422,772 $

2023

447,195 $

457,471

87,064

87,791

89,896

72,823

53,876

53,852

Disbursements

144,200

-

84,100

48,400

43,600

307,800

Ending Cash Balance $

329,185 $

416,976 $

422,772 $

447,195 $

457,471 $

203,523

Library Fund
$500,000
$450,000
$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$2018

2019

Receipts

2020

2021

Disbursements

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

No projects over $100,000 in either year

Proposed changes:
•

Transfer implemented to account for general fund staff time.
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Cemetery
2018
Beginning Balance

$

2019

2020

33,986 $

(2,914) $

Receipts

10,000

10,000

Disbursements

46,900

6,489

Ending Cash Balance $

(2,914) $

2021
597 $

10,006

597 $

2022

3,920 $
10,039

6,684

6,884

3,920 $

7,075 $

2023

7,075 $
10,071
7,091
10,055 $

10,055
10,101
7,303
12,852

Cemetery Fund
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000
$10,000
$$(10,000)
2018

2019

Receipts

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

The Cemetery expansion is budgeted for 2018 for $40,600

Proposed changes:
•

Transfer implemented to account for general fund staff time.
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Telecom
2018
Beginning Balance

$

Receipts

2019

(2,330) $
334,100

Disbursements

277,170 $
52,687

54,600

Ending Cash Balance $

2020

51,720

277,170 $

2021

2023

278,137 $

255,457 $

231,786 $

2,781

2,555

2,318

25,462

278,137 $

2022

26,225

255,457 $

231,786 $

27,012
207,091 $

207,091
2,071
27,823
181,340

Telecom Fund
$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$2018

2019

Receipts

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

No significant projects are proposed

Proposed changes:
•

Cash flow update to include 3 carriers on the tower versus 4.
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Downtown Parking Dist
2018
Beginning Balance

$

2019

299,062 $

299,062 $

2020

2021

210,598 $

2022

209,535 $

2023

208,579 $

207,310

Receipts

-

2,536

92,637

95,344

98,131

101,000

Disbursements

-

91,000

93,700

96,300

99,400

102,200

Ending Cash Balance $

299,062 $

210,598 $

209,535 $

208,579 $

207,310 $

206,110

Downtown Parking District CIP Fund
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$2018

2019

Receipts

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

No significant project proposed

Proposed changes:
•

None
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Mill St Ramp Roof
2018
Beginning Balance

$

2020

2021

2022

2023

150,000 $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000)

Receipts
Disbursements

2019

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,180,000

-

-

-

-

-

Ending Cash Balance $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000) $ (1,030,000)

Mill St Parking Ramp Roof Fund
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$$(500,000)
$(1,000,000)
$(1,500,000)
2018
Receipts

2019

2020
Disbursements

2021

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2018 – Mill Street parking ramp roof - $1,180,000 – This project has been put in the plan as a placeholder. Council
will need to identify funding sources if its determined this project moves forward

Proposed changes:
•

None

05-15-2018CC PACKET
Page 144 of 146

Lake Effect
2018
Beginning Balance

2019

$

Receipts
Disbursements
Ending Cash Balance $

- $

2020

1,782,475 $

2021

(631,174) $ (5,753,881) $

2,182,475

1,525,000

6,122,707

400,000

3,938,649

11,245,414

1,782,475 $

2022

(631,174) $ (5,753,881) $

6,022,707

2023

268,826 $

-

400,000

-

-

-

268,826 $

-

668,826 $

-

Lake Effect CIP Fund
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000
$$(2,000,000)
$(4,000,000)
$(6,000,000)
$(8,000,000)
2018

2019

Receipts

2020

2021

Disbursements

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2018 and 2019 – Design fees related to project - $800,000

•

2019 Lake Street Park Construction - $2,271,196

•

2019 Urban Park Construction - $1,267,453

Proposed changes:
•

Staff will be working on further interpreting the Lake Effect into the CIP
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Equipment
2018
Beginning Balance

$

Receipts
Disbursements
Ending Cash Balance $

2019

1,541,128 $

2020

1,695,878 $

649,550

669,037

494,800

1,188,606

1,695,878 $

1,176,308 $

2021

1,176,308 $
689,108
760,837
1,104,578 $

1,104,578 $
709,781
478,499
1,335,860 $

2022
1,335,860 $
731,074
302,650
1,764,284 $

2023
1,764,284
753,006
126,449
2,390,841

Equipment Fund
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$2018

2019
Receipts

2020

2021

Disbursements

2022

2023

Ending Cash Balance

Significant projects for 2018/2019 are as follows:
•

2018 – Front end loader $186,322

•

2019 – Pumper with 100’ arial ladder - $875,000

Newly proposed projects that weren’t identified in previously approved plans are as follows:
•

$20,000 for payroll software
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C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota
We have prepared this management report in conjunction with our audit of the City of Wayzata,
Minnesota’s (the City) financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. We have organized
this report into the following sections:
x
x
x
x
x
x

Audit Summary
Governmental Funds Overview
Enterprise Funds Overview
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Legislative Updates
Accounting and Auditing Updates

We would be pleased to further discuss any of the information contained in this report or any other
concerns that you would like us to address. We would also like to express our thanks for the courtesy and
assistance extended to us during the course of our audit.
The purpose of this report is solely to provide those charged with governance of the City, management,
and those who have responsibility for oversight of the financial reporting process comments resulting
from our audit process and information relevant to city finances in Minnesota. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 26, 2018
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AUDIT SUMMARY
The following is a summary of our audit work, key conclusions, and other information that we consider
important or that is required to be communicated to the City Council, administration, or those charged
with governance of the City.
OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA AND GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information to you verbally and in our audit engagement letter. Professional
standards also require that we communicate the following information related to our audit.
PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT
We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously discussed and coordinated
in order to obtain sufficient audit evidence and complete an effective audit.
AUDIT OPINION AND FINDINGS
Based on our audit of the City’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017:
x

We have issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s basic financial statements.

x

We reported one matter involving the City’s internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be a significant deficiency. Due to the limited size of the City’s finance department
staff, the City has limited segregation of duties in certain areas.

x

The results of our testing disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

x

We reported no findings based on our testing of the City’s compliance with Minnesota laws and
regulations.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 of the notes to basic financial statements.
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
the year ended December 31, 2017, however, the City implemented the following governmental
accounting standards during the fiscal year:
x

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 79, Certain External
Investment Pools and Pool Participants, which enhanced disclosures regarding investments.

x

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and
No. 73, which addressed certain issues related to pension reporting and disclosures.

We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND MANAGEMENT JUDGMENTS
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:
x

The City has recorded liabilities and activity for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) and
pension benefits. These obligations are calculated using actuarial methodologies described in
GASB Statement Nos. 45 and 68. These actuarial calculations include significant assumptions,
including projected changes, healthcare insurance costs, investment returns, retirement ages,
proportionate share, and employee turnover.

x

The depreciation of capital assets involves estimates pertaining to useful lives.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management to develop these estimates in
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Where applicable, management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management, when applicable,
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as
a whole.
DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.
DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT
For purposes of this report, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.
MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April 26, 2018.
MANAGEMENT CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
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OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR ISSUES
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.
OTHER MATTERS
We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and the pension and
OPEB-related required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
We were engaged to report on the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules
accompanying the financial statements, which are not RSI. With respect to the combining and individual
fund financial statements and schedules, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the
form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has
not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit
of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
We were not engaged to report on the introductory section and supplementary information, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS OVERVIEW
This section of the report provides you with an overview of the financial trends and activities of the City’s
governmental funds, which includes the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds.
These funds are used to account for the basic services the City provides to all of its citizens, which are
financed primarily with property taxes. The governmental fund information in the City’s financial
statements focuses on budgetary compliance and the sufficiency of each governmental fund’s current
assets to finance its current liabilities.
PROPERTY TAXES
Minnesota cities rely heavily on local property tax levies to support their governmental fund activities.
For the 2016 fiscal year, local ad valorem property tax levies provided 39.8 percent of the total
governmental fund revenues for cities over 2,500 in population, and 36.4 percent for cities under 2,500 in
population.
The total market value of property in Minnesota cities increased about 5.6 percent for the 2017 levy year,
which followed an increase of 5.7 percent for levy year 2016. The market values used for levying
property taxes are based on the previous fiscal year (e.g., market values for taxes levied in 2017 were
based on assessed values as of January 1, 2016), so the trend of change in these market values lags
somewhat behind the housing market and economy in general.
The City’s taxable market value increased 9.9 percent for taxes payable in 2016 and 9.1 percent for taxes
payable in 2017. The following graph shows the City’s changes in taxable market value over the past
10 years:

Taxable Market Value
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Tax capacity is considered the actual base available for taxation. It is calculated by applying the state’s
property classification system to each property’s market value. Each property classification, such as
commercial or residential, has a different calculation and uses different rates. Consequently, a city’s total
tax capacity will change at a different rate than its total market value, as tax capacity is affected by the
proportion of the City’s tax base that is in each property classification from year-to-year, as well as
legislative changes to tax rates. The City’s tax capacity increased 9.6 percent and 8.8 percent for taxes
payable in 2016 and 2017, respectively.
The following graph shows the City’s change in tax capacities over the past 10 years:
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The following table presents the average tax rates applied to city residents for each of the last three levy
years, along with comparative state-wide and metro area average rates from the two most recent years for
which the information is available:
Rates Expressed as a Percentage of Net Tax Capacity
All Cities
State-Wide
2015
2016

Seven-County
Metro Area
2015
2016

2015

City of
Wayzata
2016

2017

Average tax rate
City

46.9

46.5

43.4

43.0

25.7

24.7

23.4

County

44.7

44.1

42.9

42.3

46.4

45.4

44.1

School

27.1

27.5

28.3

28.6

26.2

26.1

26.3

6.9

6.9

8.8

8.7

11.5

11.3

11.1

125.6

125.0

123.4

122.6

109.8

107.4

104.8

Special taxing
Total

Note: State-wide and metro area average property tax rates are not available for 2017.

The City’s portion of the tax capacity rates for Wayzata residents has historically been well below the
average for Minnesota cities state-wide and for cities in the seven-county metro area. This is due to the
City’s relatively low annual tax levies, coupled with its high property values and strong commercial tax
base.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
The following table summarizes the changes in the fund balances of the City’s governmental funds during
the year ended December 31, 2017, presented both by fund balance classification and by fund:
Governmental Funds Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance
as of December 31,
2017
2016
Fund balances of governmental funds
Total by classification
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total – governmental funds
Total by fund
General
Debt Service
Internally Financed Capital Project
Nonmajor funds
Total – governmental funds

$

874,532
964,295
163,572
7,051,958
3,110,253

–
8,576,098
240,981
6,593,308
2,559,399

$

874,532
(7,611,803)
(77,409)
458,650
550,854

$ 12,164,610

$ 17,969,786

$

(5,805,176)

$

$

2,835,183
555,341
7,956,204
6,623,058

$

1,423,226
(41,473)
(7,672,327)
485,398

$ 17,969,786

$

(5,805,176)

4,258,409
513,868
283,877
7,108,456

$ 12,164,610

$

Increase
(Decrease)

In total, the fund balances of the City’s governmental funds decreased $5,805,176 during the year ended
December 31, 2017. The main reason for the decrease was the spend down of the proceeds from the
City’s $7,725,000 General Obligation Tax Increment Bonds of 2016 for the construction of the downtown
parking ramp in the City’s Internally Financed Capital Project Fund. This was partially offset by a
contribution of $1,760,500 from the City’s Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) Widsten Tax
Increment Fund to reimburse various city funds for ramp construction costs incurred in 2015 and 2016, of
which $1,461,214 was received by the governmental funds shown above.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
The following table presents the per capita revenue of the City’s governmental funds for the past three
years, along with state-wide averages for cities with comparable populations.
We have included the most recent comparative state-wide averages available from the Office of the State
Auditor to provide a benchmark for interpreting the City’s data. The amounts received from the typical
major sources of governmental fund revenue will naturally vary between cities based on factors such as a
city’s stage of development, location, size and density of its population, property values, services it
provides, and other attributes. It will also differ from year-to-year due to the effect of inflation and
changes in its operation. Also, certain data on these tables may be classified differently than how they
appear in the City’s financial statements in order to be more comparable to the state-wide information,
particularly in separating capital expenditures from current expenditures.
We have designed this section of our management report using per capita data in order to better identify
unique or unusual trends and activities of the City. We intend for this type of comparative and trend
information to complement, rather than duplicate, information in the management’s discussion and
analysis. An inherent difficulty in presenting per capita information is the accuracy of the population
count, which for most years is based on estimates.
The per capita information presented in this report excludes the Wayzata HRA, the City’s discretely
presented component unit.
Governmental Funds Revenue per Capita
With State-Wide Averages for Population Class

Year
Population
Property taxes
Tax increments
Franchise and other taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other
Total revenue

State-Wide
2015
2016
2,500–10,000 2,500–10,000

2015
4,564

City of Wayzata
2016
4,678

2017
4,678

$

443
26
33
59
31
285
110
69

$

460
26
35
59
35
313
110
91

$

946
–
32
57
182
54
284
332

$

980
–
32
55
203
159
257
87

$

1,001
–
33
54
164
452
227
110

$

1,056

$

1,129

$

1,887

$

1,773

$

2,041

The City’s total governmental funds revenue for 2017 was $9,542,507, an increase of $1,250,918
(15.1 percent) from the previous year. On a per capita basis, revenue for 2017 increased $268 from the
prior year. The majority of the increase was in intergovernmental revenues, which were $293 per capita
higher than the previous year due to the $1,461,214 contribution from the HRA Widsten Tax Increment
Fund.
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The expenditures of governmental funds will also vary from state-wide averages and from year-to-year,
based on the City’s circumstances. Expenditures are classified into three types as follows:
x

Current – These are typically the general operating-type expenditures occurring on an annual
basis, and are primarily funded by general sources such as taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

x

Capital Outlay and Construction – These expenditures do not occur on a consistent basis, more
typically fluctuating significantly from year-to-year. Many of these expenditures are
project-oriented, which are often funded by specific sources that have benefited from the
expenditure, such as special assessment improvement projects.

x

Debt Service – Although the expenditures for debt service may be relatively consistent over the
term of the respective debt, the funding source is the important factor. Some debt may be repaid
through specific sources, such as special assessments or redevelopment funding, while other debt
may be repaid with general property taxes.

The City’s expenditures per capita of its governmental funds for the past three years, together with
state-wide averages for cities with comparable populations, are presented in the following table:
Governmental Funds Expenditures per Capita
With State-Wide Averages for Population Class

Year
Population
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
All other

State-Wide
2015
2016
2,500–10,000 2,500–10,000
$

Capital outlay
and construction
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal
Total expenditures

$

134
255
119
88
64
660

$

145
263
126
93
74
701

2015
4,564
$

286
467
155
152
37
1,097

City of Wayzata
2016
4,678
$

277
471
167
206
32
1,153

2017
4,678
$

385
483
150
155
61
1,234

372

381

909

869

2,092

181
51
232

196
48
244

68
31
99

67
41
108

69
55
124

1,264

$

1,326

$

2,105

$

2,130

$

3,450

The City’s total governmental fund expenditures for 2017 were $16,141,897, an increase of $6,177,075
(62.0 percent) from the prior year, or $1,320 per capita. The majority of this increase was in capital
outlay, which was $1,223 per capita higher than last year, primarily due to the completion of the parking
ramp. Current expenditures for 2017 were $81 per capita higher than the previous year. General
government expenditures increased $108 per capita, mainly due to contracted services related to a new
“monopole” cell tower.
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GENERAL FUND
The City’s General Fund accounts for the financial activity of the basic services provided to the
community. The primary services included within this fund are the administration of the municipal
operation, police, and fire protection, building inspection, streets and highway maintenance, and culture
and recreation. The graph below illustrates the change in the General Fund financial position over the last
five years. We have also included a line representing annual expenditures and transfers out to reflect the
change in the size of the General Fund operation over the same period.

General Fund Financial Position
Year Ended December 31,
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000

$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$–
Fund Balance
Cash Balance
Exp & Trans Out

2013
$2,339,484
$2,431,675
$6,032,007

2014
$2,498,884
$2,549,327
$6,055,836

2015
$2,529,396
$2,511,386
$5,897,406

2016
$2,835,183
$2,792,940
$6,056,578

2017
$4,258,409
$3,306,531
$5,902,131

The City’s General Fund cash and investments balance at December 31, 2017 was $3,306,531, an
increase of $513,591 from the previous year. Total fund balance at year-end was $4,258,409, which was
an increase of $1,423,226 from the prior year, as compared to a break-even budget. The unassigned
portion of fund balance was $3,117,038 at year-end, which represents 52.8 percent of the City’s annual
General Fund expenditures and transfers out based on 2017 levels, up from 42.3 percent at the end of the
previous year.
The City has generally been able to maintain healthy cash and fund balance levels as the volume of
financial activity has grown. This is an important factor because a government, like any organization,
requires a certain amount of equity to operate. A healthy financial position allows the City to avoid
volatility in tax rates; helps minimize the impact of state funding changes; allows for the adequate and
consistent funding of services, repairs, and unexpected costs; and is a factor in determining the City’s
bond rating and resulting interest costs. Maintaining an adequate fund balance has become increasingly
important given the fluctuations in state funding for cities in recent years.
A trend that is typical to Minnesota local governments, especially the General Fund of cities, is the
unusual cash flow experienced throughout the year. The City’s General Fund cash disbursements are
made fairly evenly during the year other than the impact of seasonal services such as snowplowing, street
maintenance, and park activities. Cash receipts of the General Fund are quite a different story. Property
taxes comprise about 59 percent of the fund’s total annual revenue. Approximately half of these revenues
are received by the City at mid-year and the rest at year-end. Consequently, the City needs to have
adequate cash reserves to finance its everyday operations between these payments.
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The following chart reflects the City’s General Fund revenue sources for 2017 compared to budget:

General Fund Revenue
Budget to Actual
Taxes

Intergovernmental
Fines and Forfeits
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
All Other

Budget

Actual

General Fund revenue for 2017 totaled $7,153,638, which was $1,445,734 (25.3 percent) higher than
budget. Tax revenue exceeded budget by $74,914 due to excess tax increments received.
Intergovernmental revenue was $1,116,499 higher than budget due to the reimbursement received from
the HRA Widsten Tax Increment Fund. Licenses and permits were $156,997 higher than projected, as
building, heating, and plumbing permits were much higher than the City’s conservative budget.
The following graph presents the City’s General Fund revenues by source for the last five years. The
graph reflects the City’s reliance on property taxes and other local sources of revenue.
General Fund Revenue by Source
Year Ended December 31,
$4,500,000
$4,000,000
$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$–
Taxes
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

$4,028,134
$4,104,912
$3,939,771
$4,211,953
$4,312,130

Intergovernmental
$294,665
$224,836
$193,931
$200,025
$1,306,099

Fines and
Forfeits
$71,154
$78,985
$89,360
$77,268
$81,423

Charges for
Services
$830,093
$832,032
$827,582
$862,230
$716,702

Licenses and
Permits
$708,478
$793,420
$657,955
$769,641
$595,372

All Other
$38,011
$56,051
$37,141
$62,829
$141,912

Total General Fund revenues increased $969,692 (16.9 percent) from the previous year. Revenue from
taxes increased $100,177 from the prior year due to revenue from excess tax increments. The $1,106,074
increase in intergovernmental revenue primarily reflects the contribution from the HRA Widsten Tax
Increment Fund. Revenues from charges for services and licenses and permits were $145,528 and
$174,269 lower than last year, respectively, due to a decline in development related fees and charges.
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The following graph illustrates the components of General Fund spending for 2017 compared to budget:

General Fund Expenditures
Budget to Actual
General
Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and
Recreation

All Other

Budget

Actual

Total General Fund expenditures for 2017 were $4,934,457, which was $183,973 (3.6 percent) under
budget. This variance was spread across several categories, with the largest savings in public works
($122,092) due to lower than anticipated personnel costs for street maintenance and engineering, and
culture and recreation ($67,323) due to lower than budgeted park maintenance costs.
The following graph presents the City’s General Fund expenditures by function for the last five years:

General Fund Expenditures by Function
Year Ended December 31,
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General
Government
$1,240,945
$1,047,201
$1,211,694
$1,110,852
$1,251,354

Public Safety

Public Works

$1,961,127
$2,047,168
$2,131,961
$2,198,112
$2,234,630

$649,247
$660,028
$707,177
$782,691
$703,182

Culture and
Recreation
$381,580
$365,736
$396,102
$469,516
$530,460

All Other
$230,117
$179,077
$172,467
$150,633
$214,831

Total General Fund expenditures were $222,653 (4.8 percent) higher than the previous year. This increase
was spread across various functions and was primarily due to increased personnel costs. General
government expenditures were $140,502 higher than the previous year, primarily as the result of higher
personnel costs for administration and finance.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS OVERVIEW
The City maintains a number of enterprise funds to account for services the City provides that are
financed primarily through fees charged to those utilizing the service. This section of the report provides
you with an overview of the financial trends and activities of the City’s enterprise funds, which include
the Water, Sewer, Licensing, Liquor, Solid Waste, and Stormwater Funds.
ENTERPRISE FUNDS FINANCIAL POSITION
The following table summarizes the changes in the financial position of the City’s enterprise funds during
the year ended December 31, 2017, presented both by classification and by fund:
Enterprise Funds Change in Financial Position

Net Position
as of December 31,
2017
2016
Net position of enterprise funds
Total by classification
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total – enterprise funds
Total by fund
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total – enterprise funds

Increase
(Decrease)

$ 13,227,983
1,630,101
3,544,687

$ 13,229,599
1,726,709
3,241,811

$

(1,616)
(96,608)
302,876

$ 18,402,771

$ 18,198,119

$

204,652

$

$

$

266,637
(31,459)
(101,954)
(39,381)
10,506
100,303

$

204,652

8,159,648
3,943,469
(144,756)
1,497,888
231,352
4,715,170

$ 18,402,771

7,893,011
3,974,928
(42,802)
1,537,269
220,846
4,614,867

$ 18,198,119

In total, the net position of the City’s enterprise funds increased by $204,652 during the year ended
December 31, 2017, with the increase mainly in the Water and Stormwater funds.
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WATER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Water Fund:

Water Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$–
$(100,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2013
$648,312
$638,385
$9,927

2014
$666,615
$671,215
$(4,600)

2015
$680,803
$697,742
$(16,939)

2016
$700,700
$717,299
$(16,599)

2017
$750,334
$710,647
$39,687

The Water Fund ended 2017 with a total net position of $8,159,648, which was an increase of $266,637
from the prior year. The Water Fund had a net investment in capital assets of $5,066,215, net position
restricted for debt service of $1,188,369, and unrestricted net position of $1,905,064 at year-end.
Water Fund operating revenues for fiscal 2017 were $750,334, an increase of $49,634 (7.1 percent) from
the prior year due to an increase in city water rates for 2017 of 3.0 percent and in increase in usage of
approximately 4.3 percent.
Operating expenses for 2017 were $710,647, a decrease of $6,652 (0.9 percent) from the previous year,
mainly due to decreased maintenance and supply costs.
After nonoperating revenues and expenses (such as interest revenue, tower rental revenue, and interest
expense), the Water Fund had a loss before contributions and transfers of $41,361.
The Water Fund received capital contributions of $45,136 from special assessments and access charges to
finance the water portion of street improvement projects, $299,286 from the HRA Widsten Tax Increment
Fund for parking ramp costs, and $22,876 in capital assets transferred from governmental activities. The
Water Fund also transferred out $34,300 to finance capital purchases and $25,000 to support the General
Fund.
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SEWER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Sewer Fund:

Sewer Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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$1,041,186
$(131,387)

2016
$897,443
$964,112
$(66,669)

2017
$950,007
$963,435
$(13,428)

The Sewer Fund ended 2017 with a total net position of $3,943,469, a decrease of $31,459 from the prior
year. The Sewer Fund had a net investment in capital assets of $2,971,359, net position restricted for debt
service of $441,732, and unrestricted net position of $530,378 at year-end.
Sewer Fund operating revenue for fiscal 2017 was $950,007, an increase of $52,564 (5.9 percent) from
the prior year due to increases in both rates and usage (3.3 percent) compared to the previous year.
Operating expenses for 2017 were $963,435, a decrease of $677 (0.1 percent).
After nonoperating revenues and expenses, the Sewer Fund had a loss before contributions and transfers
of $17,550.
The Sewer Fund received $34,215 of contributed capital from special assessments and access charges to
finance the sewer portion of street improvement projects, and $22,876 in capital assets transferred from
governmental activities. The Sewer Fund also transferred out $46,000 to finance capital purchases and
$25,000 to support the General Fund.

-14-

LICENSING FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Licensing Fund:

Licensing Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$600,000
$550,000
$500,000
$450,000
$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$–
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2013
$399,257
$255,563
$143,694

2014
$447,885
$275,010
$172,875

2015
$494,537
$335,021
$159,516

2016
$552,514
$366,121
$186,393

2017
$521,062
$390,442
$130,620

The Licensing Fund ended 2017 with an unrestricted deficit net position of ($144,756), a decrease of
$101,954 from the prior year.
Licensing Fund operating revenues for 2017 were $521,062, a decrease of $31,452 (5.7 percent) from the
prior year, mainly due to lower motor vehicle licensing revenue.
Operating expenses for 2017 were $390,442, an increase of $24,321 (6.6 percent) from last year, mainly
due to an increase in personnel costs for overtime caused by problems with the Minnesota Licensing and
Registration System.
The Licensing Fund transferred out $204,800 to finance capital purchases and $30,000 to support the
General Fund.
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LIQUOR FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Liquor Fund:

Liquor Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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2014
$5,581,912
$2,784,167
$2,222,430
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$2,223,107
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$2,625,555
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The Liquor Fund ended 2017 with a total net position of $1,497,888, a decrease of $39,381 from the prior
year. The Liquor Fund’s net investment in capital assets was $1,261,796 at year-end, leaving unrestricted
net position of $236,092 at year-end.
Liquor Fund gross sales for 2017 were $6,184,891, an increase of $343,372 from the prior year. Gross
sales for the liquor store increased $84,726 (2.9 percent), while gross sales for the bar and restaurant side
of the operation increased $258,646 (8.8 percent). Gross profits for 2017 increased $203,366 (7.1 percent)
overall.
Operating expenses of $2,625,555 represented an increase of $242,211 (10.2 percent) from the prior year,
mainly due to an increase of $159,749 in salaries and benefits.
The Liquor Fund transferred out $348,000 to finance capital purchases and $30,000 to support the
General Fund.
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SOLID WASTE FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Solid Waste Fund:

Solid Waste Fund
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The Solid Waste Fund ended 2017 with an unrestricted net position of $231,352, an increase of $10,506
from the prior year.
Operating revenues for 2017 were $351,457, an increase of $30,249 (9.4 percent) from last year, mainly
due to customers increasing levels of service.
Operating expenses for 2017 were $359,495, an increase of $1,593 (0.4 percent) from the previous year.
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STORMWATER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Stormwater Fund:

Stormwater Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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The Stormwater Fund ended 2017 with a total net position of $4,715,170, an increase of $100,303 from
the prior year. The Stormwater Fund’s net investment in capital assets was $3,928,613 at year-end,
leaving an unrestricted net position of $786,557.
Stormwater Fund operating revenue for 2017 was $283,696, an increase of $9,880 (3.6 percent) from last
year due to a 3.0 percent increase in rates.
Operating expenses for 2017 were $178,786, an increase of $7,012 (4.1 percent) from last year.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In addition to fund-based information, the current reporting model for governmental entities also requires
the inclusion of two government-wide financial statements designed to present a clear picture of the City
as a single, unified entity. These government-wide financial statements provide information on the total
cost of delivering services, including capital assets and long-term liabilities.
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
The Statement of Net Position essentially tells you what your city owns and owes at a given point in time,
the last day of the fiscal year. Theoretically, net position represents the resources the City has leftover to
use for providing services after its debts are settled. However, those resources are not always in spendable
form, or there may be restrictions on how some of those resources can be used. Therefore, net position is
divided into three components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.
The following table presents the City’s components of net position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
As of December 31,
2017
2016

Increase
(Decrease)

Net position – primary government
Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities

$ 33,361,273
2,910,672
7,700,153
43,972,098

$ 32,550,256
3,085,974
5,813,827
41,450,057

$

811,017
(175,302)
1,886,326
2,522,041

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities

$ 13,227,983
1,630,101
3,544,687
18,402,771

$ 13,229,599
1,726,709
3,241,811
18,198,119

$

(1,616)
(96,608)
302,876
204,652

$ 62,374,869

$ 59,648,176

$

2,726,693

$

$

2,092,900
775,774
(60,275)

$

–
(719,943)
(1,187,513)

$

2,808,399

$

(1,907,456)

Total net position – primary government
Net position – HRA component unit
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position – HRA component unit

$

2,092,900
55,831
(1,247,788)
900,943

The City (excluding the HRA) ended 2017 with a combined total net position of $62,374,869, an increase
of $2,726,693 from the prior year. About 92.5 percent of the increase was from governmental activities
and 7.5 percent was from business-type activities. The City’s net investment in capital assets increased
$809,401 between the governmental and business-type activities, mainly due to improvement projects
financed in part through contributions and internal funding sources. The increases in the unrestricted net
position of the both governmental and business-type activities were mainly due to the $1,760,500
contribution received from the HRA Widsten Tax Increment Fund for parking ramp project costs.
The City’s HRA discretely presented component unit ended of the current fiscal year with a total net
position of $900,943. The $1,907,456 decrease in net position, along with the $1,247,788 deficit
unrestricted net position reported at year-end, were primarily attributable to the $1,760,500 contribution
to the primary government, which will be financed with future tax increment collections.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
The Statement of Activities tracks the City’s yearly revenues and expenses, as well as any other
transactions that increase or reduce total net positions. These amounts represent the full cost of providing
services. The Statement of Activities provides a more comprehensive measure than just the amount of
cash that changed hands, as reflected in the fund-based financial statements. This statement includes the
cost of supplies used, depreciation of long-lived capital assets, and other accrual-based expenses.
The following table presents the change in net position of the City (primary government) and the HRA
(discreetly presented component unit) for the year ended December 31, 2017:

Program
Revenues

Expenses
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater

$

1,955,808
2,545,678
1,802,342
983,380
328,243

$

637,439
1,117,660
2,191,190
277,817
–

925,596
975,577
390,442
5,876,492
359,495
178,786

1,169,621
984,292
521,155
6,202,290
367,359
283,715

Total – primary government

$ 16,321,839

$ 13,752,538

Component Unit – HRA

$

$

4,464,314

Net Change
Primary
Government

$ (1,318,369)
(1,428,018)
388,848
(705,563)
(328,243)
244,025
8,715
130,713
325,798
7,864
104,929
(2,569,301)

–

–

General revenues
Property taxes and tax increments
Franchise taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Investment earnings
Other revenues
Total general revenues

4,678,674
152,117
61,361
387,447
16,395
5,295,994
$

Change in net position

2,726,693

Net Change
Component
Unit – HRA

$

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(4,464,314)

2,543,054
–
13,804
–
–
2,556,858
$ (1,907,456)

One of the goals of this statement is to provide a side-by-side comparison to illustrate the difference in the
way governmental and business-type operations are financed. The table clearly illustrates the dependence
of the City’s governmental operations and those of the HRA on general revenues, such as property taxes,
tax increments, and unrestricted grants. It also shows that, for the most part, the City’s business-type
activities are generating sufficient program revenues (service charges and program-specific grants) to
cover expenses. This is critical given the current downward pressures on the general revenue sources.
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LEGISLATIVE UPDATES
The 2017 legislative session began with a full agenda, which included adopting a fiscal year 2018–2019
biennial state budget. The February 2017, state budget forecast projected that the state General Fund
would end the 2016–2017 biennium with a surplus of $743 million, eliminating the need for budget cuts
or transfers to balance the fund. However, the Legislature was expected to address several significant
spending areas for which successful funding appropriations had not been passed in recent legislative
sessions. The 2017 regular legislative session ended with four omnibus budget bills being vetoed,
potentially leaving a number of these same areas without appropriations. After a three-day special session,
the Governor and Legislature were able to agree on budget and appropriation bills addressing most of the
state budgetary needs for the upcoming biennium, albeit not without several line item vetoes invoked by
the Governor, including striking the appropriations for operating the House and Senate from the bills.
The following is a summary of recent legislation affecting Minnesota cities:
Omnibus Bonding Bill – The omnibus bonding bill authorizes financing for approximately $1.1 billion
in capital improvements. Included in the approved funding was $255 million for transportation
infrastructure, $83 million for economic development, $116 million for Public Financing Agency water
infrastructure loans and grants to municipalities, and $4 million for Metropolitan Council inflow and
infiltration improvement grants to metro area cities.
Omnibus Transportation Bill – The omnibus transportation bill appropriates $2.95 billion in fiscal 2018
and $2.87 billion in fiscal 2019, for a wide variety of transportation related projects. Included in the
appropriations are approximately $191 million and $198 million for municipal state aid street fund
purposes in fiscal 2018 and fiscal 2019, respectively.
Property Tax Relief – The omnibus tax bill contained a number of property tax relief measures,
including:
x
x
x
x

Elimination of the implicit price deflator annual increase for the state general property tax
levy, effectively freezing it at the payable 2018 level for many property classes;
Exempting the first $100,000 of each commercial-industrial parcel’s tax capacity from the
state general property tax levy;
Expanding eligibility for homestead or agricultural property classification exemptions for
certain types of resort and conservation property for general property taxes; and
Increasing the minimum value for a storage shed, deck, or similar structure on a leased
mobile home to be considered taxable from $1,000 to $10,000.

Local Government Aid – The annual appropriation for Local Government Aid (LGA) for cities was
increased $15.0 million to $534.4 million for aid payable in 2018 and thereafter, and the LGA payment
schedule was accelerated for fiscal 2019 only. Several corrections were also made to the city LGA
formula calculation, and a sparsity adjustment was incorporated for certain medium and small cities
beginning in 2018.
Minnesota Investment Fund – The omnibus jobs and economic growth bill appropriates $12.5 million
for each year of the biennium for the Minnesota Investment Fund, which is available for municipalities to
provide loans to assist with the expansion of local businesses.
Electronic Funds Transfers – Effective August 1, 2017, home rule charter cities of the second, third, or
fourth class are added to the list of local government entities allowed to pay certain claims using
electronic funds transfers. To be eligible, local governments must enact specified policy controls
governing the initiation, authorization, and documentation of electronic funds transfers.
Claims Declaration – The requiremen t to obtain a specific form of written claim declaration was also
repealed based on the understanding that by making the claim, the party making the claim is declaring
that the claim is just and correct and has not been paid previously.
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City E-mail Address Required to Receive State Aid – Effective for state aids payable in 2018 and
thereafter, cities will be required to register an official e-mail address with the Commissioner of the state
Department of Revenue in order to receive state aid payments.
Workforce Housing Tax Increment Financing – The omnibus tax bill created a new authorized use of
tax increment financing (TIF), for workforce housing in cities located outside of the statutorily defined
metropolitan area that meet certain criteria.
Tax Increment Financing Interfund Loans – Interfund loan provisions for TIF were amended to make
it easier for cities and development authorities to make and document interfund loans. Loans may now be
made or documented up to 60 days after the actual transfer or expenditure occurs. Interfund loan
resolutions may now be passed prior to the final approval of the related TIF plan. Loan terms may be
amended after the loan has been made if the TIF district has not been decertified.
Public Debt – The Legislature passed several amendments to statutes governing public debt that took
effect on July 1, 2017, including:
x
x
x

Allowing both home rule charter and statutory cities to issue 20-year capital notes for projects
to eliminate R-22 Freon-based refrigerant;
Increasing the maximum dollar limit on Housing and Redevelopment Authority general
obligation bond issues from $3 million to $5 million; and
Modifying the requirements for street reconstruction bonds to be approved by a two-thirds
majority of the governing body rather than requiring unanimous approval.

Local Housing Trust Funds – The omnibus jobs and economic growth appropriations bill established
authority for cities to create a local housing trust fund by ordinance, or to participate in a joint powers
agreement to establish a regional housing trust fund. The funds, which may be financed from sources such
as local government appropriations or housing and redevelopment authority levies, may be used for grants
or loans for development, rehabilitation, financing of housing to match federal or state or private funds for
housing, down payment assistance, rental assistance, or homebuyer counseling.
Long-Term Equity Investment Authority – Effective July 1, 2017, cities with a population of more
than 100,000 or those that had their most recently issued general obligation bonds rated in the highest
category, are authorized to invest in an expanded list of authorized investments that includes certain
equity-based investments. The amount invested in equity-based investments cannot exceed 15 percent of
the sum of a city’s assigned cash, cash equivalents, deposits, and investments. Before investing in the
expanded list of authorized investments, the governing body of the municipality must adopt a resolution
acknowledging the risks assumed.
Border-to-Border Broadband Grants – The Legislature appropriated $20 million in fiscal 2018 for the
Border-to-Border Broadband Grant Program. The grants, available through the Office of Broadband
Development in the Department of Employment and Economic Development, provide funding to help
communities meet state goals for the development of state-wide, high-speed broadband access, focusing
on areas currently considered to be underserved or with a high concentration of low-income households.
Elections – An omnibus elections law was passed making several modifications to election
administration, including: requiring special elections conducted by local governments be held on one of
five uniform election dates, clarifying the timeline for municipalities to change from odd to
even-year election cycles or vise-versa, allowing municipalities to canvass the results of a primary
election on the second or third day after the primary, and appropriating $7 million for grants to replace
aging election equipment or purchase electronic poll books.
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Workers’ Compensation and PERA Retirement Benefits – A statutory change was adopted based on
the results of recent court rulings that Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) retirement
benefits should not be offset against workers’ compensation permanent total disability benefits. Under the
new law, claimants would receive all past and future permanent and total disability benefits without a
PERA retirement offset.
Notice of Proposed Ordinances – A new statute was created requiring cities to provide a 10-day notice
prior to a scheduled final vote on most new proposed ordinances or amendments to ordinances, and
specifying the various acceptable means of providing the required notification.
State Building Code Applicability – Construction, additions, and alterations to places of public
accommodation; defined as publicly or privately-owned facilities designed for occupancy by 200 or more
people as a sports or entertainment arena, stadium, theater, community or convention hall, special event
center, indoor amusement facility or water park, or indoor swimming pool; must comply with the state
building code.
Sunday Liquor Sales – Minnesota Statutes were amended to allow for the sale of intoxicating liquor on
Sundays between the hours of 11:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. by off-sale licensees, effective July 1, 2017.
REAL ID Act – Minnesota Statutes were amended to make the state compliant with federal REAL ID
Act requirements, which will change identity verification and security related to state-issued identification
cards and driver’s licenses.
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ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING UPDATES
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than
Pensions
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for governments whose
employees are provided with other post-employment benefits (OPEB), as well as for certain nonemployer
governments that have a legal obligation to provide financial support for OPEB provided to the
employees of other entities. This statement replaces the requirements of GASB Statement Nos. 45 and 57.
This statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. Similar to changes implemented for
pensions, this statement requires the liability of employer and nonemployer contributing entities to
employees for defined benefit OPEB (net OPEB liability) to be measured as the portion of the present
value of projected benefit payments to be provided to current active and inactive employees that is
attributed to those employees’ past periods of service (total OPEB liability), less the amount of the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position. Note disclosure and RSI requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are
addressed.
The requirements for this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier
application is encouraged.
GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations
This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations
(ARO), which are legally enforceable liabilities associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset.
This statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for ARO. A government that has legal obligations to perform
future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability when it is
both incurred and reasonably estimable. The measurement of an ARO is required to be based on the best
estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be incurred, and a deferred outflow of resources
associated with an ARO is required to be measured at the amount of the corresponding liability upon
initial measurement.
This statement requires the current value of a government’s AROs to be adjusted for the effects of general
inflation or deflation at least annually, and a government to evaluate all relevant factors at least annually
to determine whether the effects of one or more of the factors are expected to significantly change the
estimated asset retirement outlays. A government should remeasure an ARO only when the result of the
evaluation indicates there is a significant change in the estimated outlays. Deferred outflows of resources
should be reduced and recognized as outflows of resources in a systematic and rational manner over the
estimated useful life of the tangible capital asset.
If a government owns a minority interest in a jointly owned tangible asset where a nongovernmental
entity is the majority owner or has operational responsibility for the jointly owned asset, the government’s
minority share of an ARO should be reported using the measurement produced by the nongovernmental
majority owner or the nongovernmental minority owner that has operational responsibility, without
adjustment to conform to the liability measurement and recognition requirements of this statement.
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The statement also requires disclosures of any funding or financial assurance requirements a government
has related to the performance of asset retirement activities, along with any assets restricted for the
payment of the government’s AROs. This statement also requires disclosure of information about the
nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and
the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible capital assets. If an ARO (or portions
thereof) has been incurred by a government but is not yet recognized because it is not reasonably
estimable, the government is required to disclose that fact and the reasons therefor. This statement
requires similar disclosures for a government’s minority shares of AROs.
The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities
This statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and post-employment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.
An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements,
which should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net
position. This statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension
(and other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and
(4) custodial funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust
or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria.
A fiduciary component unit, when reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements of a primary
government, should combine its information with its component units that are fiduciary component units
and aggregate that combined information with the primary government’s fiduciary funds.
This statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an
event has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources, defined as when a
demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, or condition is required to
be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets.
The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.
GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017
The objective of this statement is to address issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB statements. The statement addresses a variety of topics, including issues
related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and
post-employment benefits (pensions and OPEB). The statement is meant to enhance consistency in the
application of recent accounting and financial reporting standards. The requirements of this statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.
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GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues
Current GASB guidance requires that debt be considered defeased in substance when the debtor
irrevocably places cash or other monetary assets acquired with refunding debt proceeds in a trust to be
used solely for satisfying scheduled payments of both principal and interest of the defeased debt. This
new standard establishes essentially the same requirements for when a government places cash and other
monetary assets acquired with only existing resources in an irrevocable trust to extinguish the debt.
The primary objective of this statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting
for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other
monetary assets acquired with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding
debt—are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This statement also
improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes
to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. The requirements of this statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases
A lease is a contract that transfers control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset as
specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Examples of
nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, and equipment. Any contract that meets this
definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, unless specifically excluded in this
statement.
Governments enter into leases for many types of assets. Under the previous guidance, leases were
classified as either capital or operating depending on whether the lease met any of four tests. In many
cases, the previous guidance resulted in reporting lease transactions differently than similar nonlease
financing transactions.
The goal of this statement is to better meet the information needs of users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on
the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This statement increases the
usefulness of financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases
that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.
Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease
asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
To reduce the cost of implementation, this statement includes an exception for short-term leases, defined
as a lease that, at the commencement of the lease term, has a maximum possible term under the lease
contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of being
exercised. Lessees and lessors should recognize short-term lease payments as outflows of resources or
inflows of resources, respectively, based on the payment provisions of the lease contract. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
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C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 26, 2018.
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify one deficiency
in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings as item 2017-001, that we
consider to be a significant deficiency.
(continued)
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COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
CITY’S RESPONSE TO FINDING
The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 26, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 26, 2018.
MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE
The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to
Minnesota Statutes § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding,
deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements,
miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing. Our audit considered all of the listed categories.
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City failed to
comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities. However, our
audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had
we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the City’s
noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 26, 2018
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Schedule of Findings
Year Ended December 31, 2017

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
2017-001

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES
Criteria – Internal control over financial reporting.
Condition – The City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) has limited segregation of duties in a
number of areas, including controls over cash disbursements, investments, and payroll.
Context – This is a current year and prior year finding. Due to improvement in the frequency
and timeliness of mitigating controls performed by the City Council and management, this
deficiency was reduced from being considered a material weakness in previous years, to
being reported as a significant deficiency for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Cause – The limited segregation of duties is primarily caused by the limited size of the City’s
business office staff.
Effect – One important element of internal accounting controls is an adequate segregation of
duties such that no one individual has responsibility to execute a transaction, have physical
access to the related assets, and have responsibility or authority to record the transaction. A
lack of segregation of duties subjects the City to a higher risk that errors or fraud could occur
and not be detected in a timely manner in the normal course of business.
Recommendation – We recommend that the City continue to segregate duties as best it can
within the limits of what the City considers to be cost beneficial.
Management Response – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. The City reviews
and makes improvements to its internal control structure on an ongoing basis and attempts to
maximize the segregation of duties in all areas within the limits of the staff available.
However, the City does not consider it cost beneficial at this time to increase the size of its
staff in order to further segregate accounting functions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31,
2017, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
(continued)
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OPINIONS
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on the previous page present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City as of December 31, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
OTHER MATTERS
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information (RSI), as listed in the table of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, and supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
The introductory section and supplementary information have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

(continued)
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OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 26, 2018
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 26, 2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As management of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.
Financial Highlights - Primary Government
x

The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $62,374,869 (net position). Of this amount, $11,244,840 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

x

The City’s total net position increased by $2,726,693. This was primarily a result of a contribution from the discretely
presented component unit for reimbursement of prior year costs totaling $1,760,500.

x

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$12,164,610, a decrease of $5,805,176 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 25.6 percent of this total amount,
$3,110,253, is available for spending at the City’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

x

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General fund was $3,117,038 or 52.8 percent of total
General fund 2017 expenditures and transfers out.

x

The City’s total noncurrent bonded liabilities decreased $593,020 or 3.0 percent during the current fiscal year. This was due
to scheduled principal payments on outstanding bonds.
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Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial
statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
The following chart shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. In addition to these
required elements, we have included a section with combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules that provide
details about nonmajor governmental funds, which are added together and presented in single columns in the basic financial
statements.

Organization of the
City’s Annual Financial Report

Management's
Discussion and
Analysis

Basic
Financial
Statements

Required
Supplementary
Information

Governmentwide Financial
Statements

Fund
Financial
Statements

Notes to the
Financial
Statements

Summary

Detail
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The following chart summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the portion of the City government
they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis
explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Major features of the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Scope

Required
financial
statements

Accounting
Basis and
measurement
focus
Type of
asset/liability
information
Type of
deferred
outflows/
inflows of
resources
information
Type of
inflow/out flow
information

Government-wide
Statements
Entire City
government (except
fiduciary funds) and
the City’s component
units
x Statement of Net
Position
x Statement of
Activities

Governmental Funds

Fund Financial Statements
Proprietary Funds

The activities of the City that are
not proprietary or fiduciary, such
as police, fire and parks
x Balance Sheet
x Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual accounting and
current financial resources focus

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term
All deferred
outflows/inflows of
resources, regardless
of when cash is
received or paid

Only assets expected to be used
up and liabilities that come due
during the year or soon thereafter;
no capital assets included

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when
cash is received or
paid

Revenues for which cash is
received during or soon after the
end of the year; expenditures
when goods or services have been
received and the related liability
is due and payable

Only deferred outflows of
resources expected to be used up
and deferred inflows of resources
that come due during the year or
soon thereafter

Fiduciary Funds

Activities the City
operates similar to
private businesses, such
as the water and sewer
system
x Statement of Net
Position
x Statement of
Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net
Position
x Statement of Cash
Flows
Accrual accounting and
economic resources
focus

Instances in which the
City administers
resources on behalf of
someone else, such as
developers
x Statement of
fiduciary net
position

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term
All deferred
outflows/inflows of
resources, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term
None currently
identified

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid

All additions and
deductions during the
year, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid

Accrual accounting
and no measurement
focus

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows with
the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general
government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, and interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the
City include water, sewer, licensing, liquor, solid waste, and stormwater.
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government), but also a legally
separate Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) for which the City is financially accountable. The HRA has been reported as a
discretely presented component unit and does not prepare separate financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements start on page 31 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and the fiduciary fund.
Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a City’s near-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact by the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
The City maintains numerous individual governmental funds, four of which are Debt Service funds. The HRA maintains 4 individual
governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the City’s governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General, Debt Service, and Internally Financed Capital
Project funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the City’s other governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the City’s nonmajor governmental funds as well as the HRA’s
individual governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements or schedules elsewhere in this report.
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the
General fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
The basic governmental fund financial statements start on page 36 of this report.
Proprietary Funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented
as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer,
licensing, liquor, solid waste, and stormwater operations.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the enterprise funds, all of which are considered to be
major funds of the City.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements start on page 42 of this report.
Fiduciary Fund. The fiduciary fund is used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City. The fiduciary fund
is not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of this fund are not available to support the City’s
own programs.
The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 52 of this report.
Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements start on page 53 of this report.
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Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents required
supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and OPEB benefits to its
employees. Required supplementary information can be found starting on page 86 of this report.
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and the discretely presented component
unit are presented following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules start on
page 92 of this report.
Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the City,
assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $62,374,869 at the close of the
most recent fiscal year.
By far, the largest portion of the City’s net position (74.7 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
machinery and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets
to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Wayzata’s Summary of Net Position
Governmental Activities

Assets
Current and other assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charges on refunding
Deferred pension resources
Total Deferred Outflows
Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities outstanding
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Business-type Activities

2017

2016

Increase
(Decrease)

$ 14,469,254
44,750,356
59,219,610

$ 21,453,321
36,462,734
57,916,055

$ (6,984,067)
8,287,622
1,303,555

$ 7,306,195
20,844,519
28,150,714

$ 7,111,880
21,088,093
28,199,973

2,363,195
2,363,195

3,456,417
3,456,417

(1,093,222)
(1,093,222)

56,259
518,043
574,302

777,800
777,800

56,259
(259,757)
(203,498)

14,648,900
232,146
14,881,046

18,091,034
1,174,184
19,265,218

(3,442,134)
(942,038)
(4,384,172)

9,705,864
173,296
9,879,160

10,213,610
319,495
10,533,105

(507,746)
(146,199)
(653,945)

2,729,661

657,197

443,085

246,549

33,361,273
2,910,672
7,700,153

32,550,256
3,085,974
5,813,827

13,227,983
1,630,101
3,544,687

13,229,599
1,726,709
3,241,811

$ 43,972,098

$ 41,450,057

$ 18,402,771

$ 18,198,119

2,072,464

811,017
(175,302)
1,886,326
$ 2,522,041

2017

2016

Increase
(Decrease)
$

194,315
(243,574)
(49,259)

196,536

(1,616)
(96,608)
302,876
$

204,652

An additional portion of the City’s net position, $4,540,773, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position $11,244,840 may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for the City
as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The increase in total net position was primarily a
result of a contribution from the discretely presented component unit for reimbursement of prior year costs totaling $1,760,500.
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Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $2,522,041, thereby accounting 92.5 percent
of the total growth in net position of the City. Significant changes from the prior year are noted below:

City of Wayzata’s Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities

Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total revenues
Expenses
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid waste
Stormwater
Total expenses
Changes in net position before transfers
Transfers - capital assets
Transfers - internal activities
Change in net position
Net position, January 1
Net position, December 31

2017

2016

$ 1,912,391
321,115
1,990,600

$ 2,232,852
370,400
1,719,367

4,678,674
152,117

4,584,544
149,268

61,361
294,491
16,395

55,992
78,763
18,953

9,427,144

9,210,139

1,955,808
2,545,678
1,802,342
983,380
328,243
-

Business-type Activities

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

2017

2016

$ 9,133,202
16,582
378,648

$ 8,684,556
60,513
402,476

-

-

-

92,956
-

46,175
-

46,781
-

217,005

9,621,388

9,193,720

427,668

1,684,626
2,899,134
1,793,518
1,426,073
165,555
-

271,182
(353,456)
8,824
(442,693)
162,688
-

925,596
975,577
390,442
5,876,492
359,495
178,786

877,646
976,953
366,121
5,495,023
357,902
171,774

47,950
(1,376)
24,321
381,469
1,593
7,012

7,615,451

7,968,906

(353,455)

8,706,388

8,245,419

460,969

1,811,693
(45,752)
756,100

1,241,233
527,850

570,460
(45,752)
228,250

$

(320,461)
(49,285)
271,233

94,130
2,849
5,369
215,728
(2,558)

915,000
45,752
(756,100)

$

948,301
(527,850)

2,522,041
41,450,057

1,769,083
39,680,974

752,958
1,769,083

204,652
18,198,119

420,451
17,777,668

$ 43,972,098

$ 41,450,057

$ 2,522,041

$ 18,402,771

$ 18,198,119

448,646
(43,931)
(23,828)

(33,301)
45,752
(228,250)
(215,799)
420,451
$

204,652

The most significant changes in revenues for the current year are due to a decrease in charges for services revenue of approximately
$320,000. The decrease in Public Safety expenses related to the decrease of pension liability allocated from PERA. The decrease in
culture and recreation related to a decrease in costs related to the lake effect study that took place in 2016. The increase in interest on
long-term debt is a result of costs related to new debt issuances in 2016.
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The following graph depicts various governmental activities and shows the revenue and expenses directly related to those activities.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$General government

Public safety

Expenses

Public works

Culture and recreation Interest on long-term
debt

Program revenues

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
Grants and
contributions
unrestricted
0.7%

Unrestricted investment
earnings
3.1%

Franchise fees
1.6%

Gain on sale of capital
assets
0.2%
Charges for services
20.3%
Operating grants and
contributions
3.4%

Capital grants and
contributions
21.1%

Property taxes
49.6%

-23-

Business-type Activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $204,652, thereby accounting 7.5 percent of the
total growth in net position of the City. This increase was the result of charges for services, WAC/SAC connection charges, and
capital contributions in excess of expenses and transfers out.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
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HRA Component Unit
At the end of the fiscal year, the HRA reported net position of $900,943. This is a decrease of $1,907,456 from the previous year,
which is primarily a result the contributions to the City for the downtown ramp project.
Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
Governmental Funds: The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds had combined ending fund balances of $12,164,610, a decrease
of $5,805,176 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 25.6 percent of this total amount, constitutes unassigned fund
balance, which is available for spending at the City’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance ($9,054,357) is not available for new
spending because it is either 1) nonspendable ($874,532), 2) restricted ($964,295), 3) committed ($163,572), or 4) assigned
($7,051,958). For further classification, refer to Note 3F on page 72 of this report.
Activity in the City’s major funds is discussed below.
Fund Balance December 31,
2017
2016

Major Funds

Increase
(Decrease)

$ 4,258,409 $ 2,835,183 $ 1,423,226
General
The General fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As a measure of the General fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare fund balance
to total fund expenditures and transfers out. Fund balance represents 72 percent of total 2017 expenditures and transfers out. Of the fund balance,
$3,117,038 is unassigned and will be used for cash flow for general operations and to support operations until funds are received in June from the
first tax settlement.
$ 513,868 $ 555,341 $
(41,473)
Debt Service
The decrease in fund balance is primarily due to debt service requirements greater than current year collection of taxes and special assessments.
Internally Financed Capital Project
The decrease in fund balance is due to public works capital outaly expenditures.

$

283,877

7,956,204

(7,672,327)

Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $3,544,687. Other
factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.
General fund Budgetary Highlights
The City’s General fund budget was not amended during the year. The budget called for no change in fund balance. Both revenues and
expenditures provided positive budget variances. Some of the significant variances provided by revenues and expenditures are briefly
summarized as follows:
x

Revenues were more than anticipated by $1,445,734. The largest positive variance was within the intergovernmental category
due to reimbursement from the component unit for project costs of $1,003,485.

x

Current expenditures were $183,973 less than budgeted. Significant variances within current expenditures were public works
and culture and recreation. The public works and culture and recreation were under budget by $122,092 and $67,323,
respectively.

x

In consideration of the positive variances in revenues and expenditures, an additional $208,200 over budget was transferred
to capital project funds to finance future projects.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31, 2017,
amounts to $65,594,875 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress,
land improvements, buildings, infrastructure, and machinery and equipment. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital
assets for the current fiscal year was 14.0 percent. Major capital asset activity includes:
x

The governmental construction in progress decreased $3,676,451 due to completed projects. This decrease is primarily
related to the Downtown Parking Ramp project, which was completed during 2017.

x

Additions in governmental activities included $9,873,249 for buildings, and $2,832,123 and $543,225 for infrastructure and
machinery and equipment, respectively.

x

Additions in business-type activities included infrastructure and machinery and equipment for $1,805,878 and $88,429,
respectively.

x

Disposals included fully depreciated machinery and equipment that was either replaced or no longer in use.

City of Wayzata’s Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Activities

Land
Construction in Progress
Land Improvements
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment
Total

Business-type Activities

Increase
(Decrease)

2017

2016

$ 7,563,994
983,376
64,027
22,717,010
10,953,575
2,468,374

$ 7,563,994
4,659,827
68,367
13,250,340
8,590,243
2,329,963

$

$ 44,750,356

$ 36,462,734

$ 8,287,622

(3,676,451)
(4,340)
9,466,670
2,363,332
138,411

2017
$

Increase
(Decrease)

2016

973,048
788,867
7,653,064
10,869,335
560,205

$ 20,844,519

$

973,048
2,354,471
7,843,634
9,370,794
546,146

$

(1,565,604)
(190,570)
1,498,541
14,059

$ 21,088,093

$

(243,574)

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 3C starting on page 64 of this report.
Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $18,585,000. This amount
consists of G.O. bonds, G.O. improvement bonds, G.O. tax increment bonds, and G.O. revenue bonds. While many of these bonds
have their own revenue streams, they are all backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

City of Wayzata’s Outstanding Long-term Liabilities
Governmental Activities

G.O. Bonds
G.O. Improvement Bonds
G.O. Tax Increment Bonds
G.O. Revenue Bonds
Unamortized Bond Premium
Total

Business-type Activities

Increase
(Decrease)

2017

2016

2017

$ 1,290,000
2,165,000
7,725,000
321,120

$ 1,480,000
2,300,000
7,725,000
347,182

$

(190,000)
(135,000)
(26,062)

$

$ 11,501,120

$ 11,852,182

$

(351,062)

$ 7,616,536

1,610,000
5,795,000
211,536

Increase
(Decrease)

2016
$

1,710,000
6,085,000
63,494

$

(100,000)
(290,000)
148,042

$ 7,858,494

$

(241,958)

The City’s total long-term liabilities decreased $593,020 (3.0 percent) during the current fiscal year. This was primarily scheduled
principal payments on outstanding bonds.
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In accordance with Minnesota statutes, the City may not incur or be subject to net debt in excess of three percent of the estimated
market value of taxable property within the City. Net debt is payable solely from ad valorem taxes and, therefore, excludes debt
financed partially or entirely by special assessments, enterprise fund revenues, or tax increments. The City’s estimated market value of
taxable property in 2017 was $1,800,471,850. The City’s legal debt limit was $54,014,155 and $1,290,000 of the City’s debt is
applicable to the limit.
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3E starting on page 67 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
x

Preliminary market values for the 2018 tax year continue to be strong and improving over the prior year. Residential
valuations have increased approximately 10 percent over 2017. The overall market value increased 8 percent due to the
combination of new development and the increase in residential values.

x

The Promenade Project was completed with the opening of the Landing Hotel and Condominiums. The project will have a
positive effect on development related revenue and help to fill out the rest of the retail within the development. Over the past
year, over 30,000 sf of retail space was absorbed. The Landing Hotel and Condominiums has 30 condominium units, 90
boutique hotel rooms, a restaurant, and approximately 25,000 square feet of retail space. Estimated market value at
completion in 2018 is about $50 million.

x

The City will evaluate and continue to enhance the planning for capital related items. This includes a more extensive review
of anticipated projects and a complete matching of resources to costs.

x

The City was successful in securing legislation that allowed it to keep its Widsten TIF District open in order to pay back cash
it put towards the parking ramp. The net of the legislation means more than $1.6 million dollars will be reimbursed back to
General Fund and Enterprise Funds accounts it previously loaned the cash to.

x

The City Council also continues to move forward with the Lake Effect Park Project it approved in 2016 by developing a
financial plan for the city portion of the project, which is projected to be a $4.6 million project. In 2018, the City will start
with the design of the project with construction starting in 2019. The intent of this project is to showcase Lake Minnetonka, a
significant resource for the City.

x

The City established a new TIF District on the western half of Lake Street. The new district will help stimulate
redevelopment and also pay for a new public/private parking lot. Approx. 58 condo units and 75,000 sf of office are projected
to be developed within the district over the next 5-years.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2018 fiscal year.
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest in the City’s
finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should
be addressed to the Senior Accountant, City of Wayzata, 600 Rice Street East, Wayzata, Minnesota 55391.
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017
Primary Government

Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Accrued interest
Taxes
Accounts
Notes
Special assessments
Internal balances
Due from component unit
Due from other governments
Inventories
Capital assets
Land and construction in progress
Depreciable assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources
Deferred charges on refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to primary government
Deposits payable
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Debt service
Economic development
Parks and trails
Public safety police expenses
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$ 10,812,614

$

79,587
25,215
46,222
2,168,054
60,000
1,273,440
4,122
-

5,410,284
4,347
197,604
1,045,563
(60,000)
260,826
21,847
425,724

Total
$ 16,222,898

Component Unit
Housing and
Redevelopment
Authority
$

1,409,670

83,934
25,215
243,826
3,213,617
1,534,266
25,969
425,724

8,086
19,250
-

8,547,370
36,202,986
59,219,610

1,761,915
19,082,604
28,150,714

10,309,285
55,285,590
87,370,324

2,092,900
3,529,906

2,363,195
2,363,195

518,043
56,259
574,302

2,881,238
56,259
2,937,497

-

99,166
18,807
2,989
106,587
4,597

37,614
74,172
20,167
13,843
27,500

136,780
92,979
23,156
120,430
32,097

1,000,677
67,746
25,571
1,534,266
703

524,612
14,124,288
14,881,046

474,870
9,230,994
9,879,160

999,482
23,355,282
24,760,206

2,628,963

2,729,661

443,085

3,172,746

-

33,361,273

13,227,983

46,589,256

2,092,900

2,572,282
107,066
142,176
89,148
7,700,153

1,630,101
3,544,687

4,202,383
107,066
142,176
89,148
11,244,840

55,831
(1,247,788)

$ 43,972,098

$ 18,402,771

$ 62,374,869

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

900,943

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Functions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Total Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid waste
Stormwater
Total Business-type Activities
Total primary government
Component Unit
Housing and Redevelopment Authority

Charges for
Services

Expenses

$

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

1,955,808
2,545,678
1,802,342
983,380
328,243
7,615,451

$

626,319
807,841
235,033
243,198
1,912,391

$

11,120
280,009
20,000
9,986
321,115

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

$

925,596
975,577
390,442
5,876,492
359,495
178,786
8,706,388

825,129
950,007
521,062
6,201,851
351,457
283,696
9,133,202

$ 16,321,839

$ 11,045,593

$

337,697

$

2,369,248

$

$

$

-

$

-

4,464,314

-

70
70
93
439
15,902
8
16,582

29,810
1,936,157
24,633
1,990,600

General Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Tax increment
Franchise fees
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers - Capital Assets
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position, January 1
Net Position, December 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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344,422
34,215
11
378,648

Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Component Unit
Housing and
Governmental
Business-type
Redevelopment
Total
Authority
Activities
Activities

$

(1,318,369)
(1,428,018)
388,848
(705,563)
(328,243)
(3,391,345)

(3,391,345)

$

-

244,025
8,715
130,713
325,798
7,864
104,929
822,044
822,044

$

(1,318,369)
(1,428,018)
388,848
(705,563)
(328,243)
(3,391,345)

$

-

244,025
8,715
130,713
325,798
7,864
104,929
822,044

-

(2,569,301)

-

-

-

-

(4,464,314)

4,431,706
246,968
152,117
61,361
294,491

92,956

4,431,706
246,968
152,117
61,361
387,447

2,543,054
13,804

16,395

-

16,395

-

(45,752)
756,100
5,913,386

45,752
(756,100)
(617,392)

5,295,994

2,556,858

2,522,041

204,652

2,726,693

(1,907,456)

41,450,057

18,198,119

59,648,176

2,808,399

$ 43,972,098

$ 18,402,771

$ 62,374,869

$

900,943

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF WAYZATA
WAYZATA, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017

-35-

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2017

Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Interest
Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other funds
Due from component unit
Due from other governments
Advances to other funds
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Deposits payable
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - delinquent taxes
Unavailable revenue - special assessments
Total Deferred Inflows
Of Resources
Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balances

101

300's

General

Debt
Service

$ 3,306,531

$

516,118

401
Internally
Financed
Capital Project

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

301,010

$ 6,688,955

$ 10,812,614

3,053
-

6,648
16,988
2,330
398,908
100
60,000

79,587
25,215
46,222
2,168,054
2,330
1,273,440
4,122
60,000

$ 7,173,929

$ 14,471,584

$

$

72,939
25,215
29,234
874,532
4,022
-

2,165,001
-

$ 4,312,473

$ 2,681,119

$

304,063

$

$

$

17,133
17,133

20,218
18,807
2,989
1,019
43,033

2,250
2,250

59,565
3,578
2,330
65,473

99,166
18,807
2,989
4,597
2,330
127,889

11,031
-

2,165,001

3,053

-

11,031
2,168,054

11,031

2,165,001

3,053

-

2,179,085

874,532
266,839
3,117,038
4,258,409

513,868
513,868

112,037
171,840
283,877

$ 4,312,473

$ 2,681,119

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

304,063

338,390
163,572
6,613,279
(6,785)
7,108,456

$ 7,173,929

874,532
964,295
163,572
7,051,958
3,110,253
12,164,610

$ 14,471,584

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2017
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because
Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$ 12,164,610

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported as assets in governmental funds.
Cost of capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

55,051,897
(10,301,541)

Noncurrent liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Noncurrent liabilities at year-end consist of
Compensated absences payable
Other postemployment benefits payable
Pension liability
Bond principal payable
Plus: unamortized bond premium

(325,432)
(182,500)
(2,639,848)
(11,180,000)
(321,120)

Some receivables are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures,
and therefore are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds.
Delinquent taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable

11,031
2,168,054

Governmental funds do not report long-term amounts related to pensions.
Deferred outflow of resources
Deferred inflow of resources
Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest until due and payable.
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

2,363,195
(2,729,661)
(106,587)
$ 43,972,098

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements
Other
Total Revenues

101

300's

General

Debt
Service

$ 4,227,130
85,000
595,372
1,306,099
716,702
81,423
123,759

$

246,968
39,747
249,543
6,032

401
Internally
Financed
Capital Project

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

$

210,000
67,117
170,290
759,985
342,908
10,152
130,135

$ 4,684,098
152,117
765,662
2,115,499
1,059,610
91,575
250,708
294,491

9,668
1,165
34,565

18,153
7,153,638

542,290

45,398

80,526
25,664
4,404
1,801,181

80,526
25,664
22,557
9,542,507

1,250,261
2,232,222
703,182
530,460
214,831

-

-

551,787
26,677
193,726
70,672

1,802,048
2,258,899
703,182
724,186
285,503

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other
Total Expenditures

1,093
2,408
-

-

7,717,725
-

84,040
475,561
1,160,368
343,121

85,133
477,969
8,878,093
343,121

4,934,457

325,000
258,763
583,763

7,717,725

2,905,952

325,000
258,763
16,141,897

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

2,219,181

(41,473)

(7,672,327)

(1,104,771)

(6,599,390)

1,658,774
16,395
(85,000)
1,590,169

1,808,774
16,395
21,719
(1,052,674)
794,214

485,398

(5,805,176)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Sale of capital assets
Insurance recovery
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

150,000
21,719
(967,674)
(795,955)

-

-

Net Change in Fund Balances

1,423,226

(41,473)

(7,672,327)

Fund Balances, January 1

2,835,183

555,341

7,956,204

6,623,058

17,969,786

283,877

$ 7,108,456

$ 12,164,610

Fund Balances, December 31

$ 4,258,409

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

513,868

$

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because
Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
Capital outlays
Depreciation expense

(5,805,176)

9,617,898
(1,284,524)

Governmental funds report projects in capital project funds. Some of the capital assets
constructed in the project will be maintained by business-type activity funds. The assets
are reported as a transfer from the government-activities to the business-type activities.

(45,752)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The amounts below are the effects of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.
Principal repayments
Amortization of bond premium

325,000
26,062

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due,
and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities, however,
interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

(95,542)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits

(4,368)
(10,664)

Long-term pension activity is not reported in governmental funds
Pension revenue from state contributions
Pension expense

9,553
(69,135)

Certain revenues are recognized as soon as they are earned. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, certain revenues cannot be recognized until they are available to liquidate liabilities
of the current period.
Property taxes
Special assessments
Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities

(5,424)
(135,887)
$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Variance with
Final Budget

$ 4,155,216
82,000
438,375
189,600
737,213
75,500
25,000
5,000
5,707,904

$ 4,155,216
82,000
438,375
189,600
737,213
75,500
25,000
5,000
5,707,904

$ 4,227,130
85,000
595,372
1,306,099
716,702
81,423
123,759
18,153
7,153,638

1,194,851
2,265,022
825,274
597,783
232,000

1,194,851
2,265,022
825,274
597,783
232,000

1,250,261
2,232,222
703,182
530,460
214,831

(55,410)
32,800
122,092
67,323
17,169

1,000
2,500
5,118,430

1,000
2,500
5,118,430

1,093
2,408
4,934,457

(93)
92
183,973

589,474

589,474

2,219,181

170,000
(759,474)

170,000
(759,474)

150,000
21,719
(967,674)

(20,000)
21,719
(208,200)

(589,474)

(589,474)

(795,955)

(206,481)

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Insurance recovery
Transfers out
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

$

71,914
3,000
156,997
1,116,499
(20,511)
5,923
98,759
13,153
1,445,734

1,629,707

-

-

1,423,226

1,423,226

2,835,183

2,835,183

2,835,183

-

$ 2,835,183

$ 2,835,183

$ 4,258,409

$ 1,423,226

Fund Balances, January 1
Fund Balances, December 31

Actual
Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position (Continued on the Following Pages)
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2017

610
Water
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Accrued interest
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Inventories
Due from component unit
Total Current Assets

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
620
630
640
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor

$ 2,411,846

Noncurrent Assets
Special assessments
Due from component unit
Capital assets
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation)

$

620,193

$

145,380

$ 1,226,309

4,347
52,097
80,562
12,924
14,021
73,162
2,648,959

83,975
77,653
8,923
790,744

145,380

763
411,703
1,638,775

463,441
187,664

423,895
-

-

-

3,975
6,077,906
4,394,591
201,938
682,812
(1,984,777)

8,495
30,830
3,885,417
395,947
106,055
(1,041,958)

-

679,550
3,439,095
110,149
824,587
(898,706)

9,376,445

3,384,786

-

4,154,675

Total Noncurrent Assets

10,027,550

3,808,681

-

4,154,675

Total Assets

12,676,509

4,599,425

145,380

5,793,450

52,780
56,259
109,039

52,781
52,781

70,237
70,237

331,509
331,509

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources
Deferred charges on refunding
Total Deferred Outflows

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2017

610
Water
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Accrued interest payable
Deposits payable
Advances from other funds - current portion
Compensated absences payable, current portion
Bonds payable, current portion
Total Current Liabilities

$

Noncurrent Liabilities
Advances from other funds
Other postemployment benefits payable
Pension liability
Compensated absences payable
Unamortized bond premium
Bonds payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

17,101
437
133
3,115
6,057
17,170
265,000
309,013

$

5,410
133
921
17,170
35,000
58,634

$

300
11,012
808
11,751
23,871

$

12,129
56,039
19,093
9,807
21,443
14,500
18,779
110,000
261,790

16,998
192,561
16,955
170,230
3,875,000
4,271,744

16,994
192,584
16,955
8,427
370,000
604,960

15,114
256,278
5,035
276,427

45,500
39,022
1,209,610
4,728
32,879
2,750,000
4,081,739

4,580,757

663,594

300,298

4,343,529

45,143

45,143

60,075

283,542

5,066,215
1,188,369
1,905,064

2,971,359
441,732
530,378

$ 8,159,648

$ 3,943,469

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
620
630
640
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

(144,756)

1,261,796
236,092

(144,756)

$ 1,497,888

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
650
670
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Accrued interest
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Inventories
Due from component unit
Total Current Assets

$

Noncurrent Assets
Special assessments
Capital assets
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation)
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources
Deferred charges on refunding

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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223,754

$

782,802

$ 5,410,284

33,715
257,469

27,054
12
809,868

4,347
197,604
158,227
21,847
425,724
260,826
6,478,859

-

-

887,336

-

281,028
5,256,801
(1,609,216)

973,048
9,547,831
13,646,958
1,422,472
788,867
(5,534,657)

-

3,928,613

20,844,519

-

3,928,613

21,731,855

257,469

4,738,481

28,210,714

5,317
5,317

5,419
5,419

518,043
56,259
574,302

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
650
670
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Accrued interest payable
Deposits payable
Advances from other funds - current portion
Compensated absences payable, current portion
Bonds payable, current portion
Total Current Liabilities

$

Noncurrent Liabilities
Advances from other funds
Other postemployment benefits payable
Pension liability
Compensated absences payable
Unamortized bond premium
Bonds payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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6,684
6,684

$

2,674
2,674

$

37,614
74,172
20,167
13,843
27,500
14,500
64,870
410,000
662,666

806
19,397
20,203

1,647
19,774
21,421

45,500
90,581
1,890,204
43,673
211,536
6,995,000
9,276,494

26,887

24,095

9,939,160

4,547

4,635

443,085

231,352

3,928,613
786,557

13,227,983
1,630,101
3,544,687

231,352

$ 4,715,170

$ 18,402,771

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position (Continued on the Following Page)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

610
Water
Operating Revenues
Sales
Cost of Sales

$

Gross Profit

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
620
630
640
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
-

$

-

$

-

$ 6,184,891
(3,127,367)

-

-

-

3,057,524

Charges for services
Total Operating Revenues

750,334
750,334

950,007
950,007

521,062
521,062

3,057,524

Operating Expenses
Personnel services
Supplies
Professional services
Utilities
Other services and charges
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

270,883
51,771
46,349
71,008
21,070
27,311
222,255
710,647

270,915
25,805
25,793
486,315
17,535
19,516
117,556
963,435

374,669
4,265
1,823
5,921
3,764
390,442

1,812,170
130,582
128,507
80,715
226,328
127,760
119,493
2,625,555

39,687

(13,428)

130,620

431,969

59,036
74,865
(214,949)
(81,048)

7,950
70
(12,142)
(4,122)

2,133
93
2,226

Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and Transfers

(41,361)

(17,550)

132,846

338,619

Transfers In
Capital Contributions From Component Unit
Capital Contributions From Other Funds
Capital Contributions
Transfers Out

299,286
22,876
45,136
(59,300)

22,876
34,215
(71,000)

(234,800)

(378,000)

Change in Net Position

266,637

(31,459)

(101,954)

(39,381)

Net Position, January 1

7,893,011

3,974,928

$ 8,159,648

$ 3,943,469

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings
Intergovernmental
Other income
Interest expense and other
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Position, December 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

-46-

$

12,821
17,399
(123,570)
(93,350)

(42,802)

1,537,269

(144,756)

$ 1,497,888

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
650
670
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total
Operating Revenues
Sales
Cost of Sales

$

Gross Profit

-

$

-

$ 6,184,891
(3,127,367)

-

-

3,057,524

Charges for services
Total Operating Revenues

351,457
351,457

283,696
283,696

2,856,556
5,914,080

Operating Expenses
Personnel services
Supplies
Professional services
Utilities
Other services and charges
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

28,212
266,859
51,031
13,393
359,495

25,618
599
30,079
4,674
4,843
112,973
178,786

2,782,467
213,022
499,410
689,069
288,921
183,194
572,277
5,228,360

104,910

685,720

Operating Income (Loss)

(8,038)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings
Intergovernmental
Other income
Interest expense and other
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

2,642
15,895
7
18,544

8,374
8
8,382

Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and Transfers

10,506

113,292

536,352

50,000
11
(63,000)

50,000
299,286
45,752
79,362
(806,100)

Transfers In
Capital Contributions From Component Unit
Capital Contributions From Other Funds
Capital Contributions
Transfers Out

-

92,956
15,895
92,442
(350,661)
(149,368)

Change in Net Position

10,506

100,303

204,652

Net Position, January 1

220,846

4,614,867

18,198,119

231,352

$ 4,715,170

$ 18,402,771

$

Net Position, December 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued on the Following Pages)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

610
Water
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Other operating receipts
Receipts from (payments to) customer deposits
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

$

Cash Flows from Noncapital
Financing Activities
Increase in due from component unit
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Payment on account for the acquisition of capital assets
Special assessments
Connection fees
Contribution for capital assets
Receipt from (payment on) interfund loan
Interest paid on long-term debt
Principal paid on long-term debt
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment earnings
Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
620
630
640
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor

736,589
74,865
639
(208,621)
(268,645)

$
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521,062
93
(16,871)
(351,657)

$ 6,184,128
17,399
3,748
(3,829,185)
(1,656,354)

91,354

152,627

719,736

(260,826)
(59,300)

(71,000)

(234,800)

(378,000)

(320,126)

(71,000)

(234,800)

(378,000)

(75,867)
(98,549)
76,570
17,316
299,286
(155,168)
(220,000)

(141,337)
71,572
8,242
371
(13,112)
(35,000)

-

(64,438)
(20,500)
(125,678)
(110,000)

(156,412)

(109,264)

-

(320,616)

54,689

7,950

2,133

12,821

(87,022)

(80,960)

(80,040)

33,941

701,153

225,420

1,192,368

145,380

$ 1,226,309

$ 2,411,846

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$

334,827

2,498,868

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31

941,916
70
(581,990)
(268,642)

$

620,193

$

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

610
Water
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Other income related to operations
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable, net
Special assessments receivable
Due from other governments
Inventories
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources
Deferred pension resources
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences payable
Other postemployment benefits payable
Pension liability
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension resources

$

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
620
630
640
Licensing
Liquor
Sewer

39,687

$

74,865
222,255

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

$

Schedule of Noncash Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Capital contribution from developers
Assets acquired on account
Amortization of bond premium
Refunding bonds issued deposited in escrow
Bond premium issued on refunding bond
Issuance cost on refunding bonds

$

70
117,556

130,620

$

93
-

431,969

17,399
119,493

(7,513)
(5,579)
(653)
1,518

(9,535)
1,563
(119)
-

-

(763)
11,959

34,633

34,626

37,881

145,392

10,478
(3,108)
133
639
552
997
(51,512)

(7,026)
133
552
997
(51,472)

(13)
(1,085)
421
3,146
1,369
(45,608)

(21,720)
1,835
(7,913)
3,748
4,768
3,192
(121,995)

17,435

17,437

25,803

132,372

334,827

$

91,354

$

152,627

$

719,736

$
22,876
$
$
1,293
$ 2,775,000
$
163,538
$
70,821

$
$
$
$
$
$

22,876
5,303
912
-

$
$
$
$
$
$

-

$
$
$
$
$
$

1,833
-

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(13,428)

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
650
670
Stormwater
Total
Solid Waste
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Other operating receipts
Receipts from (payments to) customer deposits
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

$

347,400
15,902
(345,626)
(26,564)

$

(8,888)

281,878
8
(45,247)
(27,326)
209,313

$ 9,012,973
108,337
4,387
(5,027,540)
(2,599,188)
1,498,969

Cash Flows from Noncapital
Financing Activities
Increase in due from component unit
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing Activities

-

50,000
(63,000)

(260,826)
50,000
(806,100)

-

(13,000)

(1,016,926)

Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Payment on account for the acquisition of capital assets
Special assessments
Connection fees
Contribution for capital assets
Receipt from (payment on) interfund loan
Interest paid on long-term debt
Principal paid on long-term debt
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities

-

3,994
200
-

(277,648)
(98,549)
148,342
25,558
299,657
(20,500)
(293,958)
(365,000)

-

4,194

(582,098)

2,642

8,374

88,609

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment earnings
Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

(6,246)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1

208,881

230,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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223,754

$

(11,446)

573,921

5,421,730

782,802

$ 5,410,284

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
650
670
Stormwater
Total
Solid Waste
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Other income related to operations
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable, net
Special assessments receivable
Due from other governments
Inventories
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources
Deferred pension resources
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences payable
Other postemployment benefits payable
Pension liability
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension resources

$

(8,038)

$

15,902
-

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

$

Schedule of Noncash Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Capital contribution from developers
Assets acquired on account
Amortization of bond premium
Refunding bonds issued deposited in escrow
Bond premium issued on refunding bond
Issuance cost on refunding bonds

$
$
$
$
$
$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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104,910

8
112,973

$

685,720

108,337
572,277

(4,057)
-

(1,818)
-

(23,686)
(4,016)
(772)
13,477

2,782

4,443

259,757

(3,821)
(10,522)
103
(3,217)

(5,052)
103
(7,763)

(27,154)
(12,880)
(7,226)
4,387
9,018
6,761
(281,567)

1,980

1,509

196,536

$

209,313

$ 1,498,969

$
$
$
$
$
$

-

$
45,752
$
5,303
$
4,038
$ 2,775,000
$
163,538
$
70,821

(8,888)

-

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
December 31, 2017
802
Agency
Assets
Cash and temporary investments

$

88,882

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

$

9,775
79,107

Total Liabilities

$

88,882

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity
The City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) operates under the “Optional Plan A” form of government as defined in the State of
Minnesota statutes. Under this plan, the government of the City is directed by a City Council composed of an elected Mayor and four
elected City Council members. The City Council exercises legislative authority and determines all matters of policy. The City Council
appoints personnel responsible for the proper administration of all affairs relating to the City.
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements include all funds,
departments, agencies, boards, and commissions of the City (the primary government) and any component units. The City has
considered all potential units for which it is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability.
These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body, and (1) the ability of the primary government
to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on the primary government. The City has one component unit.
Discretely Presented Component Unit
The Wayzata Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) assists the City Council in addressing the City’s housing and
redevelopment goals and objectives in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. It is a legally separate entity, of which the governing
body consists of a five member board of commissioners approved, but not selected, by the City Council. With the exception of the
City Council approving board members and the HRA’s budget, the HRA has complete control over its own duties. However, all HRA
administrative and financial functions are performed by City staff, and the HRA is fiscally dependent upon the City. It is these
criterion that result in the HRA being reported as a discretely presented component unit. The HRA does not prepare separate financial
statements. Information on the HRA’s governmental funds is presented as supplementary schedules elsewhere in this report.
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all
of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Amounts reported as program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and
contribution, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and the fiduciary fund, even though the latter is
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to
be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences, pensions, other postemployment benefits, and claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due
within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the
accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the year in which the resources are
measurable and become available.
Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property taxes,
grants, entitlement and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year for which the tax is
levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or
the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to be used for a specified
purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified
accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Grants and entitlements
received before eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as unearned revenue.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the City enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the City, except those required to
be accounted for in another fund.
The Debt Service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general
obligation debt of governmental funds.
The Internally Financed Capital Project fund accounts for accumulated and payments made for internally financed capital project
activity.
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The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water distribution operations.
The Sewer fund accounts for the collection and pumping of sanitary sewage through a system of sewer lines and lift stations.
Sewage is treated by the Metropolitan Council of Environmental Services.
The Licensing fund accounts for the City’s licensing service center.
The Liquor fund accounts for the City’s on and off-sale liquor operations.
The Solid Waste fund accounts for the City’s solid waste collection programs.
The Stormwater fund accounts for the activities of the City’s stormwater system.
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:
Fiduciary fund accounts for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others.
The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are
accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. This fund is used to account for assets that the City holds for others in an
agency capacity.
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from government-wide financial statements.
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance
Deposits and Investments
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The proprietary funds’ portion in the government-wide cash and
temporary investments pool is considered to be cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.
Cash balances from all funds are pooled and invested, to the extent available, in certificates of deposit and other authorized
investments. Earnings from such investments are allocated on the basis of applicable participation by each of the funds.
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The City may invest idle funds as authorized by Minnesota statutes, as follows:
1.

Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies.

2.

Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and received the highest
credit rating, rated in one of the two highest rating categories by a statistical rating agency, and have a final maturity of
thirteen months or less.

3.

General obligations of a state or local government with taxing powers rated “A” or better; revenue obligations rated “AA” or
better.

4.

General obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency rated “A” or better.

5.

Obligation of a school district with an original maturity not exceeding 13 months and (i) rated in the highest category by a
national bond rating service or (ii) enrolled in the credit enhancement program pursuant to statute section 126C.55.

6.

Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.

7.

Commercial paper issued by United States banks corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, of highest quality category by
at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less.

8.

Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements with financial institutions qualified as a
“depository” by the government entity, with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System with capitalization
exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in U.S. government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York,
or certain Minnesota securities broker-dealers.

9.

Guaranteed Investment Contracts (GIC’s) issued or guaranteed by a United States commercial bank, a domestic branch of a
foreign bank, a United States insurance company, or its Canadian subsidiary, whose similar debt obligations were rated in
one of the top two rating categories by a nationally recognized rating agency.

The Minnesota Municipal Money Market (4M) fund is regulated by Minnesota statutes and the Board of Directors of the League of
Minnesota Cities and operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as
the fair value of the pool shares. The 4M fund is an external investment pool not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC); however, it follows the regulatory rules of the SEC. Financial statements of the 4M fund can be obtained by
contacting RBC Global Asset Management at 100 South Fifth Street, Suite 2300, Minneapolis, MN 55402-1240.
The City invests in the Federated Government Obligations Premier money market fund operates in accordance with appropriate state
laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. The fund is an external
investment pool that operates in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rules.
The City invests in the UBS Select Prime Institutional money market fund operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and
regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. The fund is an external investment pool
that operates in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rules.
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. The City’s recurring fair value measurements are listed in detail on page 62 and are valued using quoted market
prices (Level 1 inputs).
The City fair value measurements as of December 31, 2017 are included in note 3. A.
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Property Taxes
The City Council annually adopts a tax levy in December and certifies it to the County for collection in the following year. The
County is responsible for collecting all property taxes for the City. These taxes attach an enforceable lien on taxable property within
the City on January 1 and are payable by the property owners in two installments. The taxes are collected by the County Auditor and
tax settlements are made to the City during January, June, and November each year.
Delinquent taxes receivable include the past six years’ uncollected taxes. Delinquent taxes have been offset by a deferred inflow of
resources for taxes not received within 60 days after year end in the governmental fund financial statements.
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable include amounts billed for services provided before year end. Unbilled utility enterprise fund receivables are also
included for services provided in 2017. The City annually certifies delinquent utility accounts to the County for collection in the
following year. Therefore, there has been no allowance for doubtful accounts established for the delinquent water and sewer accounts.
Special Assessments
Special assessments represent the financing for public improvements paid for by benefiting property owners. These assessments are
recorded as receivables upon certification to the County. Special assessments are recognized as revenue when they are annually
certified to the County or received in cash or within 60 days after year end. All governmental special assessments receivable are offset
by a deferred inflow of resources in the fund financial statements.
Interfund Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred
to as either “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds.” All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as
“due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”
Inventories
All inventories are valued at the lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or replacement market. Proprietary fund inventories consist of
water meters, licenses, and liquor. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time the inventory items are
used (consumption method).
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items)
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the City as assets with an estimated useful life of more than one year and an initial individual cost of more than
$5,000.
The City reports infrastructure assets on a network and subsystem basis. Accordingly, the amounts spent for the construction or
acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and reported in the government-wide financial statements regardless of their
amount.
In the case of initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental activities) the City elected to
report only those infrastructure assets added since January 1, 2004. As the City constructs or acquires capital assets each period,
including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance
and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item
or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. In the case of donations the City values these capital assets at the acquisition
value of the item at the date of its donation.

-57-

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Interest costs incurred on the construction of capital assets for business-type activities are included as part of the capitalized value of
the assets constructed. No amount of interest was capitalized in 2017.
Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:
Useful Lives
in Years

Assets
Land Improvements
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment

5 to 30
20 to 50
5 to 50
2 to 20

Deferred Outflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has only two items that
qualify for reporting in this category. One item, deferred pension resources, is reported only in the statement of net position. This item
results from actuarial calculations and current year pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. The second item
is the deferred charge on refunding. As deferred charge on refunding results form the difference in the carrying value of the refunded
debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions to/deductions from PERA’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERA except that PERA’s fiscal year end is
June 30. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. The General fund is
typically used to liquidate the governmental net pension liability.
Compensated Absences
The City policy permits certain employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned, but unused vacation and sick leave. The accrued
compensated absences will be paid upon termination or when used. Compensated absences are recognized when they mature in the
governmental fund financial statements, and accrued when earned in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. The
General fund is typically used to liquidate governmental compensated absences payable.
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Payable
Under Minnesota statute 471.61, subdivision 2b., public employers must allow retirees and their dependents to continue coverage
indefinitely in an employer-sponsored health care plan, under the following conditions: 1) Retirees must be receiving (or eligible to
receive) an annuity from a Minnesota public pension plan, 2) Coverage must continue in group plan until age 65, and retirees must pay
no more than the group premium, and 3) Retirees may obtain dependent coverage immediately before retirement. All premiums are
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The liability was actuarially determined, in accordance with GASB Statement 45, at January 1, 2016.
The General fund is typically used to liquidate governmental other postemployment benefits payable.
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Long-term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
type statement of net position. The recognition of bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the
straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
an expense in the period incurred.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognized bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
Deferred Inflows of Resources
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and fund financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City
has one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category.
Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenues from two sources: delinquent taxes and special assessments. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.
The City has an additional item which qualifies for reporting in this category. The item, deferred pension resources, is reported only in
the statements of net position and results from actuarial calculations.
Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. Net position is displayed in three components:
a.

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation reduced by any outstanding debt
attributable to acquire capital assets.

b.

Restricted net position - Consist of net position restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

c.

Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital
assets”.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.
Fund Balance
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which
the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in the governmental funds. These classifications
are defined as follows:
Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items or long-term
receivable.
Restricted - Amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by creditors, grantors or contributors; or constraints
imposed by state statutory provisions.
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Committed - Amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed by formal action (resolution) of the City
Council, which is the City’s highest level of decision-making authority. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the City Council modifies or rescinds the commitment by resolution.
Assigned - Amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed. In governmental funds other than the General
fund, assigned fund balance represents all remaining amounts that are not classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor
committed. In the General fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the City Council itself or by an official
to which the governing body delegates the authority. The City Council has adopted a fund balance policy which delegates the
authority to assign amounts for specific purposes to the Senior Accountant or City Manager.
Unassigned - The residual classification for the General fund and also negative residual amounts in other funds.
The City considers restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. Additionally,
the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are
made.
The City has formally adopted a fund balance policy for the General fund. The City’s policy is to maintain an unassigned fund balance
of 40 percent of the next year’s budgeted expenditures.

Note 2: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability
A. Budgetary Information
An annual budget is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for
the General fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. The City does not use encumbrance accounting.
Prior to January 1st of each year, a budget for the General fund is adopted by the City Council after holding a public meeting to hear
taxpayer comments.
The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level. This means that management may alter the budget within and between
departments, but cannot exceed the greater of the total budgeted expenditures or the total actual revenue for the year without City
Council approval. Budgeted expenditures may not exceed estimated revenues. During the year the City Council may increase the
budget to the extent an accumulated surplus exists from previous years. No budget amendments were made during 2017.
B. Deficit Fund Equity
The Licensing fund had a deficit net position at December 31, 2017 of $144,756. This deficit will be eliminated through future charges
for services. The Cell Tower capital project fund had a deficit of $6,785 which will be eliminated with future cell tower charges. The
HRA’s Bay Center, Widsten Tax Increment, and Downtown TIF 6 capital project funds had deficits of $8,091, $1,221,747, and
$17,950, respectively. These deficits will be eliminated with future tax increments.
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A. Deposits and Investments
Deposits
Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits and investments
may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. In accordance
with Minnesota statutes and as authorized by the City Council, the City maintains deposits at those depository banks, all of which are
members of the Federal Reserve System.
Minnesota statutes require that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral. The market value of collateral
pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not covered by insurance, bonds, or irrevocable standby letters of credit from Federal
Home Loan Banks.
Authorized collateral in lieu of a corporate surety bond includes:
x

United States government Treasury bills, Treasury notes, Treasury bonds;

x

Issues of United States government agencies and instrumentalities as quoted by a recognized industry quotation service
available to the government entity;

x

General obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers which is rated “A” or better by a national
bond rating service, or revenue obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers which is rated “AA”
or better by a national bond rating service;

x

General obligation securities of a local government with taxing powers may be pledged as collateral against funds deposited
by that same local government entity;

x

Irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by Federal Home Loan Banks to a municipality accompanied by written evidence
that the bank’s public debt is rated “AA” or better by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or Standard & Poor’s Corporation; and

x

Time deposits that are fully insured by any federal agency.

Minnesota statutes require that all collateral shall be placed in safekeeping in a restricted account at a Federal Reserve Bank, or in an
account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution that is not owned or controlled by the financial
institution furnishing the collateral. The selection should be approved by the City.
Deposit and investments for the primary government and component unit are pooled and as a result they are not separately identified.
At year end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $3,878,520 and the bank balance was $4,231,525. The bank balance was
covered by federal depository insurance and by collateral held in the City’s name.
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Investments
As of December 31, 2017, the City had the following investments:

Types of Investments
Pooled Investments at Amortized Cost
4M Fund
4M Plus Fund
Broker Money Market

Credit
Quality/
Rating (1)

Segmented
Time
Distribution (2)

N/A
N/A
AAA

less than 6 months
less than 6 months
less than 6 months

Total Pooled

Fair Value
Measurement
Using
Amount

$

1,513
3,293
269,929

Level 1

$

Level 2

-

$

-

274,735

-

-

801,694
2,712,528
3,080,178
235,874
6,722,883

730,159
1,603,752
235,874
-

801,694
1,982,369
1,476,426
6,722,883

Total Non Pooled

13,553,157

2,569,785

10,983,372

Total Investments

$ 13,827,892

Non Pooled Investments at Fair Value
U.S. Government Securities
Brokered Certificates of Deposit
Brokered Certificates of Deposit
Brokered Certificates of Deposit
Municipal Securities

AA
N/A
N/A
N/A
A-1

1 - 5 years
less than 1 year
1 - 5 years
more than 5 years
1 - 5 years

$

2,569,785

$

10,983,372

(1)
Ratings are provided by various credit rating agencies where applicable to indicate associated credit risk.
(2)
Interest rate risk is disclosed using the segmented time distribution method.
N/A Indicates not applicable or available.
The investments of the City are subject to the following risks:
x

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. Ratings
are provided by various credit rating agencies and where applicable, indicate associated credit risk. Minnesota statutes limit
the City’s investments. The City’s investment policies do not further address credit risk.

x

Custodial Credit Risk. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City does not have a formal investment policy addressing this risk, but typically limits its
exposure by purchasing insured or registered investments, or by the control of who holds the securities.

x

Concentration of Credit Risk. The concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer, excluding U.S. guaranteed investments (such as treasuries), investment pools, and mutual funds.
The City’s investment policies do not limit the concentration of investments. As of December 31, 2017, the City had 6.5
percent invested in Milan MI Areas schools, 7.1 percent invested in New York, NY City Transit Authority bonds, and 5.7
percent invested in Sacramento, CA municipal securities.

x

Interest Rate Risk. The interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City’s investment policy limits the duration of investments to no more than ten years.
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A reconciliation of cash and temporary investments as shown on the financial statements for the City follows:
Carrying Amount of Deposits
Investments
Cash on Hand

$

Total

3,878,520
13,827,892
15,038

$ 17,721,450

Cash and Temporary Investments
Statement of net position
Primary government
Component unit - HRA
Statement of fiduciary net position

$ 16,222,898
1,409,670
88,882

Total

$ 17,721,450

B. Note Receivables
Discretely Presented Component Units
The Housing and Redevelopment Authority has several loans receivable from local businesses. As of December 31, 2017, the total
outstanding balance of these loans is $19,250. The terms and interest rates vary and all are secured by the assets of the business.
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C. Capital Assets
Primary Government
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
not being Depreciated
Capital Assets being Depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total Capital Assets
being Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Land improvements
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets
being Depreciated, Net
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

$

7,563,994
4,659,827

Increases

$

Ending
Balance

Decreases

-

$

(3,676,451)

$

7,563,994
983,376

12,223,821

-

(3,676,451)

8,547,370

86,816
17,525,646
10,716,837
5,035,362

9,873,249
2,832,123
543,225

(108,731)

86,816
27,398,895
13,548,960
5,469,856

33,364,661

13,248,597

(108,731)

46,504,527

(18,449)
(4,275,306)
(2,126,594)
(2,705,399)
(9,125,748)

(4,340)
(406,579)
(468,791)
(404,814)
(1,284,524)

108,731
108,731

(22,789)
(4,681,885)
(2,595,385)
(3,001,482)
(10,301,541)

24,238,913

11,964,073

$ 36,462,734

$ 11,964,073

-

$

(3,676,451)

36,202,986

$ 44,750,356

The City’s Peavey bridge was contributed by the State of Minnesota. Per the Agreement with the State, if the City were to sell the
bridge, the proceeds would be restricted to the State to settle any remaining bonds outstanding that were issued in relation to the
project.
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the City as follows:
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

-64-

$

225,259
227,706
749,178
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Beginning
Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

$

973,048
2,354,471

Increases

$

116,855

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

(1,682,459)

$

973,048
788,867

Total Capital Assets not
being Depreciated

3,327,519

116,855

Capital Assets being Depreciated
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

9,547,831
11,841,080
1,334,043

1,805,878
88,429

-

9,547,831
13,646,958
1,422,472

22,722,954

1,894,307

-

24,617,261

Total Capital Assets
being Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

(1,682,459)

1,761,915

(1,704,197)
(2,470,286)
(787,897)

(190,570)
(307,337)
(74,370)

-

(1,894,767)
(2,777,623)
(862,267)

Total Accumulated Depreciation

(4,962,380)

(572,277)

-

(5,534,657)

Total Capital Assets
being Depreciated, Net

17,760,574

-

19,082,604

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, Net

$ 21,088,093

1,322,030

$

1,438,885

$

(1,682,459)

$ 20,844,519

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the business-type activities of the City as follows:
Business-type Activities
Water
Sewer
Liquor
Stormwater
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities

-65-

$

222,255
117,556
119,493
112,973

$

572,277
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The City has active construction projects as of December 31, 2017. At year end, the City’s commitments with the contractors are as
follows:

Spent
to Date

Project
Bushaway Road Project
Bushaway Landscaping
2017 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation

$

Remaining
Commitment

1,949,432
357,652
100,752

$

203,512
30,795
8,366

Discretely Presented Component Unit - HRA
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Component Unit Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land

$

2,092,900

Increases

$

Ending
Balance

Decreases

-

$

-

$

2,092,900

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers
The composition of internal balances as of December 31, 2017 is as follows:
Receivable Fund
Advance to/from other Funds
Governmental
Nonmajor

Payable Fund

Business-type
Liquor enterprise

Purpose

Finance capital purchase

Amount

$

60,000

In 2011, various funds loaned an accumulated balance of $600,000 to the Liquor enterprise fund for the Municipal liquor store project.
The interfund loans will be paid back over 10 years and have an interest rate of 3 percent. Several of the funds were paid off in
advance. The remaining balance is listed above.
The City has various amounts due to/from other funds at year end to cover temporary year end cash deficits. At December 31, 2017,
the nonmajor funds have $2,330 outstanding between nonmajor funds and the component unit has $16,459 outstanding between
component unit funds for this same purpose.
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Interfund Transfers
The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Fund

Transfer In
Nonmajor
Governmental

General

Transfer Out
General
Nonmajor governmental
Water enterprise
Sewer enterprise
Licensing enterprise
Liquor enterprise
Stormwater enterprise
Total Transfers

Stormwater
Enterprise

Total

$

30,000
25,000
25,000
30,000
30,000
10,000

$

967,674
5,000
34,300
46,000
204,800
348,000
53,000

$

50,000
-

$

967,674
85,000
59,300
71,000
234,800
378,000
63,000

$

150,000

$

1,658,774

$

50,000

$

1,858,774

The City annually budgets transfers for specific purposes. Annual transfers include transfers made to cover costs of operation, and
transfers made as part of capital improvement plans.
The component unit borrowed $1,760,500 from the primary government to assist in financing the downtown ramp project in 2017.
The loan will be repaid over a four year period ending in 2021 at 4 percent interest. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2017
was $1,534,266.
E. Long-term Debt
Primary Government
General Obligation (G.O.) Bonds
The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and projects.
G.O. bonds have been issued for governmental activities. The G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A have been issued to refund other
G.O. bonds.

Description
G.O. Street Reconstruction
Bonds, Series 2009B
G.O. Refunding Bonds,
Series 2012A

Authorized
and Issued
$

Interest
Rate

370,000

3.00 - 3.87

1,885,000

2.00 - 3.00

Total G.O. Bonds

%

Issue
Date

Maturity
Date

05/19/09

12/01/23

09/05/12

12/01/23

Balance at
Year End
$

1,120,000
$
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the G.O. bonds are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31,

Principal

Governmental Activities
Interest

Total

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

195,000
200,000
215,000
225,000
225,000
230,000

$

39,508
33,658
27,608
21,037
14,123
7,161

$

234,508
233,658
242,608
246,037
239,123
237,161

Total

$

1,290,000

$

143,095

$

1,433,095

G.O. Revenue Bonds
The following bonds were issued to finance capital improvements in the enterprise funds. Along with G.O. special assessment bonds,
they will be repaid from future net operating revenues pledged from enterprise funds and are backed by the taxing power of the City.
Annual net operating revenues, principal and interest payments, and percentage of revenue required to cover the principal and interest
payments are as follows:

Water
Net Operating Revenues
Principal and Interest
Percentage of Revenues

$

750,334
375,168
50 %

Sewer
$

Liquor

950,007
48,112
5 %

$ 3,057,524
235,678
8 %

Issue
Date

Maturity
Date

Balance at
Year End

05/19/09

12/01/18

Outstanding G.O. revenue bonds are as follows:

Description
G.O. Water Revenue
Bonds, Series 2009A
G.O. Liquor and Restaurant
Bonds, Series 2011A
G.O. Water Revenue
Bonds, Series 2017A

Authorized
and Issued
$

Interest
Rate

3,870,000

2.00 - 4.37

3,375,000

2.00 - 4.40

03/01/11

12/01/35

2,860,000

2,775,000

3.00

12/28/17

12/01/31

2,775,000

Total G.O. Revenue Bonds

%

$

$
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for G.O. revenue bonds are as follows:
Year Ending
December 31,

Principal

Business-type Activities
Interest

Total

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2035

$

305,000
290,000
300,000
310,000
315,000
1,780,000
1,865,000
630,000

$

138,546
97,740
92,815
87,715
82,440
576,785
279,840
42,460

$

443,546
387,740
392,815
397,715
397,440
2,356,785
2,144,840
672,460

Total

$

5,795,000

$

1,398,341

$

7,193,341

Refunding Bonds
The City issued $2,775,000 to refund $2,800,000 of the 2019 through 2031 maturities for the 2009A bonds. The proceeds along with
interest earnings will be used to pay the refunded bonds on the call date (December 1, 2018). The refunding resulted in a cash flow
savings of $323,275 and a present values savings of $275,853. The refunding bonds have a 3.00 percent interest rate. For reporting
purposes, the $2,800,000 is considered defeased, however will not be redeemed until the call date.
General Obligation Tax Increment Bonds
The following bonds were issued to provide funding to a project within a tax increment financing district and will be repaid with tax
increment financing and future tax levies.

Description
G.O. Tax Increment Bonds,
Series 2016A

Authorized
and Issued
$

7,725,000

Interest
Rate
1.10 - 4.0

%

Issue
Date

Maturity
Date

12/29/16

02/01/41

Balance at
Year End
$

7,725,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation tax increment bonds are as follows:
Year Ending
December 31,

Principal

Governmental Activities
Interest

Total

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2041

$

265,000
270,000
275,000
1,475,000
1,685,000
1,940,000
1,815,000

$

234,348
234,438
231,698
226,348
220,898
1,005,088
791,601
522,650
147,332

$

Total

$

7,725,000

$

3,614,401

$ 11,339,401
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The City has pledged tax increment revenues generated by Tax Increment District number 5 to the debt service requirements related to
the general obligation tax increment bond noted above through maturity of the bond. There was no pledged revenue or debt service
requirements for the year ended December 31, 2017. It is anticipated tax increment revenues will be sufficient to provide not less than
105 percent of principal and interest on the bonds as required by Minnesota State law.
G.O. Improvement (Special Assessment) Bonds
The following bonds were issued to finance various improvements and will be repaid from special assessments levied on the
properties benefiting from the improvements and future net revenues pledged from the Water and Sewer funds. G.O. improvement
bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities. All special assessment debt is backed by the full faith and
credit of the City.
Interest
Rate

Authorized
and Issued

Description
G.O. Improvement Bonds,
Series 2010A
G.O. Improvement Bonds,
Series 2012B
G.O. Improvement Bonds,
Series 2012C

$

%

Issue
Date

Maturity
Date

09/01/10

12/01/30

Balance at
Year End

2,695,000

3.00 - 3.50

$

1,520,000

2.00 - 3.00

09/05/12

12/01/32

1,205,000

545,000

2.00 - 3.00

09/05/12

12/01/27

405,000

Total G.O. Improvement Bonds

$

2,165,000

3,775,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for G.O. improvement bonds are as follows:
Year Ending
December 31,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
Total

Principal

Governmental Activities
Interest

Total

Principal

Business-type Activities
Interest

Total

140,000
145,000
150,000
150,000
155,000
850,000
575,000

$

67,800
63,600
59,250
54,750
50,250
178,325
40,025

$

207,800
208,600
209,250
204,750
205,250
1,028,325
615,025

$

105,000
105,000
110,000
110,000
115,000
610,000
455,000

$

43,025
40,925
38,825
36,625
33,850
121,325
41,700

$

148,025
145,925
148,825
146,625
148,850
731,325
496,700

$ 2,165,000

$

514,000

$

2,679,000

$

1,610,000

$

356,275

$

1,966,275

$

-70-

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
Changes in Long-term Liabilities
Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental activities
Bonds Payable
G.O. bonds
G.O. improvement bonds
G.O. tax increment bonds
Unamortized Premium on Bonds

$

Total Bonds Payable
Other Postemployment
Benefits Payable
Pension Liability
GERF
PEPFF
Compensated Absences Payable
Governmental Activity
Long-term Liabilities
Business-type Activities
Bonds Payable
G.O. revenue bonds
G.O. improvement bonds
Unamortized Premium on Bonds
Total Bonds Payable
Other Postemployment
Benefits Payable
Pension Liability
GERF
Compensated Absences Payable
Business-type Activity
Long-term Liabilities

1,480,000
2,300,000
7,725,000
347,182

Increases

$

Ending
Balance

Decreases

-

$

(190,000)
(135,000)
(26,062)

$

1,290,000
2,165,000
7,725,000
321,120

Due Within
One Year

$

195,000
140,000
-

11,852,182

-

(351,062)

11,501,120

335,000

171,836

28,364

(17,700)

182,500

-

1,652,515
4,093,437
321,064

801,743
2,739,930
264,521

(1,178,030)
(5,469,747)
(260,153)

1,276,228
1,363,620
325,432

189,612

$ 18,091,034

$

3,834,558

$

(7,276,692)

$ 14,648,900

$

524,612

$

$

2,775,000
163,538

$

(3,065,000)
(100,000)
(15,496)

$

$

305,000
105,000
-

6,085,000
1,710,000
63,494

5,795,000
1,610,000
211,536

7,858,494

2,938,538

(3,180,496)

7,616,536

410,000

83,820

13,835

(7,074)

90,581

-

2,171,771
99,525

1,157,585
92,947

(1,439,152)
(83,929)

1,890,204
108,543

64,870

$ 10,213,610

$

4,202,905
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9,705,864

$
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F. Components of Fund Balance
At December 31, 2017, portions of the City’s fund balance are not available for appropriation due to not being in spendable form
(Nonspendable), legal restrictions (Restricted), City Council action (Committed), policy and/or intent (Assigned). The following is a
summary of the components of fund balance:

Purpose
Nonspendable
Due from component unit
Restricted for
Debt service
Economic development
Downtown parking ramp
Parks and trails
Public safety
police expenditures
Total Restricted
Committed to
Cemetery
Cable TV
Comprehensive Plan
Total Committed
Assigned to
Insurance
Lakefront improvement
Capital equipment
Parks and trails
Street improvement
Community room/
library improvements
Other capital projects
Total Assigned

General

Debt Service

Internally
Financed
Capital Project

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total

$

874,532

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

874,532

$

-

$

513,868
-

$

112,037
-

$

107,066
142,176

$

513,868
107,066
112,037
142,176

-

-

-

89,148

89,148

$

-

$

513,868

$

112,037

$

338,390

$

964,295

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

33,986
46,240
83,346

$

33,986
46,240
83,346

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

163,572

$

163,572

$

266,839
-

$

-

$

-

$

444,853
1,700,412
926,865
1,511,959

$

266,839
444,853
1,700,412
926,865
1,511,959

$

266,839

$

-
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$

171,840

526,706
1,502,484
$

6,613,279

526,706
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$

7,051,958
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A. Plan Description
The City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the Public
Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are established and administered in
accordance with Minnesota statutes, chapters 353 and 356. PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section
401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.
General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF)
All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by the General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF). GERF
members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security and Basic
Plan members are not. The Basic Plan was closed to new members in 1967. All new members must participate in the Coordinated
Plan.
Public Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF)
The PEPFF, originally established for police officers and firefighters not covered by a local relief association, now covers all police
officers and firefighters hired since 1980. Effective July 1, 1999, the PEPFF also covers police officers and firefighters belonging to a
local relief association that elected to merge with and transfer assets and administration to PERA.
B. Benefits Provided
PERA provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by Minnesota statute and can only be
modified by the state legislature.
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Increases are related to the funding ratio of the plan. Members in
plans that are at least 90 percent funded for two consecutive years are given 2.5 percent increases. Members in plans that have not
exceeded 90 percent funded, or have fallen below 80 percent, are given 1 percent increases.
The benefit provisions stated in the following paragraphs of this section are current provisions and apply to active plan participants.
Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not receiving them yet are bound by the provisions in effect at the
time they last terminated their public service.
GERF Benefits
Benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at
termination of service. Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The retiring
member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a level accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1,
the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2 percent of average salary for each of the first ten years of service and
2.7 percent for each remaining year. The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2 percent of average salary for each
of the first ten years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year. Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary
for Basic Plan members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service. For members hired prior to
July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on
or after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66.
PEPFF Benefits
Benefits for the PEPFF members first hired after June 30, 2010, but before July 1, 2014, vest on a prorated basis from 50 percent after
five years up to 100 percent after ten years of credited service. Benefits for PEPFF members first hired after June 30, 2014, vest on a
prorated basis from 50 percent after ten years up to 100 percent after twenty years of credited service. The annuity accrual rate is
3 percent of average salary for each year of service.
For PEPFF members who were first hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of service equal at least
90.
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C. Contributions
Minnesota statutes, chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution rates can only be modified by
the state legislature.
GERF Contributions
Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.10 percent and 6.50 percent, respectively, of their
annual covered salary in calendar year 2017. The City was required to contribute 11.78 percent of pay for Basic Plan members and
7.50 percent for Coordinated Plan members in calendar year 2017. The City’s contributions to the GERF for the years ending
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were $245,260, $226,098, and $221,233, respectively. The City’s contributions were equal to the
contractually required contributions for each year as set by Minnesota statute.
PEPFF Contributions
Plan members were required to contribute 10.80 percent of their annual covered salary in calendar year 2017. The City was required to
contribute 16.20 percent of pay for PEPFF members in calendar year 2017. The City’s contributions to the PEPFF for the years ending
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were $164,989, $164,719, and $153,685, respectively. The City’s contributions were equal to the
contractually required contributions for each year as set by Minnesota statute.
D. Pension Costs
GERF Pension Costs
At December 31, 2017, the City reported a liability of $3,166,432 for its proportionate share of the GERF’s net pension liability. The
City’s net pension liability reflected a reduction due to the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $6 million to the fund in 2016. The
State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing entity and the State’s contribution meets the definition of a special
funding situation. The State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the City totaled $39,785.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s
contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2016 through
June 30, 2017 relative to the total employer contributions received from all of PERA’s participating employers. At June 30, 2017, the
City’s proportionate share was 0.0496 percent which was an increase of 0.0025 percent from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2016.
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $397,478 for its proportionate share of GERF’s
pension expense. In addition, the City recognized an additional $1,149 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its proportionate
share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $6 million to the GERF.
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At December 31, 2017, the City reported its proportionate share of GERF’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources, and its contributions subsequent to the measurement date, from the following sources:

Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments
Changes in proportion
Contributions to GERF subsequent
to the measurement date
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$

$

$

104,419
526,125

199,180
317,435

114,326

144,526
81,104

122,857

-

867,727

$

742,245

Deferred outflows of resources totaling $122,857 related to pensions resulting from the City’s contributions to GERF subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to GERF pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:
2018
2019
2020
2021

$

(28,591)
189,305
(23,678)
(134,411)

PEPFF Pension Costs
At December 31, 2017, the City reported a liability of $1,363,620 for its proportionate share of the PEPFF’s net pension liability. The
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s
contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2016 through
June 30, 2017 relative to the total employer contributions received from all of PERA’s participating employers. At June 30, 2017, the
City’s proportionate share was 0.101 percent which was a .001 percent decrease from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $256,238 for its proportionate share of PEPFF’s
pension expense. The City also recognized $9,090 for the year ended December 31, 2017 as grant revenue for its proportionate share
of the State of Minnesota’s on-behalf contributions to the PEPFF. Legislation passed in 2013 required the State of Minnesota to begin
contributing $9 million to the PEPFF each year, starting in fiscal year 2014.
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
At December 31, 2017, the City reported its proportionate share of PEPFF’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources, and its contributions subsequent to the measurement date, from the following sources:

Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments
Changes in proportion
Contributions to PEPFF subsequent
to the measurement date
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$

$

$

31,992
1,893,420

366,026
1,936,002

6,706

113,838
14,635

81,393

-

2,013,511

$

2,430,501

Deferred outflows of resources totaling $81,393 related to pensions resulting from the City’s contributions to PEPFF subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to PEPFF pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

(56,980)
78,917
(26,944)
(109,521)
(383,855)

E. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:
Inflation
Active member payroll growth
Investment rate of return

2.50% per year
3.25% per year
7.50%

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, survivors and disabilitants were
based on RP-2014 tables for all plans for males or females, as appropriate, with slight adjustments to fit PERA’s experience. Cost of
living benefit increases for retirees are assumed to be: 1 percent per year for the GERF through 2044 and PEPFF through 2064 and
then 2.5 percent thereafter for both plans.
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies. The most recent
four-year experience study in the GERF was completed in 2015. The most recent five-year experience study for PEPFF was
completed in 2016.
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2017:
GERF
x

The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.8 percent for active members and 60 percent for vested
and non-vested deferred members. The revised CSA loads are now 0.0 percent for active member liability, 15.0 percent for
vested deferred member liability and 3.0 percent for non-vested deferred member liability.

x

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year for all years to 1.0 percent per year
through 2044 and 2.5 percent per year thereafter.

PEPFF

x

Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience study. The net effect is proposed
rates that average 0.34 percent lower than the previous rates.

x

Assumed rates of retirement were changed, resulting in fewer retirements.

x

The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) load was 30 percent for vested and non-vested deferred members. The CSA has been
changed to 33 percent for vested members and 2 percent for non-vested members.

x

The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational table to the RP-2014 fully
generational table (with a base year of 2006), with male rates adjusted by a factor of 0.96. The mortality improvement scale
was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-2016. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP2000 disabled mortality table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees.

x

Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3.0 percent for the first three years of service. Rates beyond the select period of
three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected terminations overall.

x

Assumed percentage of married female members was decreased from 65 percent to 60 percent.

x

Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members (wives assumed to be three years
younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be four years older) to the assumption that males are two years older
than females.

x

The assumed percentage of female members electing joint and survivor annuities was increased.

x

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent for all years to 1.00 percent per year
through 2064 and 2.50 percent thereafter.

x

The single discount rate was changed from 5.6 percent to 7.5 percent.
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the reasonableness on a regular basis
of the long-term expected rate of return using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the
expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Target
Allocation

Asset Class
Domestic stocks
International stocks
Bonds
Alternative assets
Cash

39.00 %
19.00
20.00
20.00
2.00

Total

5.10 %
5.30
0.75
5.90
-

100.00 %

F. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at rates set in Minnesota statutes. Based on
these assumptions, the fiduciary net position of the GERF and PEPFF was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
G. Pension Liability Sensitivity
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it participates in, calculated using the
discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate:
City Proportionate Share of NPL
1 Percent
1 Percent
Decrease (6.50%)
Current (7.50%)
Increase (8.50%)
GERF

$

4,911,370

$

3,166,432

$

1,737,882

City Proportionate Share of NPL
1 Percent
1 Percent
Decrease (6.50%)
Current (7.50%)
Increase (8.50%)
PEPFF

$

2,568,095

$

1,363,620

$

369,260

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about each defined benefit pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued PERA
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet
at www.mnpera.org.
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Note 5: Defined Contribution Pension Plan - Fire Department Relief Association
A. Plan Description
The City contributes to the Wayzata Fire Department Relief Association (the Association), a single-employer defined contribution
lump sum service pension plan. Volunteer firefighters of the City are members of the Association and its pension plan. Partial vesting
of retirement benefits occurs at year 10 and continues based on years of service up to 20 years of service, at which time participants
are 100 percent vested for retirement benefit purposes. On termination of service, a vested participant receives a single, lump sum
distribution.
The City passes through state aids allocated to the plan in accordance with Minnesota statutes. The City’s payroll for members of the
Association for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $81,666 compared to a total City payroll of $4,612,584. The Association
issues a publicly available financial report which may be obtained at Wayzata City Hall.
B. Pension Benefits
Minnesota statutes, chapters 424 and 424A authorize pension benefits for volunteer fire relief associations. A firefighter who
completes as least 20 years as an active member of the Fire Department and Association, after age 50, is entitled to a full service
pension upon retirement.
C. Funding and Allocation Policy
Total contributions to the Association pension fund for 2017 amounted to $117,562 of which $71,887 (61 percent) was paid by the
state to the City for the Association and $45,675 (39 percent) was paid directly by the City. The City’s contribution and state aid are
apportioned to the accounts of active members in equal shares.

Note 6: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
A. Plan Description
The City’s defined benefit healthcare plan (“the Retiree Health Plan”) provides healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their
spouses. The Retiree Health Plan is affiliated with the healthcare plan administered through LOGIS, an agent multiple-employer
postemployment healthcare plan. LOGIS is a consortium of Minnesota local government units controlled by its members. LOGIS’
Board of Directors is composed of one representative from each agency. LOGIS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the health plan. That report may be obtained by writing to
LOGIS, 5750 Duluth Street, Golden Valley, MN 55422, or by calling (763) 543-2600.
B. Funding Policy
All retirees of the City have the option under state law to continue their medical insurance coverage through the City from the time of
retirement until the employee reaches the age of eligibility for Medicare. For member of all employee groups, the retiree must pay the
full premium to continue coverage for medical insurance. The City is legally required to include any retirees for whom it provides
health insurance coverage in the same insurance pool as its active employees. Consequently, participating retirees are considered to
receive a secondary benefit known as an “implicit rate subsidy.” This benefit relates to the assumption that the retiree is receiving a
more favorable premium rate than they would otherwise be able to obtain if purchasing insurance on their own, due to being included
in the same pool with the City’s younger and statistically healthier active employees.
The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by LOGIS’ Board of Directors. The
required contributions are based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2017, the City pay-as-you-go cost
for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $24,774, which is the difference in the retiree contributions and the per capita claim costs.
As of December 31, 2017, there were two former employees on leave with disability receiving health benefits from the plan. Retirees
receiving benefits contribute 100 percent of their premium costs.
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Note 6: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued)
C. Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost
The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC) of the City, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB
obligation:
Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

$

Annual OPEB cost (expense)

40,674
11,505
(9,980)
42,199

Contributions made

(24,774)

Increase in net OPEB obligation

17,425

Net OPEB obligation - January 1, 2017

255,656

Net OPEB obligation - December 31, 2017

$

273,081

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year
2017, 2016 and 2015 follows:
Three Year Trend Information
Percentage
Annual OPEB
Annual
Net OPEB
Contributed
OPEB Cost
Obligation

Year
Ending
12/31/17
12/31/16
12/31/15

$

42,199
40,922
49,542

58.7 %
33.1
45.4

$

273,081
255,656
228,287

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress
As of January 1, 2017, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $408,646, all of which
was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3,093,000 and the ratio of the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 13.2 percent.
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of
Funding Progress for the Postemployment Benefit Plan, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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Note 6: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued)
E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and
plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with
the long-term perspective of the calculations.
In the January 1, 2017 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions include
a 4.5 percent discount rate and a 2.75 percent inflation rate. The initial healthcare trend rate was 9.0 percent, reduced by decrements to
an ultimate rate of 5.0 percent after 12 years. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2017, was 30 years.

Note 7: Operating Leases
A. Antenna and Ground Space Lease
The City leases space on its water tower and the ground surface located under the water tower to four companies that use the space for
their antennas and equipment. The leases are five-year leases with three additional five-year renewal periods and are cancelable by
either party by giving 60 days written notice. For 2017 the rent is $844 per month, per antenna, and $464 per month for the ground
space, which is adjusted each January 1 by the greatest of five percent or the percentage increase of the Consumer Price Index (CPI).
Antenna and ground space rent received in 2017 totaled $344,782.
B. Library Lease
The City leases space to Hennepin County on a five-year lease that terminates on April 30, 2018. The lease is cancelable by either
party by giving 180 days written notice. The cost of the building being leased is $4,253,125 and the accumulated depreciation is
$1,275,937 as of December 31, 2017. The base rent of $56,830 is adjusted each December 1 by the percentage increase in the CPI. A
portion of the base rent (25 percent) reimburses the City for building and grounds operating costs. The library pays for its own utility
services. Library rent of $60,179 was received in 2017.
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Note 8: Tax Abatements
A. Primary Government
Boulevard Apartments
The City entered into a tax abatement agreement on December 7, 2010, with a developer in which the developer incurs costs for
property improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some costs as the city collects future taxes paid by said
developer for the increased property value and tax capacity related to the economic development. The agreement has a maximum
return to the developer of $11,040 over the life of the agreement (15 years). The agreement was negotiated under state law (Minnesota
Statute 469.1813). The taxes abated during the fiscal year are noted in the chart below.
Village Apartments
The City entered into a tax abatement agreement on June 20, 2006 with a developer in which the developer incurs costs for property
improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some costs as the city collects future taxes paid by said developer
for the increased property value and tax capacity related to the economic development. The agreement has a maximum return to the
developer of $14,400 over the life of the agreement (15 years), and $736 per year. The agreement was negotiated under state law
(Minnesota Statute 469.1813). The taxes abated during the fiscal year are noted in the chart below.

Amount of
Taxes Abated
the Fiscal Year
Boulevard Apartments
Village Apartments

$

736
937

B. Component Unit
The Wayzata Housing and Redevelopment Authority entered into a tax increment financing agreement with a developer in which the
developer incurs costs for property improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some costs as the city collects
future tax increment for the increased property value and tax capacity related to the economic development. The agreement has a
maximum return to the developer of $22,910,879 over the life of the agreement (maximum 25 years). The agreement was negotiated
under state law (Minnesota Statute 469.175). The calculation of taxes abated during the fiscal year is noted in the chart below.
Original
Tax Capacity
Rate
Tax Increment Development District 5 (Bay Center

20.308%
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Captured
Tax
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$

2,086,130

Amount of
Taxes Abated During
the Fiscal Year
$

423,651
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Note 9: Other Information
A. Risk Management
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries
to employees; and natural disasters for which the City carries insurance. The City obtains insurance through participation in the
League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT), which is a risk sharing pool with approximately 800 other governmental units.
The City pays an annual premium to LMCIT for its workers compensation and property and casualty insurance. The LMCIT is selfsustaining through member premiums and will reinsure for claims above a prescribed dollar amount for each insurance event. Settled
claims have not exceeded the City’s coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. An excess
coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $1,000,000. Liabilities, if any, include an amount for claims that have
been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). The City’s management is not aware of any incurred but not reported claims.
The City also carries commercial insurance for certain other risks of loss, including liquor liability. Settled claims resulting from these
risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There were no significant reductions in the City’s
coverage in 2017.
B. Legal Claims
The City has the usual and customary type of miscellaneous legal claims pending at year-end. Although the outcome of these lawsuits
is not presently determinable, the City’s management believes that the City will not incur any material monetary loss resulting from
these claims. No loss has been recorded on the City’s financial statements relating to these claims.
C. Legal Debt Margin
In accordance with Minnesota statutes, the City may not incur or be subject to net debt in excess of three percent of the estimated
market value of taxable property within the City. Net debt is payable solely from ad valorem taxes and, therefore, excludes debt
financed partially or entirely by special assessments, enterprise fund revenues, or tax increments. The City’s estimated market value of
taxable property in 2017 was $1,800,471,850. The City’s legal debt limit was $54,014,155 and $1,290,000 of the City’s debt is
applicable to the limit.
D. Tax Increment Financing Districts
The City’s tax increment districts are subject to review by the State of Minnesota Office of the State Auditor (OSA). Any disallowed
claims or misuse of tax increments could become a liability of the applicable fund. Management has indicated that they are not aware
of any instances of noncompliance which would have a material effect on the financial statements.
E. Jointly Governed Organizations
The Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) is a jointly governed organization, established by the state, which is made up of
a representative appointed by the City Councils of each of the 14 Cities surrounding Lake Minnetonka. The purpose of the LMCD is
to uniformly regulate docks, promote public access, and protect the environmental quality of the lake. The City contributed $39,577 in
2017.
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Note 9: Other Information (Continued)
F. Conduit Debt
The City entered into a Cooperative Agreement with the City of Minnetonka to issue a Housing Revenue Note for $6,250,000.
Conduit debt obligations are certain limited-obligation revenue bonds or similar debt instruments issued for the express purpose of
providing capital financing for a specific third party. The City of Minnetonka has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance
to private-sector entities for projects deemed to be in the public interest. Although these bonds bear the name of the City of
Minnetonka, the City of Minnetonka, the City of Wayzata, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner
for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
In addition, the City entered into a Cooperative Agreement with Hammer Residences to issue a Housing Revenue Note for
$5,500,000. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2017 is $3,671,963. The City of Wayzata, the State, nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements.

Note 10: Transactions between the Primary Government and its Component Unit
The City conducts routine transactions with its component unit for services provided. The City provides administrative and financial
services for the HRA activities; the HRA contributed $20,000 and $39,747 to the City during 2017 for these administrative services
and debt service costs, respectively. In addition, the HRA contributed $1,760,500 to the City for project costs.
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Schedule of Employer’s Share of PERA Net Pension Liability - General Employees Retirement Fund

Fiscal
Year
Ending

State's
Proportionate
City's
Share of
Proportionate the Net Pension
City's
Share of
Liability
Proportion of the Net Pension Associated with
the Net Pension
Liability
the City
Liability
(a)
(b)

06/30/17
06/30/16
06/30/15

0.0496 %
0.0471
0.0492

$ 3,166,432
3,824,286
2,549,799

$

39,785
49,931
-

City's
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability as a
Plan Fiduciary
Percentage of
Net Position
City's
Covered-Employee
as
a Percentage
Covered-Employee
Payroll
of the Total
Payroll
(a/c)
Pension Liability
(c)

Total
(a+b)
$ 3,206,217
3,874,217
2,549,799

$

3,192,942
2,907,012
2,889,952

99.2 %
131.6
88.2

75.9 %
68.9
78.2

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
Schedule of Employer’s PERA Contributions - General Employees Retirement Fund

Year
Ending
12/31/17
12/31/16
12/31/15

Statutorily
Required
Contribution
(a)
$

245,260
226,098
221,233

Contributions in
Relation to the
Statutorily
Required
Contribution
(b)
$

245,260
226,098
221,233

Contributions as
a Percentage of
City's
Covered-Employee Covered-Employee
Payroll
Payroll
(b/c)
(c)

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
(a-b)
$

-

$

3,270,133
3,014,640
2,949,778

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
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Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - General Employee Retirement Fund
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions
2017 - The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.8 percent for active members and 60 percent for vested and
non-vested deferred members. The revised CSA loads are now 0.0 percent for active member liability, 15.0 percent for vested deferred
member liability and 3.0 percent for non-vested deferred member liability. The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was
changed from 1.0 percent per year for all years to 1.0 percent per year through 2044 and 2.5 percent per year thereafter.
2016 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2035 and 2.5 percent per
year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year for all future years. The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9 percent to 7.5 percent.
The single discount rate was changed from 7.9 percent to 7.5 percent. Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience
study dated June 30, 2015. The assumed future salary increases, payroll growth and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25
percent for payroll growth and 2.50 percent for inflation.
2015 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2030 and 2.5 percent per
year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year through 2035 and 2.5 percent per year thereafter.
Changes in Plan Provisions
2015 - On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the General Employees Fund, which
increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increased the fiduciary plan net position by $892 million. Upon consolidation,
state and employer contributions were revised.
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Schedule of Employer’s Share of PERA Net Pension Liability - Public Employees Police and Fire Fund

Fiscal
Year
Ending
06/30/17
06/30/16
06/30/15

City's
Proportionate
Share of
the Net Pension
Liability
(a)

City's
Proportion of
the Net Pension
Liability
0.1010 %
0.1020
0.1020

$

1,363,620
4,093,437
1,158,959

State's
Proportionate
Share of
the Net Pension
Liability
Associated with
the City
(b)
$

-

City's
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability as a
Percentage of
City's
Covered-Employee
Covered-Employee
Payroll
Payroll
(a/c)
(c)

Total
(a+b)
$ 1,363,620
4,093,437
1,158,959

$

1,033,368
982,601
936,215

132.0 %
416.6
123.8

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
as a Percentage
of the Total
Pension Liability
85.4 %
63.9
86.6

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available
Schedule of Employer’s PERA Contributions - Public Employees Police and Fire Fund

Year
Ending
12/31/17
12/31/16
12/31/15

Statutorily
Required
Contribution
(a)
$

164,989
164,719
153,685

Contributions in
Relation to the
Statutorily
Required
Contribution
(b)
$

164,989
164,719
153,685

Contributions as
a Percentage of
City's
Covered-Employee Covered-Employee
Payroll
Payroll
(b/c)
(c)

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
(a-b)
$

-

$

1,018,451
1,016,784
948,675

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Public Employees Police and Fire Fund
Changes In actuarial assumptions
2017 - Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience study. The net effect is proposed
rates that average 0.34 percent lower than the previous rates. Assumed rates of retirement were changed, resulting in fewer
retirements. The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) load was 30 percent for vested and non-vested deferred members. The CSA has
been changed to 33 percent for vested members and 2 percent for non-vested members. The base mortality table for healthy
annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational table to the RP-2014 fully generational table (with a base year of 2006),
with male rates adjusted by a factor of 0.96. The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-2016. The
base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 disabled mortality table to the mortality tables assumed for
healthy retirees. Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3.0 percent for the first three years of service. Rates beyond the select
period of three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected terminations overall. Assumed percentage of married female members
was decreased from 65 percent to 60 percent. Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members
(wives assumed to be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be four years older) to the assumption that
males are two years older than females. The assumed percentage of female members electing joint and survivor annuities was
increased. The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent for all years to 1.00 percent per year
through 2064 and 2.50 percent thereafter. The single discount rate was changed from 5.6 percent to 7.5 percent.
2016 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2037 and 2.5
percent per year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year for all future years. The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9 percent to
7.5 percent. The single discount rate was changed from 7.9 percent to 5.6 percent. The assumed future salary increases, payroll
growth and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25 percent for payroll growth and 2.50 percent for inflation.
2015 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2030 and 2.5 percent per
year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year through 2037 and 2.5 percent per year thereafter.
Changes in Plan Provisions
2015 - The post-retirement benefit increase to be paid after attainment of the 90 percent funding threshold was changed, from inflation
up to 2.5 percent, to a fixed rate of 2.5 percent.
Schedule of Funding Progress for the Postemployment Benefit Plan

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
01/01/17
01/01/16
01/01/15

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
$

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(UAAL)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
-

$

408,646
380,123
494,331

$

408,646
380,123
494,331
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Funded
Ratio
- %
-

Covered
Payroll
$ 3,093,000
2,988,000
2,761,742

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
13.2 %
12.7
17.9

7+,63$*(,6/()7
%/$1.,17(17,21$//<
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
CITY OF WAYZATA
WAYZATA, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2017

Capital
Projects

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

236,025

$ 6,452,930

$ 6,688,955

16,988
-

6,648
2,330
398,908
100
60,000

6,648
16,988
2,330
398,908
100
60,000

$

253,013

$ 6,920,916

$ 7,173,929

$

293
293

$

$

Special
Revenue
Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Interest
Accounts
Due from other funds
Due from component unit
Due from other governments
Advances to other funds

$

Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Deposits payable
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
Fund Balances
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

89,148
163,572
252,720

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balances

$
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253,013

59,272
3,578
2,330
65,180

249,242
6,613,279
(6,785)
6,855,736

$ 6,920,916

59,565
3,578
2,330
65,473

338,390
163,572
6,613,279
(6,785)
7,108,456

$ 7,173,929

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Special
Revenue
Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for service
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements
Other
Total Revenues

$

67,117
10,152
3,712

Capital
Projects

$

210,000
170,290
759,985
342,908
126,423

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

$

210,000
67,117
170,290
759,985
342,908
10,152
130,135

11,120
92,101

69,406
25,664
4,404
1,709,080

80,526
25,664
4,404
1,801,181

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Total Expenditures

82,515
26,677
70,672

469,272
193,726
-

551,787
26,677
193,726
70,672

179,864

84,040
475,561
1,160,368
343,121
2,726,088

84,040
475,561
1,160,368
343,121
2,905,952

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

(87,763)

(1,017,008)

(1,104,771)

(5,000)
(5,000)

1,658,774
16,395
(80,000)
1,595,169

1,658,774
16,395
(85,000)
1,590,169

Net Change in Fund Balances

(92,763)

578,161

485,398

Fund Balances, January 1

345,483

6,277,575

6,623,058

252,720

$ 6,855,736

$ 7,108,456

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Sale of capital assets
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balances, December 31

$
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2017

Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Accounts receivable
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable

235

Cemetery

Cable TV

236/240
Police
Forfeiture

239
Comprehensive
Plan

Total

$

33,986
-

$

29,252
16,988

$

89,148
-

$

83,639
-

$

236,025
16,988

$

33,986

$

46,240

$

89,148

$

83,639

$

253,013

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

293

$

293

Fund Balances
Restricted
Committed
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances

232

33,986
33,986

$

33,986

46,240
46,240

$
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46,240

89,148
89,148

$

89,148

83,346
83,346

$

83,639

89,148
163,572
252,720

$

253,013

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues
Taxes
Franchise fees
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Total Revenues

$

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Miscellaneous
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

235

Cemetery

Cable TV

527

$

Fund Balances, January 1
$

$

239
Comprehensive
Plan

10,152
1,171

$

1,571

Total

$

67,117
10,152
3,712

67,560

11,323

11,120
12,691

11,120
92,101

14,117
14,117

68,398
68,398

26,677
26,677

70,672
70,672

82,515
26,677
70,672
179,864

(15,354)

(57,981)

(87,763)

(838)

-

Net Change in Fund Balances

67,117
443

236/240
Police
Forfeiture

527

(13,590)

Other Financing Uses
Transfers out

Fund Balances, December 31

232

(5,000)

-

-

(5,000)

(13,590)

(5,838)

(15,354)

(57,981)

(92,763)

47,576

52,078

104,502

141,327

345,483

33,986

$

-95-

46,240

$

89,148

$

83,346

$

252,720

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2017
233

237

Lakefront
Improvement
Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Interest
Due from other funds
Due from component unit
Due from other governments
Advances to other funds
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Deposits payable
Due to other funds

$

$

100
-

159,284

$ 1,069,041

-

$ 1,069,041

$

$

448,431

$

159,284

$

3,578
-

$

-

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balances

448,331

404
Parks and Trails
Fire Department
Capital
Pull Tabs
Project

$

-

3,578

-

-

444,853
444,853

159,284
159,284

142,176
926,865
1,069,041

159,284

$ 1,069,041

448,431

$
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407

408
General
Improvement
Capital Project

Cell
Tower
$

-

$ 1,361,615

-

4,347
2,330
260,825
-

$

-

$ 1,629,117

$

4,455
2,330
6,785

(6,785)
(6,785)

$

-

$

19,567
19,567

107,066
1,502,484
1,609,550

$ 1,629,117

430
Street
Improvement
Capital Project

Equipment
Revolving

$ 1,487,209

$ 1,541,128

60,000

-

$ 1,547,209

$ 1,541,128

$

$

35,250
-

409

437
Community
Room/Library
Improvement

-

$

Total

386,322

$ 6,452,930

2,301
138,083
-

6,648
2,330
398,908
100
60,000

$

526,706

$ 6,920,916

$

-

35,250

-

-

1,511,959
1,511,959

1,541,128
1,541,128

526,706
526,706

$ 1,547,209

$ 1,541,128

$

526,706

$

59,272
3,578
2,330
65,180

249,242
6,613,279
(6,785)
6,855,736

$ 6,920,916
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
233
Lakefront
Improvement
Revenues
Property taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements
Other
Total Revenues

$

Expenditures
Current
General government
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

170,290
7,053

237

404
Parks and Trails
Fire Department
Capital
Pull Tabs
Project
$

1,600

$

9,986
5,000
13,124

407

408
General
Improvement
Capital Project

Cell
Tower
$

50,250
3,626

$

571,865
13,946
42,884

4,404
181,747

52,000
53,600

17,406
7,227
52,743

53,876

8,769
637,464

163,085

-

16,754

469,272
-

-

184,734
347,819

-

127,765
144,519

469,272

498,324
498,324

(91,776)

(415,396)

139,140

(166,072)

53,600

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Sale of capital assets
Transfers out
Total Other Financing
Sources

305,500
(30,000)

-

82,500
-

-

525,500
(50,000)

275,500

-

82,500

-

475,500

Net Change in Fund Balances

109,428

53,600

Fund Balances, January 1

335,425

105,684

1,078,317

159,284

$ 1,069,041

Fund Balances, December 31

$

444,853

$
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(9,276)

$

(415,396)

614,640

408,611

994,910

(6,785)

$ 1,609,550

430
Street
Improvement
Capital Project
$

210,000
19,690
221,087
22,046

409

437
Community
Room/Library
Improvement

Equipment
Revolving
$

16,560

$

158,444
52,625
19,530

$

210,000
170,290
759,985
342,908
126,423

9,668
482,491

16,560

230,599

69,406
25,664
4,404
1,709,080

-

-

13,887

469,272
193,726

616,291
616,291

84,040
475,561
45,753
30,622
635,976

13,887

84,040
475,561
1,160,368
343,121
2,726,088

(133,800)

(619,416)

216,712

(1,017,008)

146,674
-

598,600
16,395
-

-

1,658,774
16,395
(80,000)

146,674

614,995

-

1,595,169

216,712

578,161

309,994

6,277,575

526,706

$ 6,855,736

12,874

-

Total

(4,421)

1,499,085

1,545,549

$ 1,511,959

$ 1,541,128

$
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Continued on the Following Pages)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2016)
2017
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Total taxes
Licenses and permits
Business
Nonbusiness
Total licenses and permits

Actual
Amounts

$ 4,155,216
82,000
4,237,216

$ 4,155,216
82,000
4,237,216

$ 4,227,130
85,000
4,312,130

166,375
272,000
438,375

166,375
272,000
438,375

Variance with
Final Budget

$

2016
Actual
Amounts

71,914
3,000
74,914

$ 4,128,510
83,443
4,211,953

244,405
350,967
595,372

78,030
78,967
156,997

191,434
578,207
769,641

Intergovernmental
Federal
Other
State
Other
Component unit
Total intergovernmental

-

-

29,810

29,810

-

189,600
189,600

189,600
189,600

252,804
1,023,485
1,306,099

63,204
1,023,485
1,116,499

200,025
200,025

Charges for services
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Total charges for services

307,350
413,163
16,700
737,213

307,350
413,163
16,700
737,213

278,687
422,732
15,283
716,702

(28,663)
9,569
(1,417)
(20,511)

446,435
400,983
14,812
862,230

Fines and forfeitures

75,500

75,500

81,423

5,923

77,268

Investment earnings

25,000

25,000

123,759

98,759

16,638

5,000

5,000

18,153

13,153

46,191

5,707,904

5,707,904

7,153,638

1,445,734

6,183,946

Miscellaneous
Other
Total Revenues
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2016)
2017
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Expenditures
Current
General government
Mayor and Council
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total Mayor and Council
Administration and finance
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total administration and finance

$

25,836
200
21,300
47,336

$

25,836
200
21,300
47,336

Actual
Amounts

$

25,836
276
21,011
47,123

2016
Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

$

(76)
289
213

$

25,836
212
24,334
50,382

436,342
12,400
258,700
707,442

436,342
12,400
258,700
707,442

442,101
9,811
334,609
786,521

(5,759)
2,589
(75,909)
(79,079)

354,842
16,135
328,048
699,025

500
62,400
62,900

500
62,400
62,900

840
67,327
68,167

(340)
(4,927)
(5,267)

339
60,713
61,052

Planning and zoning
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total planning and zoning

129,073
13,000
142,073

129,073
13,000
142,073

137,227
90
8,443
145,760

(8,154)
(90)
4,557
(3,687)

113,683
111
10,164
123,958

General government buildings
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total general government buildings

4,000
231,100
235,100

4,000
231,100
235,100

4,831
197,859
202,690

(831)
33,241
32,410

5,564
170,871
176,435

1,194,851

1,194,851

1,250,261

(55,410)

1,110,852

1,489,783
38,100
117,500
1,645,383

1,489,783
38,100
117,500
1,645,383

1,494,826
44,730
114,834
1,654,390

(5,043)
(6,630)
2,666
(9,007)

1,463,825
37,162
114,661
1,615,648

Assessing
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total assessing

Total general government
Public safety
Police protection
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total Police protection
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2016)
2017
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Expenditures (Continued)
Current (continued)
Public safety (continued)
Fire protection
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total fire protection
Building inspections
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total building inspections

$

115,185
42,200
188,175
345,560

$

115,185
42,200
188,175
345,560

Actual
Amounts

$

87,913
73,380
188,824
350,117

2016
Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

$

27,272
(31,180)
(649)
(4,557)

93,594
37,653
167,896
299,143

220,929
1,100
14,700
236,729

220,929
1,100
14,700
236,729

155,990
509
30,376
186,875

Emergency management
Other services and charges

5,350

5,350

4,146

1,204

Health inspections
Other services and charges

32,000

32,000

36,694

(4,694)

2,265,022

2,265,022

2,232,222

32,800

2,195,863

443,312
75,500
27,700

443,312
75,500
27,700

380,806
65,850
24,328

62,506
9,650
3,372

421,253
72,930
26,433

546,512

546,512

470,984

75,528

520,616

Street lighting
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total street lighting

10,000
68,000
78,000

10,000
68,000
78,000

19,322
61,657
80,979

(9,322)
6,343
(2,979)

13,947
60,325
74,272

Engineering
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total engineering

192,558
1,420
6,784
200,762

192,558
1,420
6,784
200,762

147,538
309
3,372
151,219

45,020
1,111
3,412
49,543

183,275
686
3,842
187,803

825,274

825,274

703,182

122,092

782,691

Total public safety
Public works
Streets
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total streets

Total public works
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64,939
591
(15,676)
49,854

$

234,731
564
11,832
247,127

527

33,418

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2016)
2017
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Expenditures (Continued)
Current (continued)
Culture and recreation
Parks, recreation, and forestry
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Unallocated
Other services and charges

$

464,083
47,600
86,100
597,783

$

Actual
Amounts

464,083
47,600
86,100
597,783

$

428,038
45,697
56,725
530,460

2016
Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

$

36,045
1,903
29,375
67,323

$

377,172
41,012
51,332
469,516

232,000

232,000

214,831

17,169

150,633

5,114,930

5,114,930

4,930,956

183,974

4,709,555

Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Total capital outlay

1,000
2,500
3,500

1,000
2,500
3,500

1,093
2,408
3,501

Total Expenditures

5,118,430

5,118,430

4,934,457

183,973

4,711,804

589,474

589,474

2,219,181

1,629,707

1,472,142

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Sale of capital assets
Insurance recovery
Transfers out

170,000
(759,474)

170,000
(759,474)

150,000
21,719
(967,674)

(20,000)
21,719
(208,200)

150,000
18,953
9,466
(1,344,774)

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

(589,474)

(589,474)

(795,955)

(206,481)

(1,166,355)

Total current expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, January 1
Fund Balances, December 31

(93)
92
(1)

2,249
2,249

-

-

1,423,226

1,423,226

305,787

2,835,183

2,835,183

2,835,183

-

2,529,396

$ 2,835,183

$ 2,835,183

$ 4,258,409

$ 1,423,226

$ 2,835,183
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Debt Service Fund
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2017
310

Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Special assessments receivable
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - special assessments
Fund Balances
Restricted
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances

Superior/Lake
Realignment

311
2009
Street
Improvements

$

291,515
2,165,001

$

20,605
-

$

203,998
-

$

-

$

$ 2,456,516

$

20,605

$

203,998

$

-

$ 2,681,119

$

$

-

$

-

$

2,250

-

315

317

Big Woods

Parking Ramp
Tax Increment

2,165,001

-

-

291,515

20,605

203,998

$ 2,456,516
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$

20,605

$

203,998

-

(2,250)

$

-

Total

$

516,118
2,165,001

2,250

2,165,001

513,868

$ 2,681,119

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Debt Service Fund
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
310

Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Special assessments
Investment earnings

Superior/Lake
Realignment

311
2009
Street
Improvements

$

$

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balances, January 1
Fund Balances, December 31

$

249,543
3,012

33,240
235

315

317

Big Woods

Parking Ramp
Tax Increment

$

213,728
2,389

$

39,747
396

Total

$

246,968
39,747
249,543
6,032

252,555

33,475

216,117

40,143

542,290

135,000
72,300
207,300

25,000
6,758
31,758

165,000
39,000
204,000

140,705
140,705

325,000
258,763
583,763

45,255

1,717

12,117

(100,562)

(41,473)

246,260

18,888

191,881

98,312

555,341

291,515

$
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20,605

$

203,998

$

(2,250)

$

513,868

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(Discretely Presented Component Unit)
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2017
Special
Revenue
440
Housing
Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Accrued interest
Notes
Due from other funds
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Accrued interest payable
Due to primary government
Deposits payable

$

Capital Projects
316
305
Bay Center
Downtown
Tax Increment
TIF 6

$

339,282

$ 1,057,649

-

$ 1,057,649

$

8,086
19,250
16,459
$

56,534

$

339,282

$

703

$

1,192
25,571
1,534,266
-

Total Liabilities

703

Fund Balances
Restricted for economic development
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balances

12,739

Debt Service
314
Widsten
Tax Increment

$

1,561,029

999,186
66,554
-

$

Total
-

$ 1,409,670

-

8,086
19,250
16,459

$

-

$ 1,453,465

$

1,491
16,459
-

$ 1,000,677
67,746
16,459
25,571
1,534,266
703

17,950

2,645,422

1,065,740

55,831
-

(1,221,747)

(8,091)

(17,950)

55,831
(1,247,788)

55,831

(1,221,747)

(8,091)

(17,950)

(1,191,957)

56,534

$

339,282

$ 1,057,649

$

-

Total fund balances reported above

$ 1,453,465
$ (1,191,957)

Amounts reported for the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in the statement of net position are different because
Capital assets used in the Housing and Redevelopment Authority are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported as assets in the funds.
Cost of capital assets
Total Net Position - Housing and Redevelopment Authority

2,092,900
$
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900,943

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(Discretely Presented Component Unit)
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Special
Revenue
440

Debt Service
314
Widsten
Tax Increment

Capital Projects
316
305
Bay Center
Downtown
Tax Increment
TIF 6

$

437,751
9,769

$ 2,111,744
3,121

932

447,520

2,114,865

-

2,218,715

2,056,240

17,932

4,292,887

-

171,427

-

-

171,427

-

2,390,142

2,056,240

17,932

4,464,314

(17,950)

(1,901,015)

Housing
Revenues
Tax increment
Investment earnings

$

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current
Housing and economic development
Debt service
Interest and other
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances

932

Fund Balances, January 1
Fund Balances, December 31

932

(1,942,622)

54,899
$

55,831

58,625

720,875
$ (1,221,747)

$

(66,716)
$

(8,091)

Total

(18)

$ 2,549,495
13,804

(18)

2,563,299

$

(17,950)

709,058
$ (1,191,957)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because
Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

(1,901,015)

Certain revenues are recognized as soon as they are earned. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, certain revenues cannot be recognized until they are available to liquidate liabilities
of the current period.
Property taxes
Change in Net Position - Housing and Redevelopment Authority
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(6,441)
$ (1,907,456)

City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Agency Fund
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
12/31/2016
Escrow
Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Accounts receivable
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Total Liabilities

Additions

Deletions

12/31/2017

$

79,622
1,260

$

9,260
-

$

(1,260)

$

88,882
-

$

80,882

$

9,260

$

(1,260)

$

88,882

$

80,882

$

9,775
1,834

$

(3,609)

$

9,775
79,107

$

80,882

$

11,609

$

(3,609)

$

88,882
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
CITY OF WAYZATA
WAYZATA, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
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City of Wayzata, Minnesota
Summary Financial Report
Revenues and Expenditures For General Operations
Governmental Funds
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Total

Percent
Increase
(Decrease)

2017

2016

$ 4,836,215
765,662
2,115,499
1,059,610
91,575
250,708
294,491
128,747

$ 4,735,328
948,385
744,165
1,200,971
168,593
255,066
78,763
160,318

2.13 %
(19.27)
184.28
(11.77)
(45.68)
(1.71)
273.90
(19.69)

$ 9,542,507
$
2,040

$ 8,291,589
$
1,817

15.09 %
12.28 %

$ 1,802,048
2,258,899
703,182
724,186
285,503

$ 1,296,115
2,202,533
782,691
961,454
150,633

39.03 %
2.56
(10.16)
(24.68)
89.54

85,133
477,969
8,878,093
343,121

101,406
75,538
3,457,708
431,923

325,000
258,763

315,000
189,821

Total Expenditures
Per Capita

$ 16,141,897
$
3,451

$ 9,964,822
$
2,183

61.99 %
58.04 %

Total Long-term Indebtedness
Per Capita

$ 11,180,000
$
2,390

$ 11,505,000
$
2,521

(2.82) %
(5.19)

General Fund Balance - December 31
Per Capita

$ 4,258,409
$
910

$ 2,835,183
$
621

50.20 %
46.54

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
Per Capita
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of financial information concerning the City of Wayzata to interested
citizens. The complete financial statements may be examined at City Hall, 600 Rice Street East, Wayzata, MN 55391
Questions about this report should be directed to Kathy Ovshak, Senior Accountant at (952) 404-5300.

-111-

(16.05)
532.75
156.76
(20.56)
3.17
36.32

